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ORDER OF REFERENCE ORDRE DE RENVOI

Extract from the Journals of the Senate, Tuesday, Extrait des Journaux du Sénat, le mardi 20 novembre 2007 :

November 20, 2007:

The Honourable Senator Chaput moved, seconded by the
Honourable Senator Merchant:

That the Standing Senate Committee on Official
Languages be authorized to study and to report from time
to time on the application of the Official Languages Act and
of the regulations and directives made under it, within those
institutions subject to the Act;

That the Committee be authorized to study the reports
and papers produced by the Minister of Official Languages,
the President of the Treasury Board, the Minister of
Canadian Heritage and the Commissioner of Official
Languages as well as any other material concerning
official languages;

That papers and evidence received and taken during the
First Session of the Thirty-ninth Parliament be referred to
the Committee; and

That the Committee report from time to time to the
Senate but no later than December 31, 2008, and that
the Committee retain all powers necessary to publicize its
findings until March 31, 2009.

The question being put on the motion, it was adopted.

L’honorable sénateur Chaput propose, appuyé par
I’honorable sénateur Merchant,

Que le Comité sénatorial permanent des langues
officielles soit autorisé a étudier, afin d’en faire rapport de
fagon ponctuelle, I'application de la Loi sur les langues
officielles, ainsi que des réglements et instructions en
découlant, au sein des institutions assujetties a la loi;

Que le Comité soit aussi autorisé a étudier les rapports et
documents produits par le ministre des langues officielles, le
président du Conseil du Trésor, le ministre du Patrimoine
canadien et le commissaire aux langues officielles, ainsi que
toute autre matiére concernant les langues officielles;

Que les mémoires regus et les témoignages entendus au
cours de la premiére session de la trente-neuvieme législature
soient renvoyés au Comité;

Que le Comité fasse de temps a autre rapport au Sénat,
mais au plus tard le 31 décembre 2008, et qu’il conserve
jusqu’au 31 mars 2009 tous les pouvoirs nécessaires pour
diffuser ses conclusions.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

Le greffier du Sénat,
Paul C. Bélisle
Clerk of the Senate
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MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

OTTAWA, Monday, November 19, 2007
1)

[Translation]

The Standing Senate Committee on Official Languages met
this day at 5:30 p.m. in room 505 of the Victoria Building for an
organizational meeting, pursuant to rule 88 of the Senate.

Members of the committee present: The Honourable Senators
Champagne, P.C., Chaput, De Bané, P.C., Losier-Cool,
Murray, P.C., Poulin and Tardif (7).

Also present: Elise Hurtubise-Loranger, Analyst,
Parliamentary Research Branch, Library of Parliament.

In attendance: The official reporters of the Senate.

Pursuant to rule 88 of the Senate, the Clerk of the Committee
presided over the election of the Chair.

The Honourable Senator Champagne, P.C. moved — That the
Honourable Senator Chaput take the Chair of the Committee.

The question being put on the motion, it was resolved in the
affirmative.

The Honourable Senator Losier-Cool moved — That the
Honourable Senator Champagne, P.C., be the deputy chair of the
committee.

The question being put on the motion, it was resolved in the
affirmative.

The Honourable Senator Poulin moved —

That the Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure be
composed of the chair, the deputy chair and one other member
of the committee, to be designated after the usual consultation;
and

That the subcommittee be empowered to make decisions on
behalf of the committee with respect to its agenda, to invite
witnesses and to schedule hearings.

The question being put on the motion, it was resolved in the
affirmative.

The Honourable Senator Losier-Cool moved —
That the committee print its proceedings; and

That the chair be authorized to set the number to meet
demand.

The question being put on the motion, it was resolved in the
affirmative.

The Honourable Senator Tardif moved —

That pursuant to rule 89 of the Senate, the chair be authorized
to hold meetings to receive and authorize the printing of evidence
when a quorum is not present, provided that a member of the
committee from both the government and the opposition be
present.

PROCES-VERBAUX

OTTAWA, le lundi 19 novembre 2007
(D

[Frangais]

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des langues officielles se réunit
aujourd’hui, a 17 h 30, dans la salle 505 de I’édifice Victoria, pour
tenir sa séance d’organisation, conformément a l’article 88 du
Réglement.

Membres du comité présents : Les honorables sénateurs
Champagne, C.P., Chaput, De Bané, C.P., Losier-Cool,
Murray, C.P., Poulin et Tardif (7).

Est présente : Elise Hurtubise-Loranger, analyste, Service
d’information et de recherche parlementaires, Bibliothéque du
Parlement.

Sont également présents : Les sténographes officiels du Sénat.

Conformément a [Particle 88 du Réglement, le greffier du
comité préside a I’élection a la présidence.

L’honorable sénateur Champagne, C.P., propose que
I’honorable sénateur Chaput soit présidente de ce comité.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur Losier-Cool propose que 1’honorable
sénateur Champagne, C.P., soit vice-présidente de ce comité.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur Poulin propose :

Que le Sous-comité du programme et de la procédure soit
composé de la présidente, de la vice-présidente et d’un autre
membre du comité désigné aprées les consultations d’usage; et

Que le sous-comité soit autorisé a prendre des décisions au
nom du comité relativement au programme, a inviter les témoins
et a établir I'horaire des audiences.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur Losier-Cool propose :
Que le comité fasse imprimer ses délibérations; et

Que la présidence soit autorisée a fixer la quantité en fonction
des besoins.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur Tardif propose :

Que, conformément a I’article 89 du Reglement, la présidence
soit autorisée a tenir des réunions pour entendre des témoignages
et a en permettre la publication en ’absence de quorum, pourvu
qu'un membre du comité du gouvernement et de I'opposition
soient présents.
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The question being put on the motion, it was resolved in the
affirmative.

The Honourable Senator Tardif moved —

That the committee adopt the draft first report on the expenses
incurred by the committee during the last session, pursuant to
rule 104.

The question being put on the motion, it was resolved in the
affirmative.

The Honourable Senator Champagne, P.C., moved —

That the committee ask the Library of Parliament to assign
analysts to the committee;

That the chair be authorized to seek authority from the Senate
to engage the services of such counsel and technical, clerical, and
other personnel as may be necessary for the purpose of
the committee’s examination and consideration of such bills,
subject-matters of bills, and estimates as are referred to it;

That the Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure be
authorized to retain the services of such experts as may
be required by the work of the committee; and

That the chair, on behalf of the committee, direct the research
staff in the preparation of studies, analyses, summaries and draft
reports.

The question being put on the motion, it was resolved in the
affirmative.

The Honourable Senator Tardif moved —

That pursuant to section 32 of the Financial Administration
Act, and Section 7, Chapter 3:06 of the Senate Administrative
Rules, authority to commit funds be conferred individually on the
chair, the deputy chair, and the clerk of the committee; and

That pursuant to section 34 of the Financial Administration
Act, and Section 8, Chapter 3:06 of the Senate Administrative
Rules, authority for certifying accounts payable by the committee
be conferred individually on the chair, the deputy chair, and the
clerk of the committee.

The question being put on the motion, it was resolved in the
affirmative.

The Honourable Senator Champagne, P.C., moved —

That the committee empower the Subcommittee on Agenda
and Procedure to designate, as required, one or more members of
the committee and/or such staff as may be necessary to travel on
assignment on behalf of the committee.

The question being put on the motion, it was resolved in the
affirmative.

The Honourable Senator Losier-Cool moved —

That the Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure be
authorized to:

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur Tardif propose :

Que le comité adopte ’ébauche du premier rapport portant sur
les dépenses encourues au cours de la session précédente, préparé
conformément a l’article 104 du Reéglement.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur Champagne, C.P., propose :

Que le comité demande a la Bibliothéque du Parlement
d’affecter des analystes au comité;

Que la présidence soit autorisée a demander au Sénat la
permission de retenir les services de conseillers juridiques, de
personnel technique, d’employés de bureau et d’autres personnes
au besoin, pour aider le comité a examiner les projets de loi, la
teneur de ces derniers et les prévisions budgétaires qui lui sont
renvoyes;

Que le Sous-comité du programme et de la procédure soit
autorisé a faire appel aux services d’experts-conseils dont le
comité peut avoir besoin dans le cadre de ses travaux; et

Que la présidence, au nom du comité, dirige le personnel de
recherche dans la préparation d’études, d’analyses, de résumés et
de projets de rapport.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur Tardif :

Que, conformément a ’article 32 de la Loi sur la gestion des
finances publiques et a ’article 7, chapitre 3:06, du Réglement
administratif du Sénat, 1’autorisation d’engager des fonds
du comité soit conférée individuellement a la présidente, a la
vice-présidente et au greffier du comité; et

Que, conformément a larticle 34 de la Loi sur la gestion des
finances publiques et a ’article 8, chapitre 3:06, du Réglement
administratif du Sénat, ’autorisation d’approuver les comptes a
payer au nom du comité soit conférée individuellement a la
présidente, a la vice-présidente et au greffier du comité.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur Champagne, C.P., propose :

Que le comité autorise le Sous-comité du programme et de la
procédure a désigner, au besoin, un ou plusieurs membres du
comité, de méme que le personnel nécessaire, qui se déplaceront
au nom du comité.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur Losier-Cool propose :

Que le Sous-comité du programme et de la procédure soit
autorisé a :
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(1) determine whether any member of the committee is on
“official business” for the purposes of paragraph 8(3)(a) of

the Senators Attendance Policy, published in the Journals of

the Senate on Wednesday, June 3, 1998; and

(2) consider any member of the committee to be on
“official business” if that member is: (a) attending an event
or meeting related to the work of the committee; or (b)
making a presentation related to the work of the committee.

The question being put on the motion, it was resolved in the
affirmative.

The Honourable Senator Murray, P.C., moved —

That pursuant to the Senate guidelines for witness expenses,
the committee may reimburse reasonable travelling and living
expenses for one witness from any one organization and payment
will take place upon application, but that the chair be authorized
to approve expenses for a second witness should there be
exceptional circumstances.

The question being put on the motion, it was resolved in the
affirmative.

The Honourable Senator Tardif moved —

That the chair be authorized to seek permission from the
Senate to permit coverage by electronic media of the committee’s
public proceedings with the least possible disruption of its
hearings; and

That the Subcommittee on Agenda and Procedure be
empowered to allow such coverage at its discretion.

The question being put on the motion, it was resolved in the
affirmative.

The chair informed committee members that the time slot for
regular meetings was Monday from 4 p.m. to 7 p.m.

The Honourable Senator Chaput moved that the committee
meet at 5:30 p.m. instead of 4 p.m.

A debate ensued, following which it was agreed that the
Subcommittee would decide the time at which meetings would
commence.

The Honourable Senator Losier-Cool moved —

That senators’ staff be permitted to remain in the room when
the committee meets in camera.

The question being put on the motion, it was resolved in the
affirmative.

At 5:50 p.m., the committee suspended.

At 5:51 p.m., the committee reconvened in camera, pursuant to
rule 92(2)(e), to consider a draft agenda.

1) déterminer si un membre du comité remplit un
« engagement officiel » au sens de l'alinéa 8(3)a) de la
politique relative a la présence des sénateurs, publiée dans
les Journaux du Sénat du mercredi 3 juin 1998, et

2) considérer quun membre du comité remplit un
« engagement officiel » si ce membre : a) assiste a une
activité ou a une réunion se rapportant aux travaux du
comité; ou b) fait un exposé ayant trait aux travaux du
comité.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur Murray, C.P., propose :

Que, conformément aux lignes directrices du Sénat gouvernant
les frais de déplacement des témoins, le comité puisse rembourser
des dépenses raisonnables de voyage et d’hébergement a un
témoin par organisme, apres quune demande de remboursement
ait été présentée, mais que la présidence soit autorisée a permettre
le remboursement de dépenses pour un deuxiéme témoin du méme
organisme s’il y a circonstances exceptionnelles.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

L’honorable sénateur Tardif propose :

Que la présidence soit autorisée a demander au Sénat la
permission de diffuser les délibérations publiques du comité par
les médias d’information électroniques, de maniére a déranger le
moins possible ses travaux; et

Que le Sous-comité du programme et de la procédure soit
autorisé a permettre cette diffusion a sa discrétion.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

La présidente informe les membres du comité que I’horaire
prévoit que le comité tienne ses séances les lundis, de 16 heures a
19 heures.

L’honorable sénateur Chaput propose que le comité débute ses
réunions a 17 h 30 plutét que 16 heures.

Aprés débat, il est convenu que le sous-comité prenne une
décision quant au début des séances du comité.

L’honorable sénateur Losier-Cool propose :

Que le personnel des sénateurs demeure dans la salle pendant
que le comité siégera a huis clos.

La motion, mise aux voix, est adoptée.

A 17 h 50, la séance est suspendue.

A 17 h 51, conformément & I’alinéa 92(2)e) du Réglement, la
séance reprend a huis clos pour examiner un projet d’ordre du
jour.
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At 6 p.m., the committee adjourned to the call of the Chair.

ATTEST:

OTTAWA, Monday, November 26, 2007
(2
[Translation]

The Standing Senate Committee on Official Languages met
this day in camera at 5:05 p.m. in room 505 of the Victoria
Building, the Chair, the Honourable Maria Chaput, presiding.

Members of the committee present: The Honourable Senators
Champagne, P.C., Chaput, Comeau, Goldstein, Losier-Cool,
Murray, P.C. and Tardif (7).

Also present: Elise Hurtubise-Loranger, Analyst,
Parliamentary Research Branch, Library of Parliament.

Pursuant to rule 92(2)(e), the committee considered a draft
agenda.

Agreed — That unless ordered otherwise, committee members’
staff be permitted to attend in camera meetings.

Agreed — That the committee act in accordance with a single
order of reference, namely that adopted on November 20, 2007.

At 5:43 p.m., the committee adjourned to the call of the Chair.

ATTEST:

OTTAWA, Monday, December 3, 2007
(3)

[Translation]

The Standing Senate Committee on Official Languages met
this day at 5:35 p.m. in room 9 of the Victoria Building, the Chair,
the Honourable Maria Chaput, presiding.

Members of the committee present: The Honourable Senators
Champagne, P.C., Chaput, Comeau, Goldstein, Losier-Cool,
Murray, P.C., Poulin and Tardif (8).

Also present: Elise Hurtubise-Loranger, Analyst,
Parliamentary Research Branch, Library of Parliament.

In attendance: The official reporters of the Senate.

Pursuant to the Order of Reference adopted by the Senate on
Tuesday, November 20, 2007, the committee undertook its study
of the application of the Official Languages Act and of the
regulations and directives made under it, within those institutions
subject to the act.

WITNESSES:
Office of the Commissioner of Official Languages:

A 18 heures, le comité suspend ses travaux jusqu’a nouvelle
convocation de la présidence.

ATTESTE :

OTTAWA, le lundi 26 novembre 2007
2

[Frangais]

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des langues officielles se réunit
aujourd’hui a 17 h 05, a huis clos, dans la salle 505 de I’édifice
Victoria, sous la présidence de I’honorable Maria Chaput
(présidente).

Membres du comité présents : Les honorables sénateurs
Champagne, C.P., Chaput, Comeau, Goldstein, Losier-Cool,
Murray, C.P., et Tardif (7).

Est présente : Elise Hurtubise-Loranger, analyste, Service
d’information et de recherche parlementaires, Bibliothéque du
Parlement.

Conformément a I’alinéa 92(2)e) du Réglement, le comité
examine un projet d’ordre du jour.

Il est convenu que, a moins qu’il en soit ordonné autrement, le
personnel des membres du comité soit autorisé a assister aux
réunions a huis clos du comité.

Il est convenu que le comité s’en tiendra a un seul ordre de
renvoi, soit celui adopté le 20 novembre 2007.

A 17 h 43, le comité suspend ses travaux jusqu’a nouvelle
convocation de la présidence.

ATTESTE :

OTTAWA, le lundi 3 décembre 2007
(3)

[Frangais]

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des langues officielles se réunit
aujourd’hui a 17 h 35, dans la salle 9 de I’édifice Victoria, sous la
présidence de ’honorable Maria Chaput.

Membres du comité présents : Les honorables sénateurs
Champagne, C.P., Chaput, Comeau, Goldstein, Losier-Cool,
Murray, C.P., Poulin et Tardif (8).

Est présente : Elise Hurtubise-Loranger, analyste, Service
d’information et de recherche parlementaires, Bibliothéque du
Parlement.

Sont également présents : Les sténographes officiels du Sénat.

Conformément a I'ordre de renvoi adopté par le Sénat
le mardi 20 novembre 2007, le comité entreprend I’étude sur
I’application de la Loi sur les langues officielles, ainsi que des
réglements et instructions en découlant, au sein des institutions
assujetties a la Loi.

TEMOINS :

Bureau du Commissariat aux langues officielles :
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Graham Fraser, Commissioner of Official Languages;

Dominique Lemieux, Director General, Compliance Assurance
Branch;

Catherine Scott, Director General,
Communications Branch;

Policy and

Johane Tremblay, Director, Legal Affairs Branch.

At 6:56 p.m., the committee suspended.
At 6:57 p.m., the committee resumed.

Agreed — That the following budget request for the special
study on the application of the Official Languages Act for the
fiscal year ending March 31, 2008 be approved and submitted to
the Standing Committee on Internal Economy, Budgets and
Administration.

Professional and other services $ 20,000
Transportation and communications $ 111,220
Miscellaneous expenses $ 9,500
Total $ 140,720

At 7 p.m., the committee adjourned to the call of the Chair.

ATTEST:

OTTAWA, Monday, December 10, 2007
@
[Translation]

The Standing Senate Committee on Official Languages met
this day at 5:05 p.m. in room 160-S of the Centre Block, the
Chair, the Honourable Maria Chaput, presiding.

Members of the committee present: The Honourable Senators
Champagne, P.C., Chaput, Comeau, Goldstein, Murray, P.C.,
Poulin, Ringuette and Tardif (8).

Other senator present: The Honourable Senator Dallaire (1).

Also present: Elise Hurtubise-Loranger, Analyst,
Parliamentary Research Branch, Library of Parliament.

In attendance: The official reporters of the Senate.

Pursuant to the Order of Reference adopted by the Senate on
Tuesday, November 20, 2007, the committee continued its study
of the application of the Official Languages Act and of the
regulations and directives made under it, within those institutions
subject to the Act.

WITNESS:
Statistics Canada:

Réjean Lachapelle, Director, Demolinguistics Studies Division.

At 6:15 p.m., the committee suspended.

Graham Fraser, commissaire aux langues officielles;

Dominique Lemieux, directrice générale, Direction générale de
I’assurance de la conformité;

Catherine Scott, directrice générale, Direction générale des
politiques et des communications;

Johane Tremblay, directrice, Direction générale des affaires
juridiques.

A 18 h 56, la séance est suspendue.

A 18 h 57, la séance reprend.

Il est convenu que la demande de budget suivante, relative a
I’étude spéciale sur I'application de la Loi sur les langues
officielles, pour ’exercice se terminant le 31 mars 2008, soit
adoptée et présentée au Comité permanent de la régie interne, des
budgets et de 'administration.

Services professionnels et autres 20 000 $
Transports et communications] 11220 $
Autres dépenses 9500 $
Total 140 720 $

A 19 heures, le comité suspend ses travaux jusqu’a nouvelle
convocation de la présidence.

ATTESTE

OTTAWA, le lundi 10 décembre 2007
(C))
[Frangais]
Le Comité sénatorial permanent des langues officielles se réunit

aujourd’hui a 17 h 05, dans la salle 160-S de I’édifice du Centre,
sous la présidence de ’honorable Maria Chaput (présidente).

Membres du comité présents : Les honorables sénateurs
Champagne, C.P., Chaput, Comeau, Goldstein, Murray, C.P.,
Poulin, Ringuette et Tardif (8).

Autre sénateur présent : L’honorable sénateur Dallaire (1).

Est présente : Elise Hurtubise-Loranger, analyste, Service
d’information et de recherche parlementaires, Bibliothéque du
Parlement.

Sont également présents : Les sténographes officiels du Sénat.

Conformément a I'ordre de renvoi adopté par le Sénat
le mardi 20 novembre 2007, le comité continue son étude sur
I’application de la Loi sur les langues officielles, ainsi que des
réglements et instructions en découlant, au sein des institutions
assujetties a la Loi.

TEMOIN :
Statistique Canada :
Division des études

Réjean Lachapelle, directeur,

démolinguistiques.

A 18 h 15, la séance est suspendue.
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At 6:20 p.m., pursuant to rule 92(2)(e) of the Senate, the
committee reconvened in camera to consider a draft agenda.

Agreed — That the Steering Committee would consider the
issue of bilingualism in the Canadian Forces and the Department
of National Defence.

At 6:58 p.m., the committee adjourned to the call of the Chair.

ATTEST:

A 18 h 20, conformément a I’alinéa 92(2)e) du Reéglement, la
séance reprend a huis clos pour I’étude d’un projet d’ordre du
jour.

Il est convenu que le comité directeur se penchera sur la
question du bilinguisme dans les Forces armées canadiennes et le
ministére de la Défense nationale.

A 18 h 58, le comité suspend ses travaux jusqu’a nouvelle
convocation de la présidence.

ATTESTE :

Le greffier du comité,

Eric Jacques

Clerk of the Committee
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REPORT OF THE COMMITTEE
Tuesday, November 20, 2007

The Standing Senate Committee on Official Languages has the
honour to table its

FIRST REPORT

Your Committee, which was authorised by the Senate to incur
expenses for the purpose of its examination and consideration of
such legislation and other matters as were referred to it, reports,
pursuant to Rule 104, that the expenses incurred by the
Committee during the First Session of the Thirty-ninth
Parliament are as follow:

With respect to its special study on the operation of the Official
Languages Act:

Professional and other services $ 16,606.00
Transportation and Communications $ 40,111.00
Other expenditures $ 1,544.00
Witness expenses § 7,227.00
Total $ 65,488.00

With respect to its special study on the francophone Culture in
Canada:

Professional and other services $ 327.00
Transportation and Communications $ 0.00
Other expenditures $ 0.00
Witness expenses $  2,403.00
Total $  2,730.00

During the session in question, the Committee received
3 orders of reference, held 32 meetings, and received evidence
from 116 witnesses. In total, the Committee produced 9 reports.

Respectfully submitted.

RAPPORT DU COMITE
Le mardi 20 novembre 2007

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des langues officielles a
I’honneur de déposer son

PREMIER RAPPORT

Votre Comité, qui a été autorisé par le Sénat a engager des
dépenses afin d’étudier les mesures législatives et autres questions
qui lui ont été renvoyées, dépose, conformément a l'article 104 du
Reéglement, le relevé suivant des dépenses qu’il a faites a cette fin
au cours de la premiére session de la trente-neuviéme législature :

Relativement a son étude spéciale de I’application de la Loi sur
les langues officielles :

Services professionnels et autres 16 606,00 $
Transport et communications 40 111,00 $
Autres dépenses 1 544,00 $
Dépenses des témoins 7227,00 §
Total 65 488,00 $

Relativement a son étude spéciale sur la culture francophone
au Canada :

Services professionnels et autres 327,00 $
Transport et communications 0,00 §
Autres dépenses 0,00 $
Dépenses des témoins 2 403,00 $
Total 2 730,00 $

Durant la session en cause, le Comité a regu 3 ordres de renvoi,
tenu 32 réunions et entendu 116 témoins. Au total, le Comité a
produit 9 rapports.

Respectueusement soumis.

La présidente,
MARIA CHAPUT
Chair
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EVIDENCE
OTTAWA, Monday, November 19, 2007

The Standing Senate Committee on Official Languages met
this day at 5:30 p.m., in accordance with rule 88 of the Rules of
the Senate, to hold its organisational meeting.

[Translation]

Eric Jacques, Clerk of the Committee: Honourable senators,
I see that there is quorum. Welcome to the organization meeting
of the Senate Standing Committee on Official Languages. My
name is Eric Jacques, the clerk assigned to this committee. It is my
duty to preside over the election of the chair.

I am ready to take your nominations.

Senator Champagne: I move that the Honourable Senator
Maria Chaput do take the chair of this committee.

The Clerk: It is moved by the Honourable Senator Champagne
that the Honourable Senator Chaput take the chair of this
committee.

Are there any other motions?
Hon. Senators: No.

The Clerk: I invite the Honourable Senator Chaput to take the
chair.

Senator Maria Chaput (Chair) in the chair.
The Chairman: Let us move on to the election of a deputy
chair.

Senator Losier-Cool: I move that the Honourable Senator
Champagne be deputy chair of this committee.

The Chairman: Senator Champagne, do you accept the
nomination?

Senator Champagne: It would be my pleasure.

The Chairman: Moving to item No. 3, Subcommittee on
Agenda and Procedure.

Senator Poulin: I move the motion.
The Chairman: Is it agreed?
Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: This means that we will be suggesting that an
additional member of the committee sit on the subcommittee. Let
us move on to item No. 4, Motion to print the committee’s
proceedings. As usual, this motion allows the committee to print
its proceedings and authorize the chair to set the number to meet
demand.

Senator Losier-Cool: I move the motion.
The Chairman: Is it agreed?
Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: Item No. 5, Authorization to hold meetings and
to print evidence when quorum is not present.

Senator Tardif: I move the motion.

TEMOIGNAGES
OTTAWA, le lundi 19 novembre 2007

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des langues officielles se réunit
aujourd’hui a 17 h 30, conformément a I’article 88 du Réglement
du Sénat, pour tenir sa séance d’organisation.

[Frangais]

Eric Jacques, greffier du comité : Honorables sénateurs, je
constate qu’il y a quorum. Bienvenue a la réunion d’organisation
du Comité sénatorial permanent des langues officielles. Je
m’appelle Eric Jacques, je suis le greffier affecté & ce comité. Il
est de mon devoir de présider a I’élection de la présidence.

Je suis prét a recevoir une motion a cet effet.

Le sénateur Champagne : Je propose de nommer le sénateur
Maria Chaput a la présidence du comité.

Le greffier : Le sénateur Champagne propose que le sénateur
Chaput soit présidente de ce comité.

Y a-t-il d’autres motions?
Des voix : Non.

Le greffier : J’invite I’honorable sénatrice Chaput a occuper le
fauteuil.

Le sénateur Maria Chaput (présidente), occupe le fauteuil.

La présidente : Passons maintenant a 1’élection a la
vice-présidence.

Le sénateur Losier-Cool : Je propose I’honorable sénateur
Champagne a la vice-présidence.

La présidente : Acceptez-vous, sénateur Champagne?

Le sénateur Champagne : J’accepte avec plaisir.

La présidente : Le point 3, Sous-comité du programme et de la
procédure.

Le sénateur Poulin : Je propose la motion.
La présidente : La motion est-elle adoptée?
Des voix : D’accord.

La présidente : Ce qui veut dire que nous proposerons qu'un
autre membre du comité fasse partie du sous-comité. Passons
maintenant au point 4, impression des délibérations du comité,
pour que l'on fasse comme d’habitude, soit imprimer les
délibérations, et que la présidence soit autorisée a fixer la
quantité en fonction des besoins.

Le sénateur Losier-Cool : Je propose cette motion.
La présidente : La motion est-elle adoptée?
Des voix : D’accord.

La présidente : Le point 5, autorisation a tenir des réunions et
impression des témoignages en 1’absence de quorum.

Le sénateur Tardif : Je propose la motion.
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The Chairman: It is moved by Senator Tardif, seconded by
Senator Champagne:

That, pursuant to rule 89, the chair be authorized to hold
meetings, to receive and authorize the printing of the
evidence when a quorum is not present . . .

Is it agreed?
Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: Item No. 6, Financial Report. You have before
you the first report of the committee.

Senator Tardif: I move the motion.

The Chairman: Is it your pleasure, honourable senators, to
adopt the draft first report?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.
The Chairman: Item 7, Research Staff.
Senator Champagne: I move the motion.

The Chairman: Before asking you to adopt the motion, I would
like to introduce you to the research analyst from the Library of
Parliament, Ms. Elise Hurtubise-Loranger. The new clerk is
Mr. Eric Jacques, and we also have a new communications
officer, Mr. Jean-Pierre Morin. We have an entirely new team.
Elise was with us last year, but as a researcher rather than an
analyst. She collaborated with Marie-Eve Hudon who is currently
on maternity leave. With respect to the motion on research staff,
is it your pleasure to adopt the motion?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: Item 8, Authority to commit funds and certify
accounts.

Senator Tardif: I move the motion.

The Chairman: s it the pleasure of the committee to adopt this
motion?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: Item 9 pertaining to travel.

Senator Champagne: I move the motion.

The Chairman: Is it your pleasure to adopt the motion?
Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: Item 10, Designation of Members Travelling on
Committee Business.

Senator Losier-Cool: I move the motion.

The Chairman: Is it the pleasure of the committee to adopt the
motion?

Hon. Senators: Agreed.

The Chairman: Item 11, Travelling and living expenses of
witnesses.

Senator Murray: I so move.

La présidente : 11 est proposé par le sénateur Tardif, appuyé par
le sénateur Champagne :

Que, conformément a [I’article 89 du Reéglement, la
présidence soit autorisée a tenir des réunions pour
entendre des témoignages et a permettre la publication en
I’absence de quorum...

La motion est-elle adoptée?
Des voix : D’accord.

La présidente : Le point 6, rapport financier. Vous avez devant
vous le premier rapport du comité.

Le sénateur Tardif : Je propose la motion.

La présidente : Les membres sont-ils d’accord a ce que le
comité adopte I’ébauche du premier rapport?

Des voix : D’accord.
La présidente : Le point 7 concerne le personnel de recherche.
Le sénateur Champagne : Je propose la motion.

La présidente : Avant de vous demander d’adopter cette
motion, j’aimerais vous présenter I’analyste de la Bibliothéque
du Parlement, Elise Hurtubise-Loranger. Le nouveau greffier est
Eric Jacques et nous avons également un nouvel agent des
communications, il s’agit de M. Jean-Pierre Morin. Nous avons
une toute nouvelle équipe. Elise était avec nous I’an passé, mais en
qualité de recherchiste plutét qu’analyste. Elle collaborait avec
Marie-Eve Hudon qui est maintenant en congé de maternité.
Concernant le personnel de recherche, vous plait-il d’adopter la
motion?

Des voix : D’accord.

La présidente : Point 8, autorisation a engager des fonds et a
approuver les comptes a payer.

Le sénateur Tardif : Je propose la motion.

La présidente : Le comité adopte-t-il cette motion?

Des voix : D’accord.

La présidente : Point 9 concerne les voyages.

Le sénateur Champagne : Je propose la motion.
La présidente : Vous plait-il d’adopter la motion?
Des voix : D’accord.

La présidente : Point 10, désignation des membres qui voyagent
pour les affaires du comité.

Le sénateur Losier-Cool : Je propose la motion.

La présidente : Plait-il au comité d’adopter cette motion?

Des voix : D’accord.

La présidente : Point 11, frais de déplacement des témoins.

Le sénateur Murray : Je propose la motion.
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The Chairman: Is it the pleasure of the committee to adopt the
motion?

Hon. Senators: Yes.

The Chairman: Point 12, Electronic media coverage of public
meetings.

Senator Poulin: I have a question on that. Do we have to seek
permission from the Senate each time we want our proceedings
covered? Is that decision not up to the committee?

The Chairman: I am going to ask the clerk.

Senator Poulin: That the Chair be authorized to seek
permission. This is the first time I have ever seen that.

The Chairman: Do we seek permission?

The Clerk: The committee puts the request to the Senate once,
and the proposal comes from the Subcommittee on Agenda and
Procedure.

Senator Poulin: Very well, thank you.

The Chairman: May I have a motion?

Senator Tardif: I move the motion.

The Chairman: Is it your pleasure to adopt the motion?
Hon. Senators: Yes.

The Chairman: Point 13 on the agenda deals with the time slot
for regular meetings.

Senator Murray: I thought we had agreed that meetings would
start at 5:30 p.m.; has that changed?

The Chairman: No, this is what has always been presented, and
this evening, we were going to recommend that regular meetings
be held from 5:30 p.m. to 7:30. p.m. However, a committee
member has just advised me that if we hold our meetings from
5:30 p.m. to 7:30 p.m., he will be unable to participate.

Given that Senator Comeau had asked senators if that suited
them and that there seemed to be agreement, does it make a
difference if we sit at 5 p.m. instead of 5:30 p.m.?

Senator Murray: I will have to think about it and look at the
airline schedules. We will see.

Senator Losier-Cool: If we decide to change the meeting time,
we must advise the whips.

The Chairman: We can decide to hold our meetings from
4 p.m. to 7 p.m. We must advise the whips only in cases where the
meeting goes beyond 7 p.m. We could decide to start at 5:30 p.m.

Senator Losier-Cool: Okay. I am available.

La présidente : Plait-il au comité d’adopter la motion?

Des voix : D’accord.

La présidente : Point 12, diffusion des délibérations publiques
par médias d’information électroniques.

Le sénateur Poulin: J’ai une question concernant cette
question. Faut-il demander la permission au Sénat chaque fois
qu’on veut diffuser nos délibérations? N’est-ce pas une décision
qui appartient au comité?

La présidente : Je vais m’informer aupres du greffier.

Le sénateur Poulin : Que la présidence soit autorisée a
demander au Sénat la permission. C’est la premiére fois que je
vois cela.

La présidente : Est-ce que c’est une permission?

Le greffier : Le comité fait la demande une seule fois au Sénat
et c’est le Sous-comité du programme et de la procédure qui
propose.

Le sénateur Poulin : D’accord, merci.

La présidente : Quelqu’un peut-il proposer la motion?
Le sénateur Tardif : Je propose la motion.

La présidente : Vous plait-il d’adopter la motion?
Des voix : D’accord.

La présidente : Le point 13 a I'ordre du jour concerne I’horaire
des séances réguliéres.

Le sénateur Murray : Je croyais que nous avions convenu que
les séances avaient lieu a partir de 17 h 30, est-ce que cela a
changé?

La présidente : Non, c’est ce qui a toujours été présenté et ce
soir on était pour apporter la recommandation que les séances
réguliéres aient lieu de 17 h 30, jusqu’a 19 h 30. Toutefois, a
I'instant méme, un membre du comité vient de m’aviser que si on
maintient ’heure des séances de 17 h 30 a 19 h 30, il ne pourra
pas participer.

Etant donné que le sénateur Comeau avait demandé aux
sénateurs si cela leur convenait et qu’il semblait y avoir une
entente, cela fait-il une différence entre 17 heures au lieu de
17 h 30?

Le sénateur Murray : J’aurai a réfléchir un peu pour voir les
horaires des compagnies aériennes. On verra.

Le sénateur Losier-Cool : Si nous décidons de changer I’heure
des séances, on doit avertir les whips.

La présidente : On peut décider de tenir nos réunions de
16 heures et 19 heures. C’est seulement dans le cas ou la séance
dépasse 19 heures, il faut en aviser les whips. On pourrait décider
de commencer a 17 h 30.

Le sénateur Losier-Cool : D’accord. Je suis disponible.
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Senator Tardif: [ would have no objection to starting at 5 p.m.,
if that can accommodate members. That may be a reasonable
time, if it is a good compromise. That enables us to move our
meetings up an hour.

Senator Poulin: My first choice would be four o’clock, but if
5 p.m. is better for more members, I will do my best.

The Chairman: When Senator Comeau consulted senators, it
was precisely to push back the meeting time, as several members
of the committee could not make it for 4 p.m. It is highly unlikely
that the meeting time will go back to 4 p.m. All senators seemed
happy with 5:30 p.m. You were not consulted.

What will we do for our next meeting? What is the wish of the
committee?

Senator Champagne: Could you check with the Subcommittee
on Agenda and Procedure that is to meet tomorrow at noon?

Senator Murray: I will go with the consensus.

Senator Champagne: We had all agreed to push the meeting
time back to accommodate members from the Atlantic provinces.

The Chairman: And others too.
Senator Murray: There are other people as well.

Senator Champagne: The final decision could be made
tomorrow at the meeting of the Subcommittee on Agenda and
Procedure.

The Chairman: We can undertake to consult the two other
senators who are not here today, so that it is not earlier than
5 p.m. or 5:30 p.m., if we have no other choice. Does that suit
you, Senator Murray?

Senator Murray: Yes.
The Chairman: We will look at that issue tomorrow.

Senator De Bané: I have given the utmost consideration to our
colleague’s constraints. Over the years, he has shown profound
knowledge of this country as well as his interest for all issues
affecting Canadian unity. Clearly, he has shown that to such an
extent for so many years, that I would really like to do everything
possible for him to be an active member of the committee.

The Chairman: We are going to move on to point 14, Other
Business.

We are going to continue in camera to discuss the committee’s
future business.

The Chairman: I need a motion so that senators’ staff as well as
people from the communications office can remain at the meeting,
and the motion should include transcription if you want the
minutes to be transcribed.

Le sénateur Tardif : Je n’aurais pas d’objection a ce que la
séance commence a 17 heures, si cela peut accommoder
davantage de membres. Cela peut étre une heure raisonnable. Si
c’est un bon compromis. Cela nous permet de devancer d’une
heure nos rencontres.

Le sénateur Poulin : Mon premier choix serait 16 heures, mais
si 17 heures convient a plus de membres, je vais faire mon
possible.

La présidente : Lorsque le sénateur Comeau a consulté les
sénateurs, c’était justement pour repousser les heures de séances,
car plusieurs membres de ce comité ne pouvaient pas se rendre
pour 16 heures. Il est trés peu probable que ’horaire des séances
retourne a 16 heures. Le 17 h 30 semblait plaire a tous les
sénateurs. Vous n’aviez pas été consultée.

Que faisons-nous pour la prochaine réunion? Quelle est la
volonté du comité?

Le sénateur Champagne : Pourriez-vous vérifier auprés du
Sous-comité du programme et de la procédure qui doit se
rencontrer demain midi?

Le sénateur Murray : Je me plierai devant le consensus.

Le sénateur Champagne : Nous étions tous d’accord pour
repousser les rencontres pour accommoder les membres des
provinces de I’Atlantique.

La présidente : Et d’autres aussi.
Le sénateur Murray : Il y a d’autres personnes aussi.

Le sénateur Champagne : La décision finale pourrait étre prise
demain lors de la réunion du Sous-comité du programme et de la
procédure.

La présidente : Nous pouvons nous engager a consulter les
deux autres sénateurs qui ne sont pas ici aujourd’hui, pour que ce
ne soit pas plus tét que 17 heures ou 17 h 30, si on n’a pas le
choix. Cela vous va-t-il, sénateur Murray?

Le sénateur Murray : D’accord.
La présidente : On se penchera sur cette question demain.

Le sénateur De Bané : Je viens d’accorder une trés haute
considération aux contraintes de notre collégue. Il a démontré au
cours des années une profonde connaissance de ce pays et son
intérét pour tout ce qui touche I'unité canadienne. Evidemment, il
en a témoigné tellement depuis tant d’années, j’aimerais beaucoup
faire tout ce qu’il est possible pour qu’il soit un des membres actifs
du comité.

La présidente : Nous allons passer au point 14, qui concerne les
autres travaux.

Nous allons au huis clos pour discuter des travaux futurs du
comité.

La présidente : J°ai besoin d’une motion pour que le personnel
des sénateurs puisse demeurer, ainsi que la personne du bureau
des communications puisse demeurer lors de la réunion et la
motion devrait inclure la transcription, si nous voulons que les
minutes soient transcrites.
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Senator Losier-Cool: I move the motion.

Senator De Bané: May I suggest that the in camera meeting not
include transcription? It is not necessary.

The Chairman: I do not see any problem with that. We will just
ask that senators’ and communications staff remain in the room
for the in camera meeting.

Senator Losier-Cool: Yes.

The committee continued in camera.

OTTAWA, Monday, December 3, 2007

The Standing Senate Committee on Official Languages met
this day at 5:35 p. m. to study and to report from time to time on
the application of the Official Languages Act and of the
regulations and directives made under it, within those
institutions subject to the Act.

The Honourable Maria Chaput (Chair) in the chair.

[Translation]

The Chair: My name is Maria Chaput, chair of the Senate
Standing Committee on Official Languages. Allow me to
introduce the members of the committee: to my far left, is the
vice-chair of the committee, Senator Champagne, then Senator
Comeau; and Senator Murray; and to my right are Senator
Losier-Cool and Senator Tardif.

Today we welcome the Commissioner of Official Languages,
Mr. Graham Fraser, as well as his staff, whom he will introduce
very shortly.

Mr. Fraser has held the office of Commissioner of Official
Languages since October 17, 2006. He is the sixth person to hold
this office. During the first year of his term, he published his first
annual report, a report on language rights and three special
studies on subjects related to official languages, and two audit
reports. He has appeared twice before this committee, the first
time in 2006 and the second in June 2007. This time he is
appearing to sum up the first year of his term.

Commissioner, welcome to the committee; the floor is yours.

Graham Fraser, Commissioner of Official Languages, Office of
the Commissioner of Official Languages: Thank you, Madam
Chair. Accompanying me today are Ms. Johane Tremblay,
Director of the Legal Affairs Branch, Catherine Scott, Director
General of the Policy and Communications Branch, and
Dominique Lemieux, Director General of the Compliance
Assurance Branch.

Madam Chair, I am very pleased to be meeting with you today.
My first year as Commissioner of Official Languages has been an
intense learning experience for me. I have had the opportunity to
develop a greater understanding of the vitality of official language
communities across the country and experience first-hand their
energy and determination to make their pressing needs known to
all levels of government.

Le sénateur Losier-Cool : Je propose cette motion.

Le sénateur De Bané : Puis-je suggérer que la réunion a huis
clos ne comporte pas de transcription? Ce n’est pas nécessaire.

La présidente : Je n’y vois aucun probléme. On demande
uniquement que le personnel des sénateurs et des communications
puisse demeurer durant la réunion a huis clos.

Le sénateur Losier-Cool : Oui.

Le comité poursuit ses travaux a huis clos.

OTTAWA, le lundi 3 décembre 2007

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des langues officielles se réunit
aujourd’hui a 17 h 35 pour étudier, afin d’en faire rapport de
fagon ponctuelle, I’application de la Loi sur les langues officielles,
ainsi que des réglements et instructions en découlant, au sein des
institutions assujetties a la loi.

L’honorable Maria Chaput, (présidente) occupe le fauteuil.

[Frangais]

La présidente : Je m’appelle Maria Chaput, présidente du
Comité sénatorial permanent des langues officielles. J’aimerais
vous présenter les membres du comité; a mon extréme gauche, la
vice-présidente du comité, madame le sénateur Champagne; le
sénateur Comeau; le sénateur Murray; a ma droite, madame
le sénateur Losier-Cool et madame le sénateur Tardif.

Nous accueillons aujourd’hui le commissaire aux langues
officielles, M. Graham Fraser, et son personnel qu’il voudra
bien nous présenter tout a I’heure.

Monsieur Fraser occupe le poste de commissaire aux langues
officielles depuis le 17 octobre 2006. I1 est le sixiéme a occuper ce
poste. Pendant la premiére année de son mandat, il a publié son
premier rapport annuel, un rapport sur les droits linguistiques,
trois études spéciales sur des sujets reliés aux langues officielles et
produit deux rapports de vérification. Il a comparu a deux
reprises devant ce comité, la premiére fois en 2006 et en juin 2007.
Il nous présentera le bilan de sa premiére année de mandat.

Soyez le bienvenu au comité, monsieur le commissaire; la
parole est a vous.

Graham Fraser, commissaire aux langues officielles, Bureau du
Commissariat aux langues officielles : Merci, madame la
présidente. Je suis accompagné de Johane Tremblay des services
juridiques, Catherine Scott des politiques et communications, et
Dominique Lemieux de I’assurance de la conformité.

Madame la présidente, je suis trés heureux de vous rencontrer
aujourd’hui. Ma premiére année en tant que commissaire aux
langues officielles a été pour moi une expérience intense
d’apprentissage. J’ai eu 1’occasion d’approfondir mes
connaissances sur la vitalit¢ des communautés de langues
officielles a travers le pays et de constater de plus prés leur
dynamisme et leur détermination a faire connaitre leurs besoins
criants aux divers paliers du gouvernement.
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Furthermore, I visited a number of these communities across
the country to see this for myself.

[English]

Since I became commissioner, I have appeared before various
parliamentary committees to explain my first annual report as
well as my perspective on such issues as the 2010 Olympic Games,
the relocation of head offices, the regulations of the Official
Languages Act, the Air Canada Public Participation Act, the
mandate of the CBC, the functional approach adopted by the
Canadian Forces, and the suggested modifications to the
Criminal Code to guarantee the language rights of the accused.
I have also had the opportunity to share my vision of linguistic
duality through, among other things, the many interviews and
speeches that I have given in the past year.

Over the past year, I have realized the importance of
parliamentary committee work on official languages. I am
thinking in particular of the study carried out by the Standing
Senate Committee on Official Languages on the consideration
given to official languages in the organization of the
2010 Olympic and Paralympic Winter Games that will be held
in Vancouver and Whistler, B.C. I am aware of the fact that the
committee has met with most of the partners involved and that
the result of its work has allowed it to make 10 well-founded
recommendations to Canadian Heritage and the federal
government.

Immediately upon taking office, I was faced with a
considerable challenge, the major task of examining the many
complaints that were filed after the budget cuts made by the
federal government in September 2006. For the Office of the
Commissioner of Official Languages, this involved a preliminary
examination based on an analysis of the application of Part VII
of the Official Languages Act since it was amended in
November 2005. As you know, I completed my final report on
this subject last October 9.

After taking into account the comments made by the
government and the complainants in response to my
preliminary report, I concluded that the 2006 expenditure
review was not consistent with the Government of Canada’s
commitment as it is expressed in Part VII of the Official
Languages Act or with the obligations of the federal institutions
involved, which must take positive measures to implement this
commitment.

[Translation]

Recently, I decided to intervene in the court proceedings
initiated by the Fédération des communautés francophones et
acadienne to oppose the government’s decision to abolish the
Court Challenges Program. I decided to request intervener status
because the questions brought before the court are of national
interest. This legal recourse will allow the courts to clarify, for the
first time, the scope of the language obligations set forth in
Part VII of the Official Languages Act, which was amended
in 2005.

Drailleurs, j’ai rendu visite a un grand nombre de ces
communautés a travers le pays afin de pouvoir en témoigner
personnellement.

[Traduction]

Depuis mon arrivée, je me suis présenté devant divers comités
parlementaires pour émettre les constats de mon premier rapport
annuel et exposer ma vision, entre autres choses, sur les Jeux
Olympiques de 2010, le déménagement des administrations
centrales, le réglement de la Loi sur les langues officielles, la Loi
sur la participation publique au capital d’Air Canada, I’examen
du mandat de Radio Canada, ’approche fonctionnelle élaborée
par les Forces canadiennes et les modifications suggérées au Code
criminel afin de garantir les droits linguistiques des accusés. Par
ailleurs, j’ai eu I'occasion d’échanger sur ma vision de la dualité
linguistique, particuliécrement lors de nombreuses entrevues et
allocutions que j’ai données depuis un an.

Au cours de la derniére année, j’ai pu constater I'importance
des activités des comités parlementaires sur les langues officielles.
Je pense notamment a ’étude du Comité permanent des langues
officielles du Sénat sur la prise en compte des langues officielles
dans I’organisation des Jeux Olympiques et paralympiques d’hiver
de 2010 qui auront lieu @ Vancouver et a Whistler. Je sais que le
comité a rencontré la plupart des partenaires en cause et le
résultat de ses travaux lui a permis d’émettre 10 recommandations
judicieuses a l’intention de Patrimoine canadien et du
gouvernement fédéral.

Immédiatement aprés mon entrée en fonction, j’ai di relever un
premier défi de taille, c’est-a-dire I'examen de nombreuses plaintes
déposées a la suite des réductions budgétaires effectuées par le
gouvernement fédéral en septembre 2006. Il s’agissait, pour le
commissariat, d’un premier examen reposant sur une analyse de
l’application de la partie VII de la Loi sur les langues officielles
depuis sa modification, en novembre 2005. Comme vous le savez,
j’ai remis mon rapport final sur cette question le 9 octobre dernier.

Aprés avoir pris en compte les commentaires du gouvernement
et des plaignants au sujet de mon rapport préliminaire, j’ai conclu
que l’examen des dépenses de 2006 n’était pas conforme a
I’engagement du gouvernement du Canada, tel qu’il est exprimé
dans la partie VII de la Loi sur les langues officielles, ni aux
obligations des institutions fédérales en cause, lesquelles doivent
prendre des mesures positives afin de mettre en ceuvre cet
engagement.

[Frangais]

Récemment, j’ai pris la décision d’intervenir dans le recours
judiciaire initié par la Fédération des communautés francophones
et acadienne pour s’opposer a la décision du gouvernement
d’abolir le Programme de contestation judiciaire. J’ai demandé le
statut d’intervenant, parce que les questions portées devant la
cour ont un intérét national. Ce recours permettra aux tribunaux
de clarifier, pour la premiére fois, la portée des obligations
linguistiques stipulées dans la partie VII de la Loi sur les langues
officielles, qui a été modifiée en 2005.
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The recourse and its aftermath will have a major impact on all
federal institutions and official language communities.

This past summer, the Office of the Commissioner published
an audit of the health services offered to certain groups, such as
veterans, Aboriginals, inmates and RCMP cadets. Clearly, the
general shortage of available health care workers makes it
difficult to hire bilingual staff.

But the fact remains that all these groups are entitled to receive
services in the official language of their choice.

I therefore recommend that the government act as quickly as
possible to ensure the act is fully respected.

The Office of the Commissioner also carried out several
research projects. In particular, we published three studies
on community vitality in Halifax, Sudbury and Winnipeg, a
follow-up study on international relations and a study on
development of official language minority communities that
depend increasingly on provincial and territorial measures in
education, health and immigration.

I was pleased to hear the francophone Affairs ministers declare
last September that they strongly supported the renewal of the
Action Plan for Official Languages. Provincial government
representatives are anxiously awaiting a response.

Most recently, in its Speech from the Throne, the Government
of Canada informed Canadians that it will develop a second phase
to follow up on the Action Plan, which comes to an end in
March 2008.

This is a much-anticipated initiative that demonstrates the
government’s leadership in linguistic duality.

Furthermore, I was happy to learn today that Bernard Lord,
former Prime Minister of New Brunswick, was appointed Special
Advisor for the consultations on linguistic duality and official
languages. In my opinion, his experience and his passion for both
official languages make him an ideal candidate for the position.
I will keep a close eye on developments.

[English)

One year after being appointed commissioner, I have a better
understanding of the mechanics of the official language policies in
the federal government. I can now confidently say that official
languages cannot advance within the Canadian public service
without strong leadership from its managers. Without strong
leadership, the values associated with linguistic duality become a
burden for federal public servants.

I have also come to the conclusion that linguistic duality is in
fact an essential leadership skill for public service managers. How
can you become a leader if you do not understand those you are
leading? How can you respect members of the public if you are

Le recours et ses suites auront d’importantes répercussions sur
toutes les institutions fédérales et les communautés de langue
officielle.

L’été dernier, le commissariat a publié une vérification des
services de santé offerts a divers groupes tels les anciens
combattants, les Autochtones, les détenus et les cadets de la
GRC. Certes, la pénurie générale de travailleurs de la santé rend
difficile la tache d’embaucher du personnel bilingue.

Mais il demeure que tous ces groupes ont le droit de recevoir
des services dans la langue officielle de leur choix.

Je recommande donc que le gouvernement agisse dans les plus
brefs délais pour assurer le plein respect de la loi.

Le commissariat a également réalisé plusieurs travaux de
recherche. Nous avons notamment publié trois études sur la
vitalité des communautés de Halifax, Sudbury et Winnipeg; une
étude de suivi sur les relations internationales; et une étude sur
I’épanouissement des communautés de langues officielles en
situation minoritaire, qui dépendent de plus en plus des mesures
prises par les provinces et territoires dans les domaines de
I’éducation, de la santé et de 'immigration tout a la fois.

J’étais heureux d’entendre les ministres des Affaires
francophones déclarer, en septembre dernier, qu’ils appuyaient
fermement le renouvellement du Plan d’action pour les langues
officielles. Les représentants des gouvernements provinciaux
attendent la suite avec impatience.

Tout récemment, dans son discours du tréne, le gouvernement
du Canada a informé la population qu’il établirait une deuxiéme
phase pour la poursuite du Plan d’action, qui viendra a échéance
en mars 2008.

Il s’agit d’une initiative trés attendue qui témoigne du
leadership du gouvernement a I’égard de la dualité linguistique.

Drailleurs, aujourd’hui, j’ai été trés heureux d’apprendre que
Bernard Lord, ancien premier ministre du Nouveau-Brunswick,
avait été nommé conseiller spécial chargé des consultations sur la
dualité linguistique et les langues officielles. Grace a son
expérience et sa passion pour nos deux langues officielles, je suis
convaincu qu’il s’agit du candidat idéal. Je suivrai I’évolution du
dossier.

[Traduction]

Un an aprés ma nomination au poste de commissaire, je
comprends mieux les mécanismes d’application des politiques sur
les langues officielles au sein du gouvernement fédéral. Je peux
aujourd’hui affirmer que les langues officielles ne peuvent
s’épanouir dans la fonction publique canadienne sans un
leadership solide de la part des dirigeants. En effet, sans ce
leadership, les valeurs associées a la dualité linguistique se
transforment en fardeau pour les fonctionnaires fédéraux.

Jen suis d’ailleurs venu a la conclusion que la dualité
linguistique, en ce qui concerne les cadres de la fonction
publique fédérale, est en fait une compétence de leadership
essentielle. Comment peut-on exercer un leadership si on ne
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not aware of their language rights and culture? How can you
really understand a country like Canada if you do not speak the
two main languages?

[Translation]

I am convinced more than ever that English and French are
Canadian languages that belong to all of the citizens of this
country. Nationally, bilingualism is essential in several areas of
activity for those who must demonstrate leadership.

Education is therefore paramount, and as a result, I will
continue my efforts to ensure post-secondary institutions
recognize the value of educating bilingual students.

To fulfill this objective, I will be conducting a study in
cooperation with the Association of Universities and Colleges of
Canada on second-language learning opportunities in Canadian
universities.

As you know, my mandate is based on two separate but
complementary functions: promotion and protection.

[English]

The events that marked the first year of my mandate have led
me to reflect on my role as ombudsman and how it relates to the
fundamental need to advance the culture of federal institutions
and make people understand that a strong language policy brings
added value to the federal government. Investigations, audits and
performance report cards remain important tools. However, we
would like to expand our field of activity and are therefore
considering other options. My role as language ombudsman
involves ensuring that the government and federal public service
abide, in a proactive way, by the Official Languages Act.

In a spirit of supporting federal institutions and the
implementation of their obligations, and in order to ensure that
the language rights of citizens, employees and communities are
fully respected, I am reviewing other methods that could be added
to the investigation, audit and report card tools that we already
have. I plan on expanding this role through intervention
mechanisms that are based on a more effective dispute
resolution process and the prevention of problems that cause
these disputes.

[Translation]

It is in the spirit of cooperation and prevention that I am
closely monitoring the planning for the 2010 Olympic Games.
This will be an exciting time for Canada, a time when the entire
world will be watching.

comprend pas les personnes que 1'on dirige? Comment peut-on
respecter les membres du public si 'on ignore leurs droits
linguistiques et leur culture? Comment peut-on vraiment
comprendre un pays comme le Canada si I'on ne parle pas ses
deux langues principales?

[Frangais]

Plus que jamais, je suis convaincu que le frangais et ’anglais
sont des langues canadiennes qui appartiennent a tous les citoyens
et citoyennes de notre pays. A I'échelle nationale, dans de
nombreux secteurs d’activités, il est primordial que les personnes
appelées a exercer un leadership soient bilingues.

C’est dans cette optique que le dossier de I’enseignement prend
toute son importance. Par conséquent, je poursuivrai mes efforts
afin que les établissements d’enseignement postsecondaire
reconnaissent la valeur de la formation d’étudiants bilingue.

Pour atteindre cet objectif, je compte entreprendre, en
collaboration avec 1’Association des universités et colleges du
Canada, une étude sur les possibilités d’apprentissage de la langue
seconde dans les universités canadiennes.

Comme vous le savez, mon mandat repose sur deux sphéres
d’intervention distinctes, mais complémentaires, soit la promotion
et la protection.

[Traduction]

Les événements qui ont marqué la premiére année de mon
mandat m’ont incité & me pencher sur mon réle d’ombudsman
par rapport a la nécessité primordiale de faire évoluer la culture
des institutions fédérales et de faire comprendre qu’une politique
linguistique forte constitue, pour le gouvernement fédéral, une
valeur ajoutée. Les enquétes, les vérifications et les bulletins de
rendement des institutions demeurent des outils importants, mais
nous voulons élargir notre champ d’action en examinant d’autres
options. Mon réle d’ombudsman linguistique consiste a veiller a
ce que le gouvernement et la fonction publique fédérale se
conforment de fagon proactive a la Loi sur les langues officielles.

Soucieux d’appuyer les institutions fédérales dans la mise en
ceuvre de leurs obligations et de faire en sorte que les droits
linguistiques du public, des employés et des communautés soient
pleinement respectés, j'examine d’autres fagons de faire qui
pourraient s’ajouter au processus déja existant d’enquéte, de
vérification et de production de bulletins de rendement. J’envisage
d’¢étoffer ce role au moyen de mécanismes d’interventions axées
sur une résolution plus efficace des différends et la prévention des
problémes qui suscitent ces différends.

[Frangais]

C’est dans cet esprit de collaboration et de prévention que je
surveille de prés 1’évolution du dossier des Jeux olympiques de
2010. Il s’agira d’une période excitante pour le Canada, pendant
laquelle I’attention du monde entier sera tournée vers lui.
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We are proud to live in a country that recognizes the
importance of its linguistic duality, and that is why Canada’s
bilingual image must be unequivocal, whether at international
entry points like the Vancouver and Toronto airports, on
VIA Rail or at U.S. border crossings.

There is still time for us to prepare, and together with different
partners, including the francophone community, we must get to
work.

This is why the Office of the Commissioner is getting ready to
study the preparatory work of the organizing committee of the
2010 Olympics from the point of view of linguistic duality.
I would like to take the findings and recommendations of your
recent report as a starting point. We intend to publish the results
of this study in the fall of 2008, which will give the Organizing
Committee time to make adjustments, if necessary.

My hope is that this major event will be a source of national
pride, rather than a source of criticism.

In addition, I am following up on a recommendation you made
in your May 2007 report on the relocation of head offices of
federal institutions, in which the Office of the Commissioner was
asked to carry out a study on the horizontal coordination of the
government’s official languages policies. We have asked Donald
Savoie, a well-known expert in public administration and
horizontal management, to help us conduct this study. It would
be my pleasure to share these results with you in a few months.

Also in 2008, the Office of the Commissioner will review all of
the training offered by the Canadian Forces to determine the
extent to which training opportunities are offered in both official
languages. Obviously, we are working closely with the
ombudsman at National Defence, Yves Co6té, to ensure our
processes are complementary.

We will also continue reviewing official language community
vitality in order to recommend tools that will help them better
focus their efforts with federal institutions to implement Part VII
of the act as effectively as possible.

This is an opportunity for federal institutions to reaffirm the
role they must play in implementing Part VII.

I will also continue communicating to members of the public
service my vision of leadership in terms of official languages. At
present, a less thorough, even minimalist application of the
Official Languages Act appears to be taking place within the
federal public service, particularly in terms of “active offer”.
Without sustained leadership from managers, backsliding is
imminent.

The Clerk of the Privy Council launched an initiative to renew
the public service; clearly, linguistic duality must find its place in
all parts of this initiative.

Nous sommes fiers de vivre dans un pays qui reconnait
I'importance de sa dualité linguistique. C’est pourquoi I'image du
Canada bilingue doit étre sans équivoque, que ce soit aux points
d’entrée internationaux comme les aéroports de Vancouver ou de
Toronto, sur les voies de VIA Rail ou encore aux postes
frontaliers que nous partageons avec nos voisins américains.

Il reste encore du temps pour nous préparer a cette grande
rencontre des nations et de concert avec les différents
intervenants, dont le milieu communautaire francophone. Nous
devons nous mettre a I’ceuvre.

C’est pourquoi le commissariat s’appréte a étudier les
préparatifs du comité organisateur des Jeux olympiques de 2010
sous I'angle de la dualité linguistique. Je veux prendre comme
point de départ les constats et les recommandations formulés dans
votre récent rapport. Nous comptons publier les résultats de cette
étude des I'automne 2008, ce qui laissera au comité organisateur
du temps pour apporter les correctifs nécessaires s’il y a lieu.

Je voudrais que ce grand événement soit une source de fierté
nationale plutét que matiére a critique.

D’autre part, je donne suite a la recommandation que vous
avez formulée dans votre rapport de mai 2007 sur le
déménagement des siéges sociaux d’institutions fédérales, selon
lequel le commissariat devrait entreprendre une étude sur la
coordination horizontale de I’action gouvernementale en matiére
de langues officielles. Nous avons demandé a Donald Savoie, un
expert reconnu des rouages du gouvernement et de la gestion
horizontale, de nous aider a mener cette étude. Je serai heureux de
vous en présenter les résultats dans quelques mois.

Egalement, au cours de I’année 2008, le commissariat
effectuera la vérification de I’ensemble de la formation offerte
au personnel des Forces canadiennes afin de déterminer dans
quelle mesure les possibilités d’apprentissage sont fournies dans
les deux langues officielles. 11 va de soi que nous travaillons de
prés avec I'ombudsman des forces nationales, Me Yves Coté, pour
assurer la complémentarité de nos démarches.

En outre, nous poursuivrons ’examen de la vitalité des
communautés de langues officielles afin de suggérer des outils
qui leur permettront de mieux canaliser leurs efforts aupres des
institutions fédérales en vue d’une application optimale de la
partie VII de la loi.

Dans ce contexte, c’est 'occasion de réaffirmer le role que
doivent jouer les institutions fédérales dans la mise en ceuvre de la
partie VII.

Je continuerai également de communiquer, au sein de la
fonction publique ma vision du leadership en ce qui a trait aux
langues officielles. Je constate, a ’heure actuelle, une application
moins rigoureuse, voire minimaliste, de la Loi sur les langues
officielles dans la fonction publique fédérale, particuliérement en
ce qui concerne I’offre active. Sans un leadership soutenu de la
part des dirigeants, nous assisterons a un recul imminent.

Le greffier du Conseil privé a lancé une initiative de
renouvellement de la fonction publique, et il va sans dire que la
dualité linguistique doit trouver sa place dans toutes les facettes
de cette initiative.
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This is another issue I am monitoring closely.

[English]

On the same topic, the data I presented in my annual report on
service to the public and language of work continues to be of
concern. I am worried that these shortcomings will only grow if
the public service senses a lack of commitment to official
languages by the federal government. While Canadian society
may consist of many cultural identities, English and French
remain its two official languages. Our official languages and
multiculturalism policies should work together to promote respect
and equality of opportunity.

I have begun to explore the relationship between linguistic
duality and cultural diversity, in particular through a forum in
Toronto last month. I intend to continue my work in this area in
order to better understand how Canadians of diverse origins view
their relationship with the two official languages and to take this
into account in our work and in our recommendations to the
government.

I have shared some of my priorities with you for the
second year of my mandate. Obviously, the Commissioner of
Official Languages is not solely responsible for Canadian
linguistic duality, as the government has an important role to
play. As such, I expect to see results from the government over the
course of the next year in three specific areas. The government
must absolutely move into action and develop and implement the
next phase of the Action Plan for Official Languages. It must also
show strong leadership in order to improve the active offer of
service to the Canadian public. Finally, it must consider the
knowledge of both official languages as a leadership skill during
the renewal process for the public service.

[Translation]

I hope that you as well, as members of this committee, will
examine these issues, which I consider among the most pressing.

I would be happy to answer any questions.

The Chair: Thank you very much, Commissioner. My first
question is a rather general one. Before taking up your current
position, you had the vantage point of a journalist as you
followed the issues in the area of official languages. Has your
perspective changed now that you are in your new position?

Mr. Fraser: In some ways, yes. When I was a journalist, my
professional life was based in central Canada: Toronto, Montreal,
Quebec and Ottawa; so I rarely got a close-up view of the issues
affecting minority communities, especially outside Quebec. I lived
in Quebec for 10 years, so I had some sense of the problems facing
the anglophone minority, but what really struck me, and I think
that you yourselves also made this observation, is the vitality of
the minority communities throughout the country, in British
Columbia, Alberta, Saskatchewan, Manitoba, in the Maritimes
and in Ontario.

Voila un autre dossier que je suis de pres.

[Traduction)

A ce sujet, les données sur le service au public et la langue de
travail que j’ai présentées dans mon rapport annuel continuent de
m’inquiéter. Je crains une accélération du relachement constaté si
la fonction publique doute de ’engagement du gouvernement a
I’égard des langues officielles. S’il est vrai que la société
canadienne se compose de nombreuses identités culturelles, le
frangais et I’anglais demeurent ses deux langues officielles. Nos
politiques en matiére de langues officielles et de multiculturalisme
devraient étre en symbiose, de maniére a promouvoir le respect de
l’autre et 1'égalité des chances.

J’ai commencé a explorer les liens qui existent entre la dualité
linguistique et la diversité culturelle, notamment par la tenue d’un
forum a Toronto le mois dernier. J’entends poursuivre ce travail
afin de mieux comprendre la relation qu’entretiennent les
Canadiens et Canadiennes d’origines diverses avec les
deux langues officielles et de pouvoir en tenir compte dans nos
démarches et dans nos recommandations au gouvernement.

Je vous ai fait part de certaines de mes priorités pour la
deuxiéme année de mon mandat. Evidemment, le commissaire
aux langues officielles n’est pas le seul intervenant dans la cause
de la dualité linguistique canadienne car le gouvernement a aussi
un réle important a jouer. Ainsi, dans I’'année a venir je m’attends
a voir des résultats de la part du gouvernement a I’égard de
trois enjeux particuliers. Le gouvernement doit absolument
passer a l’acte en ce qui concerne I’élaboration et la mise en
ceuvre de la prochaine phase du Plan d’action pour les langues
officielles. Il doit aussi exercer un leadership ferme pour améliorer
I’offre de service au public canadien. Enfin, il doit tenir compte de
la connaissance des deux langues officielles en tant que
compétence de leadership dans le cadre du processus de
renouvellement de la fonction publique.

[Frangais)

Jespére que les membres du comité jugeront bon de se pencher
sur ces questions, que je consideére des plus pressantes.

C’est avec plaisir que je répondrai a vos questions.

La présidente : Merci beaucoup, monsieur le commissaire. Ma
premiére question est d’ordre général. Avant d’occuper vos
fonctions actuelles, vous suiviez et observiez les questions
entourant les langues officielles de la perspective d’un
journaliste. Maintenant, dans vos nouvelles fonctions, est-ce que
votre regard sur ces questions a changé?

M. Fraser : Dans un sens oui. Quand j’étais journaliste, ma
carriére était concentrée au Canada central, Toronto, Montréal,
Québec et Ottawa; et j’avais rarement vu de prés les questions des
communautés minoritaires, surtout hors Québec. J’avais vécu
dix ans au Québec, donc j’avais une certaine idée des problémes
de la minorité anglophone, mais ce qui m’a beaucoup
impressionné, je pense que vous avez vous-méme fait le méme
constat, c’est la vitalité des communautés minoritaires a travers le
pays, en Colombie-Britannique, en Alberta, en Saskatchewan, au
Manitoba, dans les Maritimes et en Ontario.
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That was a discovery for me. When I talk about a year of
intensive learning, I am really referring to learning about a very
different context and the different reactions and priorities of the
various communities.

The Chair: Is there an issue that you are specifically concerned
about?

Mr. Fraser: 1 am closely monitoring the government’s
commitment to renew the Action Plan. I believe that it is
important for the government to adopt a comprehensive,
strategic, medium-range approach.

I have also observed that it is not always easy for a government
to unquestioningly accept a program developed by a previous
government. I think that it is natural that this government should
call on Mr. Lord to conduct a round of consultations.

When the government made known its firm intention to hold
consultations, I was initially a little fearful it would prolong the
process. But I am pleased to see today that the consultative
process will take place over a very short period of time. So it is my
hope that the government will conserve the successful elements of
the Action Plan which comes to an end in late March, that it will
strengthen the areas of the Action Plan where success was less
evident, and that it will explore aspects such as the cultural
dimension.

Senator Goldstein: Thank you for your testimony, Mr. Fraser.
You have answered my first question, that is, to what extent
Mr. Lord’s appointment will help you to achieve what you set out
to do in the second year of your mandate.

Here is my second question: you refer to your involvement in
the legal action for the reinstatement of the Court Challenges
Program. You appeared before the Federal Court as an
intervenor in this case.

What is happening with this legal action? Is the matter ready to
go to trial or are there still preliminary procedures to deal with
before this occurs?

Mr. Fraser: It is my understanding that hearings have already
been announced for January 21 and 22 in Fredericton. I have
already signed an affidavit before the federal court asking for
intervenor status. We still have not received formal approval from
the court, but given past experience, I expect permission to be
given, and we are currently putting together our arguments.

Perhaps Ms. Tremblay has something to add concerning the
preparation of this file.

Johane Tremblay, Director, Legal Affairs Branch, Office of the
Commissioner of Official Languages: No, I do not. In fact, we are
waiting for the court’s decision on our request for intervenor
status, and we expect to get an answer soon.

Senator Goldstein: Has the federal government challenged your
request?

Cela a été une découverte pour moi. Lorsque je parle d’une
année d’apprentissage intense, c’est surtout I'apprentissage de la
situation trés différente et souvent la réaction et les priorités
différentes de ces communautés.

La présidente : Y a-t-il une question qui vous préoccupe plus
qu’une autre?

M. Fraser : Je regarde de prés ’engagement du gouvernement
de renouveler le Plan d’action. Il est important, a mon avis, que le
gouvernement arrive avec une approche globale et stratégique a
moyen terme.

Je constate aussi que ce n’est pas toujours facile pour un
gouvernement d’accepter sans question un programme qui a été
mis en place par le gouvernement précédent. Je pense que c’est
naturel qu’ils fassent appel & M. Lord pour mener une ronde de
consultations.

Je craignais un peu, au début, lorsque le gouvernement a
affirmé sa détermination d’avoir des consultations, que cela
allonge le processus. Mais je suis heureux de constater
aujourd’hui que c’est une période trés limitée pour ces
consultations. J’espére donc que le gouvernement gardera ce qui
a été des succes dans le plan d’action qui vient a échéance a la fin
mars, renforcera les sections du plan d’action ou il y avait moins
de réussites, et qu’il explorera d’autres volets, comme le volet
culturel par exemple.

Le sénateur Goldstein : Merci de votre témoignage, monsieur
Fraser. Vous avez répondu a ma premiére question, a savoir dans
quelle mesure la nomination de M. Lord pourrait vous aider a
accomplir les tdches que vous avez entreprises pour la deuxiéme
année de votre mandat.

Ma deuxiéme question est la suivante : vous parlez de votre
intervention dans la procédure intentée pour la réintroduction du
programme de contestation judiciaire. Vous étes intervenu comme
une personne intéressée et ¢’est au niveau de la Cour fédérale que
votre intervention a eu lieu.

Qu’elle est 1'état de cette procédure? Est-ce qu’elle est mire
pour un procés ou y a-t-il encore des procédures préliminaires a
accomplir avant que le proces ait lieu?

M. Fraser : Si je comprends bien, des jours d’audiences sont
déja annoncés pour les 21 et 22 janvier a Fredericton. J’ai déja
signé un affidavit pour demander aux cours fédérales le droit
d’intervenir. On n’a pas encore recu ’aval formel de la cour, mais
étant donné notre expérience dans le passé, je m’attends a ce que
cette permission soit accordée, et nous sommes en train de
préparer nos arguments.

Peut-étre que Mme Tremblay pourrait ajouter quelque chose
sur la préparation du dossier.

Johane Tremblay, directrice, Direction des affaires juridiques,
Bureau du Commissariat aux langues officielles : Non, en fait nous
sommes dans I'attente du jugement de la cour concernant notre
demande d’autorisation pour intervenir dans le dossier, et nous
devrions recevoir la décision sous peu.

Le sénateur Goldstein : Est-ce que le gouvernement fédéral a
contesté votre demande?
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Ms. Tremblay: It has not opposed it. The federal government
gave a response, which was more technical in nature. They are not
opposed, per se, to the Commissioner intervening.

Senator Tardif: Commissioner, I would like to congratulate
you on a great job in your first year and on the priorities you have
set for your second year. I think that you are going to have a very
busy year ahead with everything you have set out to do.

Mr. Fraser: And we have already started the ball rolling!

Senator Tardif: I would like to ask you some questions about
Part VII of the Official Languages Act. As you are aware, our
committee will be carrying out a study on the implementation of
Part VII. 1 would like to get your opinion on the federal
institutions we should invite to appear before our committee.
Are there some which should be invited in preference to others?
Should we focus on any particular sectors, in your opinion?

Mr. Fraser: One thing that struck me when I reviewed the
departments’ and institutions’ reports was all the positive and
practical measures taken by the Business Development Bank of
Canada. I was somewhat dissatisfied with the reaction in the
reports from certain departments. This is perhaps understandable,
but there were very few concrete measures taken, despite meetings
being organized and staff being advised the importance of the
issue. The BDC went to great lengths to say: “This is what we are
doing in the Eastern Townships for anglophone groups, and here
is what we are doing in Acadian communities for minority
francophone groups. . .” I think it might be useful to hear how
they went about things.

I also believe we need to remind certain institutions that they
need to reflect on the importance of these new obligations. I am
thinking particularly of Canada Post, Public Works and
Government Services Canada, and Service Canada, which has
an increasing number of one-stop shops. I am also thinking of
Health Canada; this ties in to the importance given to health in
the action plan. Clearly, I believe that Part VII may constitute a
way of consolidating the major gains made in the area of health
under the Action Plan.

Senator Tardif: You mentioned that there are still several
federal institutions and departments which are having trouble
understanding their obligations under Part VII, and especially
their new obligations.

In your opinion, what are the main hurdles for the
implementation of Part VII and these new obligations?

Mr. Fraser: The new obligations in Part VII are interesting
because they open the door to a new type of collaborative
relationship with the communities.

Often, in hierarchical departments, where there is a top-down
approach, innovation and openness to a collaborative approach
are hampered. To begin with, I do not think that the message
about the new obligations has really got through to senior

Mme Tremblay : IIs n’ont pas pris de position contraire. Ils ont
présenté une réponse, mais plutot a caractére technique. Ils ne
s’opposent pas comme tel a I'intervention du commissaire.

Le sénateur Tardif : Monsieur le commissaire, je tiens a vous
féliciter pour votre excellent travail lors de la premiére année,
ainsi que pour les priorités que vous avez établies pour votre
deuxiéme année. Je crois que vous allez avoir une année trés
chargée avec tout le travail que vous proposez.

M. Fraser : C’est déja commencé!

Le sénateur Tardif : J’aimerais vous poser des questions
concernant la partie VII de la Loi sur les langues officielles.
Comme vous le savez, notre comité entreprendra une étude sur la
mise en ceuvre de la partie VII. J’aimerais avoir votre opinion sur
les institutions fédérales que nous devrions inviter & comparaitre
devant nous. Est-ce qu’il y en a qui devraient étre invitées plus que
d’autres? Y a-t-il des secteurs que nous devrions entendre, selon
vous?

M. Fraser : Une des choses qui m’ont frappé quand j’ai
regardé les rapports des ministéres et des institutions, c’est
combien de mesures positives et pratico-pratiques, ont été prises
par la Banque de développement du Canada. Souvent, ce que je
trouve peut-étre compréhensible, mais qui m’a laissé sur ma faim
vis-a-vis de la réaction des rapports de certains ministéres, c’est
qu’on a organisé des réunions, on a communiqué aux employés
I'importance du sujet, mais il y a eu trés peu d’interventions
concrétes, tandis que la BDC avait fait toute une série disant :
«voici ce qu’on a fait dans I’Estrie pour les groupes
d’anglophones, en Acadie pour des groupes minoritaires
francophones [...] ». Je pense que, du c6té positif, il serait utile
de les entendre dire comment ils ont procédé.

Je pense qu’il faudrait rappeler a certaines institutions qu’ils
devraient réfléchir sur I'importance de ces nouvelles obligations, je
songe peut-étre a Postes Canada, Travaux publics et services
gouvernementaux ou Service Canada qui, de plus en plus, a une
série de guichets. Je pense aussi a Santé Canada; cela rejoint un
peu l'importance du volet de santé dans le plan d’action.
Effectivement, je pense que la partie VII pourrait étre une fagon
de renforcer les gains importants dans le domaine de la santé qui
ont été faits grace au Plan d’action.

Le sénateur Tardif : Vous avez indiqué qu’il y a encore
plusieurs institutions fédérales ou ministéres, qui ont du mal a
comprendre leurs obligations par rapport a la partie VII, surtout
les nouvelles obligations.

Quels sont d’aprées vous les principaux obstacles qui empéchent
la mise en ceuvre de la partie VII et ces nouvelles obligations?

M. Fraser : Ce qui est intéressant dans les nouvelles obligations
de la partie VII, c’est que cela ouvre la porte & une nouvelle
approche de collaboration avec les communautés.

Souvent, dans certains ministéres qui sont hiérarchisés, ou cela
passe de haut en bas, c’est une tradition qui parfois se préte mal a
I'innovation, a I’ouverture et a la collaboration. Je pense que
d’une part, le message pour dire, & travers le pays, qu’on a de
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management in the departments. I also think that there is a lack
of consistency and leadership when it comes to making sure these
obligations are met.

I have frequently observed that the major success stories spring
from being imaginative. As I mentioned in the annual report,
someone working for Parks Canada in Jasper offered a
community organization free use of its premises in exchange for
French conversation workshops. That is very practical and
grassroots. Let me give you another example. Mr. Coté, the
CEO of VIA Rail, took his responsibilities seriously and
consulted the FCFA executive and ended up, after a
consultative process, becoming a sponsor of the spring summit.
So, there you have a very local example and another example
from the head of an organization. In both examples, this
collaborative approach has led to doors opening up for
communities.

Senator Tardif: You did not mention Canadian Heritage,
which is responsible for coordinating the implementation of
Part VII. Do you think that Canadian Heritage is properly
fulfilling its coordination role?

Mr. Fraser: There is a conflict of interest which was raised in
the first annual report, insofar as Canadian Heritage is
responsible for the implementation and coordination of official
languages programs. And that is why we have called on Professor
Savoie to review the issue of governance, as per your suggestion in
your report. Prior to the government’s decision to transfer the
coordination role from the Privy Council to the Department of
Canadian Heritage, things were different. Obviously, when a
directive was issued by the Privy Council, people often snapped to
attention far more quickly than when there was a horizontal
directive from a department. That is something that I observed
this spring. So in order to see how the system works, in practice,
we have called on Mr. Savoie to carry out a study.

Senator Champagne: Good afternoon, Commissioner. Last
summer, | had plenty of time to read the newspapers and there
were articles about the problems the anglophone minority was
experiencing when it came to getting health care services in
Quebec. Having spent almost six months in the hospital system in
2007, I am fully aware that there are problems in terms of the
number of staff in hospitals across Quebec, but I was not aware
that there were problems that were unique to the anglophone
minority.

What have you been told? What are the deficiencies? Are there
other really problematic sectors? Until recently, I was the only
female Quebecker, so I took it upon myself to advocate on behalf
of our minorities in Quebec. What are the criticisms that you have
heard?

Mr. Fraser: Well, there are several things I have to say. To
begin with, there is a demographic problem when it comes to the
minority anglophone community getting government services and
health care. There is a whole segment of the population that,
while in the workforce, did not necessarily need to know French
to get by. Now, these individuals have retired, and they are trying
to get social and health care services but health care institutions

nouvelles obligations n’a pas vraiment été envoyé a la direction
des ministéres. Puis, d’autre part, il y a souvent un manque de
cohésion et de leadership dans I’application de ces obligations.

Jai souvent remarqué que les grands succés sont venus de
I'imagination. J’ai déja mentionné, dans le rapport annuel, le cas
de Parcs Canada ou quelqu’un a Jasper a offert a un organisme
communautaire des locaux gratuitement en échange de legons de
conversation frangaise. C’est trés pratique, trés local. Et pour citer
un autre cas, il y a eu M. C6té, le p.d.g. de VIA Rail, qui a pris au
sérieux ses responsabilités, qui a consulté I'exécutif de la FCFA et
a fini, a la suite de ces consultations, par devenir un
commanditaire du sommet au printemps. Donc, un exemple est
trés local et 'autre exemple vient du leader de I'organisme. Dans
les deux cas, c’est a la suite d’une collaboration, d’une porte
ouverte aux communautés.

Le sénateur Tardif : Vous n’avez pas mentionné Patrimoine
canadien, qui est responsable de la coordination de la mise en
ccuvre de la partie VII. Croyez-vous que Patrimoine canadien
joue suffisamment son réle de coordination?

M. Fraser : 11 y a ce conflit d’intéréts qui existe au sein du
probléme soulevé dans le premier rapport annuel dans le fait que
Patrimoine canadien est responsable de I’application des
programmes de langues officielles et de la coordination. C’est
d’ailleurs pour cette raison qu’on a demandé au professeur Savoie
de faire une analyse, comme vous l'avez suggéré dans votre
rapport, sur la question de la gouvernance. Avant la décision du
gouvernement de faire ce transfert de coordination du Conseil
privé au ministéere du Patrimoine canadien, c’est évident que
lorsqu'une directive venait du Conseil privé, la réaction était
souvent plus rapide que si elle venait horizontalement d’un
ministére. C’est une constatation que j’ai faite au printemps. Puis,
pour voir exactement comment cela fonctionne, en pratique, on a
demandé a M. Savoie d’en faire une étude.

Le sénateur Champagne : Bonjour, monsieur le commissaire.
L’été dernier, j’ai eu beaucoup de temps pour lire les journaux et
je voyais, entre autres, des articles concernant les problémes
qu’éprouve la minorité anglophone dans les services de santé du
Québec. Pour avoir passé presque six mois dans nos milieux
hospitaliers au cours de 2007, je suis bien consciente qu’il y a des
problémes dans la quantité de personnel dans tous les hopitaux du
Québec, mais je n’étais pas consciente qu’il y avait des problémes
particuliers face a la minorité anglophone.

De quoi vous a-t-on parlé? Quelles sont ces lacunes? Y a-t-il
d’autres secteurs ou il y a vraiment des problémes? J’étais, jusqu’a
récemment, la seule Québécoise, alors je me fais le défenseur de
nos minorités au Québec. Quels sont les reproches que I’on vous
fait a ce sujet?

M. Fraser : Je dirais plusieurs choses. D’abord, il y a un
probléme démographique qui touche la minorité anglophone face
aux services gouvernementaux et surtout des services de santé, ou
je dirais qu’il y a toute une tranche de la population qui, pendant
la période ou ils étaient au travail, n’avait pas nécessairement a
connaitre le frangais pour réussir dans la vie. Maintenant qu’ils
sont a la retraite, ils sont souvent bénéficiaires des services sociaux
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often have trouble responding. And that is why Quebec signed an
agreement with the federal government as part of the action plan,
and the result is that 4,000 employees of Quebec’s health care
system have taken specialized English-language classes so that
they can provide health care services in English to anglophones.

Even if this initiative was warmly received, I have been told
that treating a 10-year-old child with a broken arm requires very
limited knowledge of English, whereas one would need to be
significantly more fluent when dealing with someone showing the
first signs of Alzheimer’s disease.

A resident of Granby has told me that one particular segment
of the aging population suffering from age-related problems
places stress on the health care system.

Jeffrey Hale Hospital is another success story. Formerly an
anglophone institution, the hospital slowly transformed into a
francophone institution. Transforming this institution into a
clinic with more limited services, must have required a determined
effort on the part of the anglophone community in Quebec. As a
result, the Jeffrey Hale Clinic is now associated with St. Brigid’s
Home.

This approach specifically addresses the aging population, as
they pose particular problem in the anglophone community. They
are the least bilingual group in the anglophone community, which
has evolved over several decades. Things are more difficult for
people 65 or 70 years of age or older, who lived most of their lives
in a different era of Quebec’s history.

Senator Champagne: Another possible factor is that a lot of our
hospital staff — nurses, attendants, and even doctors — are new
Canadians whose first language is neither French nor English.
Many speak Spanish or Arabic, as I have noticed in some of
Montreal’s major hospitals. If we ask these people to move to
places like Granby or Sherbrooke, where there are more
anglophones, the same problem would probably occur.

Mr. Fraser: That is possible, and it is an interesting example of
the challenge that arises in trying to balance diversity and duality.

Senator Champagne: Do you receive complaints from the
anglophone communities concerning sectors other than health
care?

Mr. Fraser: In rural areas, and this is much less the case in
Montreal, sometimes it is difficult to receive bilingual service;
however, there are not a huge number of complaints. Perhaps
Ms. Lemieux can provide details?

Dominique Lemieux, Director General, Compliance Assurance
Branch, Office of the Commissioner of Official Languages: Madam
Chair, I unfortunately do not have the exact number of
complaints lodged by anglophones in Quebec, but I can tell you

et des services de santé et souvent, les institutions de santé ont des
difficultés a leur répondre. C’est en fonction de ce probléme que le
Québec a signé un accord avec le gouvernement fédéral dans le
contexte du plan d’action et le résultat est que 4000 employés du
systéme de santé au Québec ont suivi un cours spécialisé en
anglais afin d’étre en mesure de donner des services de santé en
anglais aux anglophones.

Méme s’ils accueillent cette initiative a bras ouverts, quelqu’un
m’a expliqué que fournir des services médicaux a un enfant de
dix ans qui a le bras cassé, exige une connaissance assez limitée de
I’anglais, alors que vous aurez besoin d’une connaissance
linguistique beaucoup plus approfondie vis-a-vis quelqu’un qui
ressent les premiers symptomes de la maladie d’Alzheimer.

Quelqu’un de Granby me parlait du fait qu'une tranche de la
population vieillissante a des problémes reliés au vieillissement et
que cela apporte des difficultés au systéme de santé.

Il y a une autre situation ou cela s’est bien résolu, comme a
I’hépital Jeffrey Hale, qui était, dans le passé, une institution
anglophone, et qui s’est transformé peu a peu en une institution
francophone. Cela a di prendre un effort déterminé de la part de
la communauté anglophone de Québec de transformer cette
institution en clinique, plus limitée. Donc, il y a la clinique Jeffrey
Hale qui est reliée au St. Brigid’s Home.

Ces démarches visent vraiment la population vieillissante qui
est un probléme particulier pour la communauté anglophone
parce que c’est la tranche la moins bilingue de la minorité
anglophone qui s’est transformée, depuis plusieurs décennies.
C’est plus difficile pour les gens qui ont plus de 65 ou 70 ans, qui
ont fait leur vie dans une autre période de I’histoire québécoise.

Le sénateur Champagne : Il y a peut-étre aussi le fait qu’il y a
beaucoup de notre nouveau personnel hospitalier — je parle
d’infirmiéres, de préposés ou méme de médecins — qui sont des
Néo-Canadiens dont la premiére langue n’est ni le francais ni
I’anglais. Beaucoup parlent I’espagnol, ’arabe — je I’ai vécu dans
les grands hopitaux de Montréal —, et si on devait demander a
ces gens d’aller travailler en région, que ce soit Granby ou
Sherbrooke, ou il y a plus d’anglophones, le probléme serait
probablement le méme.

M. Fraser : C’est possible, c’est un exemple intéressant du défi
de la diversité a la dualité.

Le sénateur Champagne : Est-ce que vous recevez des plaintes
de la communauté anglophone dans d’autres secteurs que celui du
secteur de la santé?

M. Fraser : En région, par exemple — et c’est beaucoup moins
le cas a Montréal —, c’est parfois plus difficile de recevoir un
service dans les deux langues, cependant, il n’y a pas énormément
de plaintes. Mme Lemieux pourrait peut-étre vous donner plus de
détails?

Dominique Lemieux, directrice générale, direction générale de
I’assurance de la conformité, Bureau du Commissariat aux langues
officielles : Madame la présidente, malheureusement, je n’ai pas
les chiffres exacts concernant les plaintes déposées par des
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that for Canada as a whole, anglophones have filed 14 per cent of
the complaints received since April 1 of last year.

Senator Champagne: That is already too high.

Senator Poulin: Given the snowstorm underway, it is rather
impressive to see you and your team here. We were quite proud
when you assumed office because throughout your career, you
have always recognized the value of this tradition and the status
of bilingualism in Canada, an asset that is recognized throughout
the world. It is a rather unique and complex asset that you have
always acknowledged as a source of wealth, and one that is
experienced differently in all areas of the country, including
Ontario. As you know, I represent northern Ontario in the
Senate, and the challenges we face pertaining to official languages
in this particular region are different from the official languages
challenges that people living in eastern Ontario face.

You have applauded today’s appointment of Bernard Lord to
lead a study. I, for one, think this is a very good thing, but
unfortunately, it comes too late. The news release says that
regional consultations will take place during the first two weeks of
December, in seven cities across the country. This will be
fantastic, because a single team will be able to visit at least
three cities at the same time.

Given an issue as complex as this one, in a country as complex
as ours — I will employ the very same terms you used in your
annual report, that is to say, minimalist — is the current
government taking a minimalist approach in dealing with an issue
as significant as this one currently is?

Mr. Fraser: | hope not. In my opinion, there are two ways of
looking at this. Initially, when the government insisted that these
consultations were necessary, my fear was that the consultations
would be lengthy and cause delays. However, having
consultations that are focused and swift has its advantages. It
must be said that we are not lacking data with respect to renewal
of the Action Plan: in June, the Sommet des communautés
francophones et acadienne put forward recommendations; the
House committee made 39 recommendations on the vitality of
communities living in a minority situation; and this committee has
made many recommendations in many reports pertaining to
vitality, such as your report on Nova Scotia, for example. As
such, I am convinced that these recommendations are not going
to disappear; they are part and parcel of the stock that Mr. Lord
can draw on when he formulates his recommendations to the
government.

I would add the following: for now, in any case, I am awaiting
results. If the Prime Minister wishes to appoint another
commission before unveiling an overall and strategic renewal of
the Action Plan, I think this is a good thing. I am not opposed to
verifying the value of some of these recommendations. I
understand that it is sometimes difficult for a government to

anglophones au Québec, mais je peux vous dire qu’une
proportion de 14 p. 100 des plaintes vient des anglophones pour
la grandeur du Canada depuis le ler avril dernier.

Le sénateur Champagne : C’est déja trop.

Le sénateur Poulin : Vu la petite tempéte hivernale a I'extérieur,
c’est trés impressionnant de pouvoir vous accueillir avec votre
équipe. Nous avons été particuliérement fiers de votre arrivée
comme commissaire parce que tout au long de votre carriére, vous
avez toujours reconnu la richesse de cette tradition et de ce statut
de bilinguisme au Canada, richesse reconnue par le monde entier.
C’est une richesse assez unique et aussi assez complexe que vous
avez toujours reconnue et une richesse vécue de fagon différente
dans divers coins du pays, méme en Ontario. Comme vous le
savez, je représente le nord de I’Ontario au Sénat et nos défis face
aux deux langues officielles dans le nord de I’Ontario sont
différents des défis des langues officielles méme dans l'est de
I’Ontario.

Je vois que vous avez beaucoup apprécié la nomination de
Bernard Lord aujourd’hui pour faire une étude. Moi, je trouve
cela vraiment trés bien, mais malheureusement trés tard. Je lis,
dans le communiqué de presse, que les consultations régionales
auront lieu au cours des deux premiéres semaines de décembre,
dans sept villes des quatre coins du pays. Moi, je trouve que cela
sera fantastique, car une seule équipe pourra visiter au moins trois
villes en méme temps.

Avec une question aussi complexe et un pays aussi complexe
que le notre — et je vais utiliser une des expressions que vous avez
utilisées dans votre rapport annuel —, encore une fois, le
gouvernement actuel ne minimise-t-il pas — vous avez bien
utilisé le terme « minimaliste » dans votre rapport —, le
gouvernement n’a-t-il pas une approche minimaliste pour une
question aussi importante aujourd’hui?

M. Fraser : espére que non. A mon avis, il y a deux fagons de
regarder cela. Originellement, quand le gouvernement insistait
pour dire que des consultations étaient nécessaires, ma crainte
était qu’une ronde de consultations prendrait beaucoup de temps
et causerait des délais. Cependant, cette consultation trés précise
et assez rapide a des avantages. Il faut dire qu’on ne manque pas
de données au niveau du renouvellement du Plan d’action : il y a
eu des recommandations du Sommet des communautés
francophones et acadienne au mois de juin; il y a eu
39 recommandations sur la vitalité des communautés en
situation minoritaire du comité de la Chambre; vous, vous avez
fait plusieurs recommandations dans plusieurs rapports qui
touchent a la vitalit¢ — je pense a votre rapport sur la
Nouvelle-Ecosse, par exemple. Par conséquent, je suis
convaincu que ces recommandations ne vont pas disparaitre;
elles vont faire partie du stock, si je peux dire, pour M. Lord,
quand il va faire ses recommandations au gouvernement.

Jajouterais ceci : pour l'instant, en tout cas, jattends des
résultats, et si le premier ministre veut avoir un conseil additionnel
avant de présenter une approche globale et stratégique pour le
renouvellement du Plan d’action, je trouve cela bien. Je ne suis pas
contre une autre vérification de I'importance de la valeur de
certaines recommandations. Je reconnais que c’est parfois difficile
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admit that previous governments did good things, so I see the
need to carry out additional verifications as a way of testing the
waters. What is important is that concrete action be taken. The
Action Plan will expire on March 30, 2008, and its replacement is
what is of importance.

When the Speech from the Throne was made, I said that I was
very happy to see that the government heeded my
recommendation to commit to renewing the Action Plan. As
I see it, the Speech from the Throne is simply a menu, and not the
meal. So, somebody is going to be making further
recommendations to the chef, but we are still awaiting the main
course.

Senator Losier-Cool: My question pertains to the Action Plan.
You seem to be optimistic that the Action Plan will be renewed. It
is on the menu, but as you say, we hope the chef is preparing a
good dish. Were you yourself consulted on renewal of the Action
Plan?

Mr. Fraser: During the time that everyone knew the Throne
Speech was being prepared, 1 took steps to convey the message
that it is highly important that the commitment be made. We
undertook analyses which we believe will be in the new report.
We shared our analyses with a number of people. Given how the
speech is drafted, its content remains a secret until the very last
minute before delivery. I was therefore very anxious to see if one
single sentence in the Throne Speech would be dedicated to this,
because the first Action Plan was born from a single sentence in
the Throne Speech. One of the things I kept saying was that this
does not require a page, or even a paragraph, only one single
sentence. So on the night of the speech, I was very happy to hear
the sentence expressing the government’s commitment. Jokingly,
I said that the speech was made up of a single sentence with a very
long introduction and a long conclusion. What was important for
me was to hear the government make a commitment to renewing
the Action Plan.

Senator Losier-Cool: Those were certainly the words that
several minority communities throughout Canada were waiting to
hear and I am sure that the president of the FCFA, Ms. Routhier,
also heard them!

You took note of the many recommendations contained in the
report on the FCFA’s symposium. I am not questioning
Mr. Lord’s sincerity nor his integrity — he comes from my
province. However, what will he tell the government that it does
not already know? Give us some examples.

Mr. Fraser: My hope is that he will underscore the importance
of this issue. Sometimes a government decides to reconsider an
existing policy and to put its own stamp on it by drafting a new
one. That is the context in which I look at what the government,
the Prime Minister, is doing. It is deciding how it can craft its own
policy, a comprehensive strategy for minority communities.

pour le gouvernement d’accepter que les gouvernements
précédents aient fait de bonnes choses, donc je comprends
qu'on ressente le besoin d’une vérification additionnelle juste
pour sonder le terrain. Ce qui est important, c’est que des gestes
concrets soient faits. Le Plan d’action vient a échéance le
30 mars 2008 et ce qui le remplacera est important.

Jai dit, au moment du discours du Tréne, que j’étais tres
content de voir que le gouvernement avait suivi ma
recommandation de s’engager a renouveler le Plan d’action.
Pour moi, un discours du Trone, c’est un menu et non pas un
repas. Donc, quelqu’un donnera des recommandations
additionnelles au chef, mais on attend toujours le repas.

Le sénateur Losier-Cool : Ma question a trait au Plan d’action.
Vous semblez avoir bon espoir qu’il y aura un renouvellement du
Plan d’action. C’est dans le menu, comme vous venez de dire, et
on va espérer que le chef préparera un bon repas. Avez-vous été
consulté sur le renouvellement du Plan d’action?

M. Fraser : Disons que dans la période ou tout le monde
savait, dans le cycle normal du gouvernement, qu’il y avait un
discours du Trone en préparation, moi, je faisais des démarches
pour passer le message aux gens qu’il était trés important que cet
engagement soit fait. Nous avons fait une analyse des éléments
qui, pensions-nous, devaient étre considérés dans un nouveau
rapport. On a partagé cette analyse avec plusieurs personnes.
Mais la nature méme de la formulation du discours du Trone,
c’est qu’il demeure secret jusqu’au dernier moment. J’étais donc
trés anxieux de voir une seule phrase dans le discours du Trone
parce que je savais que le premier Plan d’action était né a partir
d’une seule phrase dans un discours du Trone. L un des messages
que je passais, c’est que cela ne prend pas une page, méme pas un
paragraphe, mais une seule phrase. Donc, le soir du discours, j’ai
été trés content d’entendre la phrase qui exprimait cet engagement
et par la suite, a la blague, j’ai dit que pour moi, c’était un
discours d’une seule phrase avec une longue introduction et une
longue conclusion. Pour moi, ce qui était important, c’était la
phrase ou le gouvernement s’engageait a renouveler le Plan
d’action.

Le sénateur Losier-Cool : Cela a certainement été la phrase que
les nombreuses communautés minoritaires a travers le Canada
attendaient et je suis certaine que la présidente de la SCFA,
Mme Routhier, aura également capté cette phrase-la!

Vous avez noté les nombreuses recommandations contenues
dans le rapport sur le colloque de la FCFA. Je ne doute pas de la
sincérité ni de I'intégrité de M. Lord — il vient de ma province.
Toutefois, que va-t-il apprendre au gouvernement que le celui-ci
ne sait déja? Donnez-nous des exemples.

M. Fraser : Jespére qu’il confirmera I'importance du dossier.
Il arrive qu’un gouvernement examine une politique existante et
veuille faire sa propre marque en élaborant une nouvelle
politique. C’est dans ce contexte que je vois le gouvernement, le
premier ministre, réfléchir sur la fagon dont il peut faire sa
marque en ¢laborant une politique, une stratégie globale pour les
communautés minoritaires.
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Therefore, Mr. Lord’s most important job will be to
underscore the importance of this issue.

Senator Losier-Cool: Ms. Lemieux, you mentioned a few
complaints coming from anglophones in Quebec. For years, we
have been listening to your predecessors. Amongst the complaints
that we have heard, the most common have involved Air Canada.

Have you observed any progress with respect to bilingual
services being offered by Air Canada?

Mr. Fraser: I still have some concerns about Air Canada. The
courts had to rule on this issue and Air Canada appealed the
ruling. The Court of Appeal stated that Air Canada had to show
results, not intentions.

Given our concern over Air Canada’s previous performance,
we decided to add it to the list of institutions requiring a specific
report. Last year, there were 37 such institutions and now there
will be 38. Ms. Lemieux can expand on this.

Ms. Lemieux: Air Canada was added to the list of
37 institutions requiring a performance report, which will give
us a basis for assessment in coming years.

The Commissioner’s office is trying to focus on the progress
that Air Canada must achieve. We understand that it is difficult to
see the results you are expecting from one annual report tot the
next. We work with the tools at our disposal and we are
developing new tools to resolve situations that occur
systematically, as is the case for Air Canada and for other
institutions that have systematically had problems with official
languages.

We will not be able to give you any further results until May.
However, it is our hope that the situation will improve over the
next few months.

Senator Losier-Cool: Let us come back to the Action Plan. I am
pleased that you mentioned that one of the aspects missing from
the Action Plan was culture. That will have to be included in the
renewed Action Plan. The official languages committee expects to
undertake a study on franchophone culture. We will therefore be
looking closely at the content of the Action Plan with that in
mind, and this will enable us to either provide positive feedback
or criticize it.

Mr. Fraser: In my opinion, the cultural aspect is in fact a very
important one, especially given the often precarious situation that
minority communities find themselves in. Do they have access to
the theatre, to the cinema, to shows? What is culture like for
young people? Do they have access to French-language culture? If
the only culture in their environment is that of the majority, then
that in itself is an assimilating factor.

Par conséquent la tache la plus importante que M. Lord aura a
relever sera de témoigner de I'importance du dossier.

Le sénateur Losier-Cool : Madame Lemicux, vous avez
mentionné les quelques plaintes de la part des anglophones du
Québec. Depuis de nombreuses années, nous avons entendu vos
prédécesseurs. Parmi les plaintes entendues, les plus fréquentes
sont celles qui touchent la société Air Canada.

Avez-vous constaté des progrés en ce qui a trait aux services
bilingues offerts par Air Canada?

M. Fraser : J’ai encore certains soucis concernant Air Canada.
Les tribunaux ont di se prononcer sur la question et Air Canada
est allé en appel de cette décision. Puis, la cour de deuxiéme
instance a indiqué que la société Air Canada a une obligation de
résultat et non une obligation d’intention.

Etant donné notre préoccupation face a la performance
antérieure d’Air Canada, nous avons jugé bon d’ajouter cette
société aux institutions nécessitant un rapport spécifique. L’an
dernier, on comptait 37 institutions a I’étude, on en comptera
désormais 38. Madame Lemieux pourrait vous en dire plus long
sur ce point.

Mme Lemieux : En effet, la société Air Canada s’ajoute aux
37 institutions pour lesquelles nous faisons un bulletin de
rendement, ce qui nous donnera également une échelle
d’évaluation pour les années a venir.

Le commissariat tente de mettre I’accent sur des progrés que la
société Air Canada devra réaliser. Nous comprenons que, dun
rapport annuel a 'autre, il puisse étre difficile de constater les
résultats auxquels vous vous attendez. Nous travaillons avec les
outils dont nous disposons et nous en développons de nouveaux
pour régler certaines situations systématiques, comme c’est le cas
pour Air Canada et pour d’autres institutions qui ont des
problémes systémiques en matiére de langues officielles.

Nous ne pourrons vous présenter de plus amples résultats
avant le mois de mai. Toutefois, nous espérons que la situation
s’améliorera au cours des prochains mois.

Le sénateur Losier-Cool : Revenons maintenant au Plan
d’action. Je me réjouis du fait que vous avez mentionné qu’un
des éléments manquant au Plan d’action était I’aspect culturel. I1
faudra s’assurer que cet aspect soit inclus dans le renouvellement
du Plan d’action. Le Comité des langues officielles compte
entreprendre une étude sur la culture francophone. Nous serons
donc attentifs au contenu du Plan d’action a cet effet, et nous
serons en mesure soit de ’apprécier ou de le critiquer.

M. Fraser : A mon avis, le volet culturel est effectivement trés
important, surtout lorsqu’on constate la situation souvent
précaire dans laquelle se trouvent les communautés minoritaires.
Ont-elles acces au théatre, au cinéma, au spectacle? Comment se
caractérise la vie culturelle des jeunes? Ont-ils accés a la culture de
langue frangaise? Si la culture véhiculée dans leur milieu est
uniquement celle de la majorité, c’est en soi une pression
assimilatrice.
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Senator Comeau: The Action Plan can take many different
shapes. Sometimes it is a plan, sometimes it is a program,
sometimes it is a policy and sometimes it is a strategy. How do
you think we should describe it?

Mr. Fraser: I think we can describe it in any of those terms. In
very specific terms, it refers to the announcement made in 2003 of
a series of programs totalling $153 million over five years and
focussing on the health, immigration, education and service to the
public.

Senator Comeau: There were several programs under that
action plan. It can herefore still be described in those terms.

We often hear the expression “plan renewal”. The impression
given is that the plan is simply being renewed, we are starting
over, we are putting in extra funds, and then the job is done.

However it is my impression that a new plan with new
programs is what is being proposed.

Mr. Fraser: You are probably in a better position than I am to
know what to expect. I expect to see concrete action. Meanwhile,
I am throwing out a few ideas publicly.

Senator Comeau: And you are right to do that. Last summer,
communities came together during a symposium and also came
up with ideas. We heard a few of them. For example, the new
Action Plan must include culture.

It is still my impression that a new plan with new programs is
what is being proposed. Do you share that impression or is this
splitting hairs?

Mr. Fraser: I have been careful not to focus on the title. I fully
understand the desire of each government to put its own stamp on
reality. Whether it is a plan, a program or initiative, I feel it is
important that the plan include some elements of the current plan.
Some programs are expiring and the funding will stop. Let’s take
the example of a program that will expire.

Rather than make it a new initiative, it will be included as part
of the government’s ongoing programs. That is one approach.

Senator Comeau: Yes.

Mr. Fraser: It is important to point out that under the previous
plan, very efficient health networks were created and that
represents real progress from minority communities.

I would like there to be a medium-term perspective, of less than
five years, that provides for some visibility and consistency in
terms of action on official languages.

Senator Comeau: | am pleased that you mentioned the success
of the health network. I absolutely agree with you that it was a
huge success. We should focus on what made it such a success.

Mr. Fraser: There is another point I would like to make and
that is that education represents a particular challenge and
I continue to feel that it is very important. The government at the

Le sénateur Comeau : Le Plan d’action peut prendre différentes
formes. Parfois c’est un plan, parfois un programme, parfois une
politique et parfois une stratégie. Selon vous, comment peut-on le
décrire?

M. Fraser : Je crois que nous pouvons le décrire de toutes ces
facons. En termes trés spécifiques, il s’agit de ’annonce, faite en
2003, d’une série de programmes totalisant 153 millions de dollars
sur cinq ans, qui visaient les secteurs de la santé, de I'immigration,
de I’éducation et des services au public.

Le sénateur Comeau : Plusieurs programmes découlaient de ce
Plan d’action. On peut donc toujours le caractériser ainsi.

D’autre part, ’expression « renouvellement du plan » revient
fréquemment. L’impression qui en découle est qu’il s’agit dun
simple renouvellement du Plan d’action, on recommence, on
investit des fonds supplémentaires et le tour est joué.

Toutefois, j’ai I'impression que ’on propose ici un nouveau
plan avec de nouveaux programmes qui en découlent.

M. Fraser : Vous étes probablement mieux placé que moi pour
savoir ce qui se prépare. J’attends de voir les gestes concrets. En
attendant, je lance sur la place publique quelques idées.

Le sénateur Comeau : Et vous avez raison de le faire. L’été
dernier, lors d’un colloque, les communautés se sont rencontrées
et elles aussi ont formulé des idées. Nous en avons entendu
quelques-unes. Par exemple, il faut que ce nouveau Plan d’action
se penche sur I'aspect culturel.

J’ai encore une fois 'impression que I’on propose un nouveau
plan avec de nouveaux programmes. Partagez-vous mon
impression, ou est-ce une question de nuance?

M. Fraser : J’ai pris soin de ne pas m’accrocher au titre. Je
comprends trés bien la volonté de chaque gouvernement de
nommer sa réalité. Qu’il s’agisse d’un plan, d’un programme ou
d’une initiative, j’estime qu’il est important que ce plan englobe
certains éléments du plan actuel. Certains programmes viennent a
échéance et le financement s’arrétera. Prenons 'exemple d’un
élément qui arrive a échéance.

Au lieu de faire en sorte que ce soit dans une nouvelle initiative,
on garantira que cela fasse partie du programme permanent du
gouvernement. C’est aussi une approche.

Le sénateur Comeau : Oui.

M. Fraser : Il est important de mentionner que grice au
dernier plan, des réseaux de santé trés efficaces ont été créés et
c’est un réel progrés pour les communautés minoritaires.

Jaimerais qu’il y ait une perspective a moyen terme, de moins
de cinq ans, qui offre une certaine visibilité et une certaine
cohésion a I’action en matiére de langues officielles.

Le sénateur Comeau : Je suis content que vous ayez mentionné
le succes des réseaux de santé. Je suis tout a fait d’accord avec
vous pour dire que cela a été un grand succés. Nous devrions
d’ailleurs nous attarder a ce qui a contribué a ce succes.

M. Fraser : Il y a également un autre élément, c’est un défi
particulier concernant le volet de 1’éducation et je continue a
penser que c’est trés important. Le gouvernement de I’époque a
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time set the goal that by 2013 half of high-school graduates would
be fluent in both official languages. That is an ambitious goal and
in order to reach it we need to look at the successes of some
provinces and the failures of others, in order to develop a strategic
approach.

I feel that university should be one element of that approach.
We are in an unbelievable situation, and that is that anglophone
students are encouraged to drop French immersion — therefore
they are going to a less difficult program — because they will get
better marks because they will have already done immersion
studies. Universities do not acknowledge the fact that some have
students taken a difficult course of study.

I therefore feel that we need to establish a way for universities
to acknowledge the importance of both official languages and
that both French and English should be treated as Canadian
languages and not as foreign languages.

We need to use a strategic approach, because the burden of
the future of our linguistic duality cannot be shouldered by
14-year-old children. If there is no incentive coming from
universities, then of course students will choose courses that will
result in the best possible marks. They mustn’t be criticized for
that, but rather be provided with incentives.

Senator Comeau: You spoke about community vitality in your
report. Senator Tardif asked some questions in that topic. I am
also very interested in this. Some communities need us and require
very special attention.

Part VII and the implementation of Part VII of the new
legislation could be extremely useful for these communities. Many
of them are looking forward to departments taking action in this
area. [ would like to find a way of making them move faster.

Perhaps we should invite these departments to come before us
to tell us exactly what they are doing or whether they are still
thinking about it. What do you think?

Mr. Fraser: 1 have discovered, as Commissioner of official
languages, that departments, ministers and deputy ministers
certainly do not like to be criticized.

Senator Comeau: Yes.

Mr. Fraser: When parliamentary committee hearings are held,
there is more pressure, and everyone likes to perform well before a
parliamentary committee. I have therefore discovered how
important our report cards are. In fact, every spring I get calls
asking me: “How come we did not get a better mark? What can
we do to get a better mark?”

I think it would be very useful to have deputy ministers testify
before your committee.

fixé I’objectif de faire en sorte qu’en 2013, la moitié des finissants
de I’école secondaire maitrise les deux langues officielles. C’est un
objectif ambitieux et, d’une certaine fagon, il faut pour y arriver se
pencher sur les succés de certaines provinces et les échecs d’autres
provinces, ceci afin de favoriser une approche stratégique.

L’université est, a mon avis, un des éléments de cette approche.
Nous sommes dans une situation incroyable, a savoir qu’on incite
des étudiants anglophones a laisser tomber I'immersion
francophone — donc qu’ils se dirigent dans un programme
moins difficile — parce qu’ils pourront alors obtenir de meilleures
notes parce qu’ils ont déja fait des études en immersion. Il faut
comprendre que les universités n’octroient pas de primes pour
ceux qui ont suivi un cours plus difficile.

Je crois donc qu’il faut trouver un moyen afin que les
universités reconnaissent l'importance des deux langues
officielles et que les deux langues, le frangais et I’anglais, soient
traitées comme des langues canadiennes, et non pas comme des
langues étrangéres.

Il faut se doter d’une approche stratégique, car il ne faudrait
pas que I'avenir de la dualité linguistique repose sur les épaules
d’enfants de 14 ans. Si aucune mesure incitative pour ce faire ne
leur est disponible a I'université, ils choisiront bien siir des cours
leur donnant droit aux meilleures notes. Il ne faut donc pas les
critiquer pour cette raison, mais bien leur fournir une mesure
incitative.

Le sénateur Comeau : Vous avez parlé de la vitalité des
communautés dans votre rapport. Le sénateur Tardif vous a
d’ailleurs questionné a ce sujet. C’est un sujet qui m’intéresse
également beaucoup. Certaines communautés ont besoin de nous
et d’'une attention tout a fait spéciale.

La partie VII et la mise en ceuvre de la partie VII de la nouvelle
loi pourraient étre extrémement utiles pour ces communautés.
Plusieurs d’entre nous ont trés hate que les ministéres
entreprennent quelque action dans ce domaine. J’aimerais que
I’on trouve un moyen de les faire bouger plus vite.

Peut-étre que nous devrions inviter ces ministéres afin qu’ils
nous disent exactement ou ils en sont rendus a ce sujet ou s’ils sont
encore en train d’y réfléchir. Croyez-vous?

M. Fraser : J’ai découvert, en tant que commissaire aux
langues officielles, que les ministéres, les ministres et les sous
ministére n’aiment pas du tout se faire critiquer.

Le sénateur Comeau : Voila.

M. Fraser : Lors d’audiences devant un comité parlementaire,
la pression augmente; et tout le monde aime bien performer
devant un comité parlementaire. J’ai donc découvert a quel point
nos bulletins jouent un réle important. En effet, & tous les
printemps, je recois des appels me demandant : « Comment se
fait-il qu’on n’ait pas une meilleure note? Que peut-on faire pour
avoir une meilleure note? »

Je pense qu’il serait trés utile d’inviter des sous-ministres a
venir témoigner devant votre comité.
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Senator Comeau: We know that tool is there and it’s not
gathering any rust. However, we would like to sharpen it
somewhat in order to see if we could get more out of these
departments.

In some areas of Canada, time is passing quickly and these
communities need to be able to use the tool that was given to
them. With your assistance, we could identify a few departments
that should come for a visit.

Mr. Fraser: I would also say that in the area of official
languages I have noticed two things. There is a group of
individuals — official languages champions within the
departments — who are very devoted and hard working but
who need approval from above. I am not questioning at all the
sincerity or commitment of the hundreds of public servants who
truly take their duties seriously.

Before 1 tabled my annual report, I presented some of my
findings to ministers and deputy ministers so that they would not
be caught off guard. I spoke to one deputy minister, whom I will
not name, about the importance of renewing the Action Plan. He
asked me if what I was talking about was in my report. I said yes.
He said he was very happy about that. I had the impression that
he needed support and some pressure from the outside.

One must never underestimate the value of pressure; it helps
our allies within the system.

Senator Comeau: Yes.

[English]

Senator Murray: If it is pressure from the outside they want, we
will not disappoint them.

Mr. Fraser: I am not suggesting everyone wants that pressure,
but there are allies on the inside who find it helpful.

Senator Murray: I understand that very well. Twenty-five or
27 years ago, when week after week ministers and especially
deputy ministers were paraded before the Joint Committee on
Official Languages to discuss the performance of their
departments with regard to official languages policy and the
act, I always thought it was a very salutary thing for progress.

After the members of the committee had a go at the deputy,
and after the deputy himself or herself had an opportunity to
explain what they were doing and how they would overcome some
of the problems that had been identified, the Commissioner of
Official Languages, who sat with the chairman, would speak up
and summarize the afternoon’s proceedings. I thought all of that
was quite helpful. As I say, it is not for me to issue such an
invitation, but you might consider it.

Le sénateur Comeau : Pour nous, c’est un outil qui est la et qui
ne rouille pas. Mais nous aimerions 1’aiguiser un peu afin de voir
si nous ne pourrions pas en obtenir un peu plus de ces ministéres.

Dans certaines régions du Canada, le temps passe vite, et ces
communautés ont besoin de cet outil qui leur a été donné. Nous
pourrions, avec votre aide, identifier quelques ministéres qui
devraient venir nous rendre visite.

M. Fraser : Je dirais également que, dans le domaine des
langues officielles, j’ai remarqué deux choses. Il y a un groupe de
personnes — les champions des langues officielles au sein des
ministéres — qui sont des gens trés dévoués qui travaillent
énormément, mais qui ont besoin d’appuis provenant d’un
échelon supérieur. Mais je ne mets pas du tout en doute la
sincérité ou I’engagement des centaines de fonctionnaires de la
fonction publique qui prennent vraiment au sérieux leurs
obligations.

Avant le dépdt de mon rapport annuel, j’ai fait une tournée
pour présenter quelques données afin que les ministres et les
sous-ministres ne soient pas pris au dépourvu. Jai parlé a
un sous-ministre, que je ne nommerai pas, de 'importance du
renouvellement du plan d’action. Il m’a demandé si ce dont je lui
parlais se trouvait dans mon rapport. Je lui ai répondu que oui
¢’était le cas. Il m’a alors dit que c’était trés bien comme cela. Cela
m’a donné I'impression qu’il avait besoin d’appui et de pressions
de I’extérieur.

Il ne faut jamais mésestimer 1’utilité de faire pression; cela aide
les alliés a I'intérieur du systéme.

Le sénateur Comeau : Oui.

[Traduction]

Le sénateur Murray : S’ils veulent des pressions de ’extérieur,
nous ne les décevrons pas.

M. Fraser : Je ne dis pas que tout le monde souhaite de telles
pressions, mais nous avons des alliés a I'interne qui les trouvent
fort utiles.

Le sénateur Murray : Je le comprends parfaitement. Il y a
25 ou 27 ans, semaine aprés semaine, les ministres et surtout les
sous-ministres devaient se présenter devant le Comité mixte des
langues officielles pour décrire ’application de la politique et de la
Loi sur les langues officielles dans leur ministére. J’ai toujours
trouvé que c’était 1a un exercice trés salutaire qui contribuait a
faire progresser les choses.

Une fois que les membres du comité avaient fini d’interroger le
sous-ministre et que celui-ci ou celle-ci avait eu la possibilité
d’expliquer ce qui se faisait sur le plan des langues officielles dans
son ministére et les moyens qu’il ou elle entendait prendre pour
surmonter certaines des difficultés constatées, le commissaire aux
langues officielles, qui prenait place a coté du président, résumait
les délibérations de I’aprés-midi. Tout ’exercice me semblait trés
utile. Ce n’est pas a moi a lancer une pareille invitation, mais vous
pourriez y songer.
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Part VII of the act is what concerns me at the moment. I think
I know what we have to do. What is bothering me is when we
should start doing it. It is clear to me from what I read in your
report that Canadian Heritage must be brought in here. We have
to satisfy ourselves as to the adequacy of the guidelines that they
have sent out to the departments and agencies of government and
satisfy ourselves as to the adequacy of the accountability
mechanism, if any. What is it? Is it for real or just something
on paper? We have to keep bringing that department back here —
the minister, the deputy minister, the senior officials — until they
come up with a plan that you, in particular, and we are satisfied
will achieve the desired result. Perhaps only then would it be
sensible to start inviting individual departments to appear before
this committee. We could start with the 30-odd designated
institutions, so called, as to their performance. I am looking for
advice as to what is sensible and fair to do in terms of us riding
herd on, first, the Department of Canadian Heritage in its
coordinating and directional capacity, and then the departments
and their execution of the policy. Do you have a view on those
suggestions?

Mr. Fraser: I think it would be also be useful for you to hear
from the Department of Justice. One of my concerns is that the
initial response of some of the advice given by Department of
Justice lawyers was to be as minimalist as possible.

Senator Murray: That is exactly the word that was going
through my mind when Senator Losier-Cool was speaking
because, apparently from what she said, the advice of the
Department of Justice lawyers was to be careful.

Mr. Fraser: That is their job. When I raised my concern with
the minister, I had an exchange with the deputy minister, who
said, “You must recognize that your lawyers and our lawyers have
different roles, and we will not necessarily be in agreement all the
time.” I understand that position.

Senator Murray: A generous interpretation is needed.

Mr. Fraser: That is one reason we decided to take the
opportunity to demand the status of interveners in the FCFA
case — Fédération des communautés francophones et
acadienne — before the courts. This is the first time that the
courts will be called upon to examine the scope. The government
has taken the interpretation that they were not obliged to take this
into account — or, if they were, they did — without clarifying to
us and to our satisfaction how they did that. It is our
interpretation that they did not. This will be the first serious
opportunity for the courts to take a first cut at deciding the scope
of this amendment.

Certainly, my view was and continues to be that when
parliamentarians decided in 2005 to pass what was then
Bill S-3, it was because they wanted to strengthen, give teeth to
and ensure that this amendment had real meaning.

Ce qui me préoccupe en ce moment, c’est ’application de la
partie VII de la loi. Je crois que nous savons ce qu’il faut faire,
mais je me demande quand nous devrions commencer a le faire.
Aprés avoir lu votre rapport, je pense que nous devons
absolument convoquer les représentants de Patrimoine
canadien. Nous devons voir si les consignes qu’il a envoyées
aux ministéres et organismes du gouvernement, de méme que le
mécanisme de reddition de comptes, sont appropriées. S’agit-il de
véritables mesures ou de veeux pieux qui resteront lettre morte?
Nous devons continuer a convoquer le ministre, le sous-ministre
et les hauts fonctionnaires de ce ministére tant qu’ils ne nous
auront pas présenté un plan qui a notre avis, et plus
particuliérement a votre avis, permettra d’atteindre les résultats
souhaités. Ce n’est qu’apres avoir franchi cette premiére étape que
nous commencerions a inviter les différents ministéres a
comparaitre. Nous pourrions commencer par examiner de pres
la capacité de coordination et de direction du ministere du
Patrimoine canadien, pour ensuite, dans un deuxiéme temps,
évaluer l'application de la politique par les ministéres. Que
pensez-vous de cette suggestion?

M. Fraser : Je crois qu’il serait également utile que vous
entendiez des témoins du ministére de la Justice. Je crains que la
réponse initiale et les conseils donnés par les avocats du ministeére
de la Justice étaient de présenter les choses sous un jour
minimaliste dans la mesure du possible.

Le sénateur Murray : C’est justement le mot auquel je pensais
quand le sénateur Losier-Cool parlait parce que d’apres ce qu’elle
a dit, les avocats du ministere de la Justice ont dit d’étre prudents.

M. Fraser : C’est leur travail. Lorsque j’ai parlé du probléme
avec le ministre, j’en ai également parlé avec le sous-ministre qui a
dit : « Vous devez comprendre que vos avocats et nos avocats ne
jouent pas les mémes roles, et ne seront pas toujours du méme
avis. » Je comprends la position.

Le sénateur Murray : Il faut donc une interprétation plus
généreuse.

M. Fraser : C’est d’ailleurs une des raisons pour lesquelles
nous avons décidé de profiter de 1’occasion pour demander le
statut d’intervenant dans I’affaire FCFA, la Fédération des
communautés francophones et acadienne auprés des tribunaux.
C’est la premiére fois que les tribunaux auront a se pencher sur la
portée de la loi. Le gouvernement a interprété la loi a sa propre
fagon et a déterminé qu’il n’était pas obligé d’en tenir compte —
ou s’il Iétait, il I’avait déja fait — sans en fait nous expliquer de
fagon satisfaisante comment il avait procédé. A notre avis, le
gouvernement n’en a pas tenu compte. Ce proces offrira aux
tribunaux pour la premiére fois I’occasion de se prononcer sur la
portée de cet amendement.

Je suis d’avis, et en fait j’ai toujours été de cet avis, que lorsque
les parlementaires ont décidé en 2005 d’adopter ce qui était a
I’époque le projet de loi S-3, c’était parce qu’ils voulaient
renforcer la loi et assurer que cet amendement avait vraiment
un impact.
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Senator Murray: Some of us dealt with that bill three times,
I think, before it received Royal Assent. It went through three
times because we took it seriously. We thought it would make a
difference. Some of these departments must be and will be told
that we do not appreciate them trying to narrow the scope of it.
We think it is appropriate to take a more generous interpretation
of what we had in mind.

Mr. Fraser: One interesting thing about this amendment is
that, unlike the 1988 amendment to the legislation, the 2005
amendment has been driven entirely by parliamentarians.

Senator Murray: I was involved in the drafting of the 1988 act,
and I brought it through the Senate. I remember having to explain
why we were not making Part VII justiciable. I had to defend that
position and did. In the light of experience, it was obvious to
Jean-Robert Gauthier and the rest of us that the time had come
to put more meat on the bone.

Mr. Fraser: Because it had its origin in the Senate and because
it was driven by parliamentarians, it is all the more appropriate
that you take this issue and call ministers and deputy ministers to
account in terms of how they respond.

Senator Murray: What is sensible, though? We will bring
Canadian Heritage officials before this committee fairly soon,
I think. Are they resisting?

[Translation)

The Chair: They were not available in December. We will take
this up again at the end of January.

[English]

Senator Murray: We can have them in here and keep them here
until we see a satisfactory explanation. When do you think it is
fair and sensible to start having individual departments in and
putting their feet to the fire? When would we accomplish
something by doing that?

Mr. Fraser: My feeling is that it has been two years, almost day
for day, although I have not actually checked the date. Two years
is long enough for an initial progress report, and it would be fair
to see what people have done.

Senator Murray: We want to know what the plan is and how
concrete it is.

Mr. Fraser: Yes, and how they are moving forward.

As 1 said earlier, some institutions are very concrete in what
they have done, and for others it is much more a process. Some
might say, “We have had the following meetings with our

Le sénateur Murray : Si je ne me trompe, certains d’entre nous
ont étudié ce projet de loi a trois reprises avant qu’il ne regoive la
sanction royale. Nous nous sommes penchés a trois reprises sur le
document parce que nous jugions cette question importante.
Nous pensions que notre étude changerait les choses. Certains de
ces ministéres apprendront que nous ne sommes pas heureux du
tout d’apprendre qu’ils essaient de limiter la portée de ces
dispositions. Nous croyons qu’il faudrait avoir une interprétation
plus large, tout au moins c’est notre opinion.

M. Fraser : Il est intéressant de noter que I'amendement de
2005, contrairement a celui qui a été apporté a la loi en 1988, est le
produit exclusif de I'intervention des parlementaires.

Le sénateur Murray : J’ai participé a la rédaction de la loi de
1988, et c’est moi qui I’ai parrainée au Sénat. Je me souviens que
javais di expliquer pourquoi nous avions décidé de ne pas rendre
la partie VII justiciable. J’ai da défendre cette position et je I’ai
fait. Il était clair pour les sénateurs a 1’époque et pour
Jean-Robert Gauthier que le temps était venu de renforcer cette
disposition.

M. Fraser : Parce que la proposition venait du Sénat et parce
que ce sont les parlementaires qui avaient insisté pour que cet
amendement soit apporté, je crois qu’il est trés approprié que vous
assumiez la responsabilité de ce dossier et que vous demandiez
aux ministres et aux sous-ministres de justifier leur réaction.

Le sénateur Murray : Cependant, comment devrions-nous
procéder? Nous inviterons sous peu les fonctionnaires de

N en 4 ] o, i
Patrimoine canadien comparaitre devant le comité. Est-ce
qu’ils hésitent a le faire?

[Frangais)

La présidente : IIs n’étaient pas disponibles en décembre. Nous
reprendrons a la fin janvier.

[Traduction]

Le sénateur Murray : Nous pouvons les inviter a comparaitre et
les forcer a rester avec nous tant qu’ils ne nous auront pas donné
une explication qui saura nous satisfaire. Quand pensez-vous qu’il
serait raisonnable de commencer a inviter des représentants des
ministéres et exiger qu’ils nous rendent compte? Quand
pourrions-nous vraiment obtenir des résultats?

M. Fraser : Ecoutez, ¢a fait 2 peu prés deux ans, jour pour
jour, quoique je n’aie pas vérifié la date, que ’amendement a été
présenté. Deux ans est une période suffisante pour demander un
rapport sur la situation, et il serait juste et raisonnable de
demander aux gens ce qu’ils ont accompli pendant cette période.

Le sénateur Murray : Nous voulons connaitre les plans et
savoir dans quelle mesure il s’agit de quelque chose de concret.

M. Fraser : C’est exact. Vous voulez également savoir
comment ils font avancer le dossier.

Comme je I’ai dit un peu plus tot, certaines organisations
peuvent présenter concrétement ce qu’elles ont accompli,
alors que d’autres ont beaucoup moins a offrir. Certains diront
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employees, and we have sent a message to all employees,” so it
tends to be more process driven. [ am more interested in what has
been done in concrete terms.

Senator Murray: That is good. Thank you.

[Translation]

The Chair: We will begin a second round of questions. We have
very little time left. I would therefore ask you to be brief. Senator
Tardif has the floor, followed by Senator Poulin.

Senator Tardif: Commissioner, in your opening remarks you
spoke about the importance of leadership. I absolutely agree with
you that political leadership is essential if we want to advance the
cause of linguistic duality in Canada as well as the cause of
education. I was intrigued by one of the priorities for 2008, which
is to undertake a study on second-language learning opportunities
in Canadian universities.

Could you give us further details on this study that you hope to
undertake?

Mr. Fraser: This is something very dear to my heart. I have
already spoken with the Association of Universities and Colleges
of Canada. I will ask Ms. Scott to expand on the mandate of this
study.

Ms. Scott: We would like to start this study in early 2008. The
first phase will involve conducting a survey throughout Canadian
universities in order to better understand what already exists in
terms of teaching French as a second language, and also in terms
what exists in English-language universities to encourage students
to learn a second language during their university studies or to
maintain their second language throughout their studies.

We also know that the Association des universités de la
francophonie canadienne offers a series of programs throughout
the country. They will also obviously be part of this study. We
want to see what other universities are doing in terms of exchange
programs and in terms of how French-as-a-second-language
courses are being offered within public administration and law
faculties, for example. During the first phase, therefore, we will be
looking at what universities are currently doing.

Senator Tardif: I hope that you will also look at whether or not
a second language is required as an admission criterion. I think it
is unfortunate that many universities do not require this.

Ms. Scott: Yes, in our survey we will look at admission criteria
as well as graduation criteria.

Senator Poulin: I would like to pick up on the issue of
governance that we only brief discussed. You mentioned that
Bernard Lord will need to underscore the importance of official
languages in this country. As you stated in your report,

peut-étre qu’ils ont eu une réunion avec leurs employés, qu’ils ont
communiqué ce message a ces derniers et en fait il s’agit surtout
dans leur cas dun processus. C’est a ¢a que ¢a se limite. Je
m’intéresse plutdt a ce qui a vraiment été fait de fagon concréte.

Le sénateur Murray : Trés bien. Merci.

[Frangais]

La présidente : Nous allons commencer un deuxiéme tour de
questions. Il nous reste trés peu de temps. Je vous demande donc
d’étre trés brefs. Je donne la parole au sénateur Tardif qui sera
suivie du sénateur Poulin.

Le sénateur Tardif : Monsieur le commissaire, dans les notes
présentées aujourd’hui, vous avez parlé de I'importance du
leadership. Je suis tout a fait d’accord avec vous, le leadership
politique est essentiel si I’on veut faire avancer la dualité
linguistique au Canada ainsi que le leadership en milieu
éducatif. J’ai été intriguée par une des priorités de ’année 2008
d’entreprendre une étude sur les possibilités d’apprentissage de la
langue seconde dans les universités canadiennes.

Pouvez-vous nous donner quelques détails sur cette étude que
vous comptez mettre sur pied?

M. Fraser : C’est quelque chose qui me tient & ceeur. J’ai déja
parlé avec ’Association des universités et colleges du Canada. Je
vais demander a Mme Scott d’apporter des précisions sur le statut
de cette étude.

Mme Scott : On compte démarrer cette étude tot en 2008. La
premiére phase sera de faire un sondage auprés de I’ensemble des
universités canadiennes pour mieux comprendre ce qui se fait déja
en termes d’enseignement du francais langue seconde, mais aussi
des mesures mises en place dans les universités de langues
anglaises pour encourager les étudiants a apprendre une langue
seconde durant leurs études universitaires ou pour maintenir leur
niveau en langue seconde durant leurs études.

On sait aussi que 1’Association des universités de la
francophonie canadienne qui offre un éventail de programmes a
travers le pays. Evidemment, cela fera également partie de ’étude.
1l s’agit de voir ce qui se fait dans les autres universités sur le plan
des programmes d’échange et sur les fagons d’offrir des cours de
francais langue seconde dans des cours d’administration publique
ou dans les facultés de droit, par exemple. Comme premiére étape,
il s’agit de faire un constat sur ce qui se fait en ce moment dans les
universités.

Le sénateur Tardif : J’espére que vous allez également voir si on
exige une deuxiéme langue comme critére d’admission. Je trouve
regrettable qu’il y ait plusieurs universités pour lesquelles on n’a
pas ce critére.

Mme Scott : Effectivement, dans le sondage, on examinera les
critéres d’admission, de méme que les critéres pour ’obtention du
diplome a la fin des études.

Le sénateur Poulin : J’aimerais poursuivre sur la question de la
gouvernance dont nous avons briévement discuté. Vous avez dit
que Bernard Lord devra témoigner de I'importance du dossier des
langues officielles au pays. Comme vous — vous I’avez dit dans
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many Canadian men and women were disappointed with the
government’s decision to move the official languages secretariat
from the government’s central agency — the Privy Council — to a
department. You therefore decided to invite Mr. Savoie to
conduct a study on this issue of governance. I believe there is
no date set for the tabling of Mr. Savoie’s report. Might this
report be ready soon enough to provide to Mr. Lord, who will be
tabling his report in mid-January? You stated that it is Mr. Lord’s
responsibility to highlight the importance of this issue.

Mr. Fraser: With the greatest of respect for Mr. Savoie’s work,
I do not think that such an academic study can be done in so little
time, but once again, I will ask Ms. Scott to comment on the
timeline.

Ms. Scott: Mr. Savoie began his work in November. In
December or the beginning of January, he expects to conduct
interviews with a number of senior officials and people who
helped set up the official languages secretariat. We hope the study
will be concluded in the spring.

Senator Poulin: When the report is concluded, to whom will
you refer the matter of governance if Mr. Lord’s special study is
already completed? To whom will you submit the report?

Mr. Fraser: Once it is completed, it will be made public.
However, a distinction needs to be made. My understanding of
Mr. Lord’s mandate is that it is part of the renewal of the Action
Plan. So the question of governance is, in my view, external to the
renewal process.

Senator Poulin: I am considering the governance issue as it
relates to the implementation of the Action Plan.

Mr. Fraser: I should have thought about conducting a study
on governance a year ago, but I had just taken up my position and
I do not learn things that fast!

Senator Losier-Cool: 1 would simply like to follow up on
the comments made by Senator Murray when he spoke about
Bill S-3. I remember one time when we were considering Bill S-3,
and the Department of Justice came out against the bill. I clearly
recall having asked the departmental officials why they alone
opposed the bill. They said that it would be too onerous to
administer. That is why it would be important for us to find out if
they have learned to administer it over the past two years.

Have you identified shortcomings at our embassies with regard
to both official languages? We have received complaints by
parliamentarians who travel abroad.

Mr. Fraser: Yes. We have just published a follow-up report
with regard to foreign affairs and Canada’s representation
abroad. The original report dates back to 2004, and there were
indeed recommendations. A number of problems remain. In my
experience, our ambassadors are professional diplomats who are
in many cases exceedingly fluent in both official languages, but

votre rapport —, nombreux sont les Canadiens et les Canadiennes
qui ont été décus de la décision du gouvernement de prendre le
secrétariat des langues officielles et de le déménager de ’agence
centrale du gouvernement — le Conseil privé — et de I’amener
dans un ministére. Vous avez donc pris la décision d’inviter
M. Savoie a faire une étude sur cette question de gouvernance. Je
vois qu’il n’y a pas de date de dépot pour le rapport de M. Savoie.
Est-ce que ce rapport pourrait étre prét a temps afin qu’il soit
remis & M. Lord qui lui doit déposer son rapport a la mi-janvier?
Vous avez donné la responsabilit¢ a M. Lord de témoigner de
I'importance du dossier.

M. Fraser : Avec le respect énorme que j’ai pour le travail de
M. Savoie, je ne pense pas qu'une analyse académique de ce genre
se fasse a l'intérieur de ce délai, mais encore une fois, je vais
demander & Mme Scott d’élaborer sur 1’échéancier.

Mme Scott : M. Savoie a démarré ses travaux au mois de
novembre. Il compte entreprendre en décembre ou au début du
mois de janvier des entrevues avec un certain nombre de hauts
fonctionnaires et de personnes qui étaient la lors de la création du
secrétariat des langues officielles. On espére pouvoir terminer
I’étude au printemps.

Le sénateur Poulin : A ce moment-la, ou allez-vous porter la
question de la gouvernance du dossier si 1’étude spéciale de
M. Lord est terminée? Ou allez-vous déposer 1’étude?

M. Fraser : Ce sera déposé publiquement lorsque ce sera prét.
Cependant, il faut faire une distinction. Si je comprends bien le
mandat de M. Lord, c’est dans le contexte du renouvellement du
plan d’action. Dongc, la question de gouvernance est, a mon avis,
une question externe au renouvellement.

Le sénateur Poulin : Le lien que je fais entre la gouvernance et
le plan d’action se situe au niveau de 'implantation du Plan
d’action.

M. Fraser : En effet, j’aurais da penser a cette idée de faire une
étude sur la gouvernance il y a un an, mais j’étais en apprentissage
et je n’apprends pas aussi vite que cela!

Le sénateur Losier-Cool : J’aimerais simplement ajouter aux
propos du sénateur Murray lorsqu’il parlait du projet de loi S-3.
Je me souviens d’une fois ou nous avons étudié le projet de loi S-3
et ¢’était le ministére de la Justice qui était contre le projet de loi.
Je me souviens trés bien avoir demandé a ses représentants
pourquoi ils étaient les seuls a s’y opposer. Ils ont répondu que ce
serait trop lourd a administrer. C’est la raison pour laquelle il
serait important pour nous de voir s’ils ont appris a 'administrer
depuis les deux derniéres années.

Avez-vous constaté des lacunes dans nos ambassades
concernant les deux langues officielles? Nous avons souvent
recu des plaintes de la part de parlementaires qui voyagent a
I’étranger.

M. Fraser : Oui. On vient de publier un suivi qu’on a fait sur
les affaires extérieures et la représentation du Canada a I’étranger.
Le rapport original datait de 2004, et effectivement, on a fait des
recommandations. Il y a des problémes qui restent entiers.
D’aprés mon expérience, les ambassadeurs qui sont des
diplomates professionnels maitrisent souvent de fagon
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there also Privy Council and Governor-in-Council appointments
that are exempted from that requirement, and that is somewhat
problematic.

More and more, embassies are required to hire local personnel,
and people are complaining that it is difficult to find people who
speak one of the two official languages. However, our
recommendation highlights the importance of having people
who can provide the public with health services. We are also
concerned by the cutbacks in the area of public diplomacy. I
firmly believe that the face of Canada abroad absolutely must
respect our linguistic duality.

Senator Losier-Cool: Those are concerns we are also hearing.

The Chair: On that note, Commissioner, Ms. Lemieux,
Ms. Scott and Ms. Tremblay, I would like to thank you very
much for having braved the inclement weather and appearing
before the committee.

Commissioner Fraser, if we had to grade you on your first year
in office, I believe the committee would agree with me when I say
that you have done excellent work. Next year, [ am sure you will
do as well, if not better! Thank you very much.

Mr. Fraser: I thank you, Madam Chair.

The Chair: Honourable senators, we have just handed out the
summary of expenditures and income for this committee’s work,
which includes the activities that we discussed at our first meeting.
It is a $140,720 budget and it includes a trip to the Olympic
Games in Vancouver. We will also be travelling for cultural
studies, but this is not included in the current budget, which only
goes to the end of the fiscal year.

Have you any questions? Senator Losier-Cool is moving the
motion. Are you ready for the question?

Some senators: Yes.
The Chair: The motion is carried.

We also distributed the request made by Senator Dallaire, who
will appear before us next week. You have it in English and in
French. I recommend that you read it in preparation for his
appearance. Next week, we will be hearing from representatives of
Statistics Canada, who will tell us about statistics concerning
minorities in the last census. Afterward, during the second hour,
we will hear Senator Dallaire’s presentation.

Senator Tardif: Have you set the dates for the trip to
Vancouver? I see the end of March when the Senate will be
taking a break.

The Chair: For now, it is scheduled for the week when the
Senate will be taking a break, but we have not made any final
decision.

extraordinaire les deux langues officielles, mais il y a aussi des
nominations du Conseil privé, du gouverneur en conseil, qui sont
exemptées de cette obligation et cela cause un certain probléme.

De plus en plus, les ambassades sont obligées d’engager du
personnel local et on se plaint du fait que c’est difficile de trouver
des gens qui parlent une des deux langues officielles. Cependant,
on concentre notre recommandation sur I'importance d’avoir des
gens qui peuvent servir le public dans les services de santé. On
s’inquiéte aussi des coupures dans le domaine de la diplomatie
publique. Je crois fermement qu’il est trés important que le visage
du Canada a Détranger en soit un qui respecte la dualité
linguistique de fagon intégrale.

Le sénateur Losier-Cool : Ce sont des préoccupations qu’on
entend aussi.

La présidente : Sur ce, monsieur le commissaire, Mesdames
Lemieux, Scott et Tremblay, je vous remercie beaucoup d’étre
venues comparaitre devant le comité en cette journée ou le temps
n’était pas trés clément.

Monsieur le commissaire, si nous avions a faire le bilan de
votre premiére année et & vous donner une note, je crois pouvoir
me faire la porte-parole du comité et vous dire qu’on vous
donnerait une excellente note. L’an prochain, vous aurez aussi
bien, sinon mieux! Merci beaucoup.

M. Fraser : C’est moi qui vous remercie, madame la
présidente.

La présidente : Honorables sénateurs, nous venons de vous
distribuer le sommaire des dépenses et revenus pour les travaux
du comité, qui inclut les activités discutées a notre premiere
réunion. C’est un budget total de 140 720 §, incluant un
déplacement pour les Jeux olympiques a Vancouver. Un autre
déplacement doit avoir lieu pour 1’étude culturelle, mais il ne fait
pas partie de ce budget-ci parce que celui-ci va jusqu’a la fin de
l’année financiére.

Est-ce que vous avez des questions? Le sénateur Losier-Cool
propose la motion. Etes-vous préts pour la question?

Des voix : Oui.
La présidente : C’est adopté.

Nous vous avons aussi distribué la demande du sénateur
Dallaire, qui comparaitra la semaine prochaine. Vous I’avez recu
en anglais et en francais. Je vous demanderai de la lire pour étre
préts pour sa comparution. La semaine prochaine, nous allons
recevoir les gens de Statistique Canada, qui feront état des
statistiques relatives aux minorités du dernier recensement.
Ensuite, pour la deuxiéme heure, nous entendrons la
présentation du sénateur Dallaire.

Le sénateur Tardif : Est-ce que vous avez déterminé les dates
pour le voyage a Vancouver? Je vois la fin mars, c’est aussi la
semaine de pause du Sénat.

La présidente : C’est présentement pendant la semaine de
relache du Sénat, mais il n’y a rien de défini encore.
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Senator Tardif: [t may be useful to see what commitments have
already been made, because that is the Easter break. I will be out
of the country at that time.

Senator Goldstein: Is there not a break during the very last
week of March?

Senator Murray: It is also Easter, is it not?
Senator Tardif: Easter falls on March 22.

The Chair: Honourable senators, I must announce that it is
now 7 p.m. and we must adjourn the meeting. We will discuss this
again at our next meeting.

Meeting is adjourned.

OTTAWA, Monday, December 10, 2007

The Standing Senate Committee on Official Languages met to
study, and to report from time to time, on the application of the
Official Languages Act and the Regulations and directives made
under it, within those institutions subject to the act, and to
consider a draft report.

Senator Maria Chaput (Chairman) in the chair.

[Translation]

The Chair: Good day, everyone. I would like to introduce
today’s witness, Réjean Lachapelle, Director of Statistics
Canada’s Demolinguistics Studies Division.

Under the Statistics Act, the Governemnt of Canada, through
Statistics Canada, is responsible for providing statistics about the
Canadian population and various sectors of activity within
Canadian society. Statistics Canada conducts a census every
five years. The latest one was conducted in 2006. The census data
related to language were published on December 4, 2006. Data on
aboriginal languages will be published in the 2006 Census
analytical document to be released on January 15, 2008.
Welcome to the Senate Committee on Official Languages,
Mr. Lachapelle.

My name is Maria Chaput, and I am the chairman of this
committee. To my right are Senators Comeau, Murray and
Goldstein, and to my left is Senator Poulin. I will now turn things
over to you, Mr. Lachapelle.

Réjean Lachapelle, Director, Demolinguistics Studies Division,
Statistics Canada: Madam Chair, before I begin, I would like to
introduce Sylvie Portelance, who has joined me to help us view
the slides. I would like to thank you for inviting me to present
the 2006 census results pertaining to the main demolinguistic
variables.

Le sénateur Tardif : Ce serait peut-étre bon de voir quels
engagements ont déja été pris, car c’est le congé de Paques. Je
serai a I'extérieur du pays a ce moment-la.

Le sénateur Goldstein : La toute derniére semaine de mars,
n’est-ce pas la semaine de relache?

Le sénateur Murray : C’est également Paques, n’est-ce pas?
Le sénateur Tardif : Paques est le 22 mars.

La présidente : Sénateurs, je dois vous dire qu’il est maintenant
19 h et que nous devons suspendre. Nous en rediscuterons a la
prochaine réunion.

La séance est levée.

OTTAWA, le lundi 10 décembre 2007

Le Comité sénatorial permanent des langues officielles se réunit
pour ¢étudier, afin d’en faire rapport de facon ponctuelle,
lapplication de la Loi sur les langues officielles, ainsi que des
réglements et instructions en découlant, au sein des institutions
assujetties a la Loi.

Le sénateur Maria Chaput (présidente) occupe le fauteuil.

[Frangais)

La présidente : Bonjour a tous, j’aimerais présenter notre
témoin qui comparait aujourd’hui. Il s’agit de M. Réjean
Lachapelle, directeur a la Division des études démolinguistiques
de Statistique Canada.

En vertu de la Loi sur les statistiques, il incombe au
gouvernement du Canada, par DI'entreprise de Statistique
Canada, de fournir des statistiques concernant la population
canadienne et les différents secteurs d’activités de la société
canadienne. Statistique Canada effectue un recensement aux
cing ans, le dernier ayant été effectué en 2006. Les données de ce
recensement portant sur la langue ont été publiées le 4 décembre
2007. 11 est a noter que les données sur les langues autochtones
seront publiées dans un document analytique du recensement de
2006, qui sera diffusé le 15 janvier 2008. Je vous souhaite la
bienvenue au Comité sénatorial des langues officielles,
monsieur Lachapelle.

Je m’appelle Maria Chaput, présidente du comité. A ma droite,
on retrouve les sénateurs Comeau, Murray et Goldstein, et & ma
gauche, le sénateur Poulin. Je vous céde maintenant la parole,
monsieur Lachapelle.

Réjean Lachapelle, directeur, Division des études
démolinguistiques, Statistique Canada : Madame la présidente,
jaimerais, avant de commencer, vous présenter Mme Sylvie
Portelance, qui m’accompagne afin de nous aider a visionner les
diapositives. Je vous remercie de m’avoir invité a présenter
les résultats du recensement 2006 relatifs aux principales variables
démolinguistiques.
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[English]

My presentation will be based on the data Statistics Canada
released on December 4 or before, on the 2006 census and
previous censuses. Tomorrow, December 11, we will release a
preliminary analysis based on a survey of the vitality of official
language minorities. If you wish, we would be pleased to present
these results to your committee at a future meeting.

[Translation]

Like the 2001 census, the 2006 census included
seven questions about language. No other census in the world
asks respondents more questions about language. There is a
question about knowledge of French and English, one on
knowledge of non-official languages, another on mother tongue,
that is, the first language learned at home as a child and still
understood. There is also a question about the language most
often spoken at home, followed by a supplementary question on
other languages spoken regularly at home. That’s five questions.
Two other questions relate to language of work. The results will
be released along with data on the labour market and workplaces
on March 4, 2008.

Today, I will describe how the population has changed in terms
of mother tongue or language spoken most often at home. I will
end with a few quick facts on changes in bilingualism. We have
tracked changes in mother tongue other than English or French in
allophone groups in Canada since 1951.

We have found that overall — the red line is for Canada, the
dark green one, the lower one, is for Quebec, and the blue one,
the upper one, is for Canada less Quebec — the number and
proportion of the population with a mother tongue other than
English or French has grown rapidly in the past twenty years.
This is due to increasing international immigration, which
includes a large proportion of allophone immigrants.

The following slide depicts the use of English or French within
the allophone population. This graphic shows that the use of an
official language at home by allophone immigrants increases with
the length of time they spend in Canada. Take, for example,
allophone immigrants who arrived between 1961 and 1970,
22 per cent of whom spoke French or English at home in 1971,
46 per cent in 1991 and 53 per cent in 2006. Over time, the use of
French or English at home is becoming more widespread. This
explains why, in Canada, the use of languages other than French
or English at home is less significant than the proportion of
individuals whose mother tongue is a language other than French
or English.

[Traduction]

Mon exposé est fondé sur des données de Statistique Canada
publiées le 4 décembre ou avant et portant sur le recensement de
2006 et les recensements précédents. Demain, le 11 décembre,
nous publierons une analyse préliminaire fondée sur une étude de
la vitalité des minorités de langue officielle. Si vous le souhaitez,
nous serons heureux d’en présenter les résultats a votre comité a
une prochaine réunion.

[Frangais)

Le recensement de 2006, comme celui de 2001, comportait
sept questions linguistiques. C’est le recensement qui, dans le
monde, comporte le plus de questions linguistiques posées aux
recensés. Il y a une question sur la connaissance du frangais et de
I’anglais, une deuxiéme sur la connaissance des langues
non officielles, une autre également sur la langue maternelle,
c’est-a-dire la langue apprise en premier lieu a la maison, dans
I’enfance, et encore comprise. Il y a également une question posée
sur la langue parlée le plus souvent a la maison, laquelle est suivie
d’une question complémentaire sur les autres langues parlées
régulierement a la maison. Cela fait cinq questions. Deux autres
questions sont posées sur la langue de travail. Les résultats seront
dévoilés en méme temps que les données sur le marché du travail
et sur le lieu de travail le 4 mars 2008.

Je tracerai, aujourd’hui, un portrait de I’évolution de la
répartition de la population selon la langue maternelle ou la
langue la plus parlée a la maison. A la fin, j’aborderai rapidement
quelques données sur I’évolution du bilinguisme. Nous avons
tracé I’évolution des langues maternelles autres que le frangais ou
I’anglais chez les groupes allophones depuis 1951 au Canada.

Nous constatons que, dans I'ensemble — la courbe en rouge
pour le Canada, en vert ou en noir pour le Québec, la courbe la
plus basse, la courbe en bleu pour le reste du pays, la courbe la
plus haute —, a la fois le nombre et le poids de la population qui a
pour langue maternelle ni le frangais ni l'anglais augmentent
rapidement depuis une vingtaine d’années. Cela tient a la montée
de l'immigration internationale, laquelle est composée d’une
proportion importante d’immigrants allophones.

La diapositive suivante concerne ['utilisation d’une langue
officielle chez la population allophone. Vous voyez ici un
graphique qui témoigne que I'utilisation d’une langue officielle a
la maison par les immigrants allophones augmente au fur et a
mesure que le séjour au Canada se prolonge. Prenons 1’exemple
des immigrants allophones qui sont arrivés au cours de la période
1961-1970, 22 p. 100 parlaient francais ou anglais a la maison en
1971, 46 p. 100 en 1991 et 53 p. 100 en 2006. Donc, au fil du
temps, 'usage du frangais a la maison ou de I’anglais se répand.
C’est ce qui explique que, au Canada, 1'usage des langues autres
que le frangais ou I’anglais, et le plus souvent a la maison, est
moins répandu que la proportion qu’elle représente comme
langue maternelle.
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The bottom line represents the proportion of Canadians who
speak a third language or who speak neither English nor French
at home. The line is lower, but these third languages are seeing
increased use, whether as mother tongue or language spoken most
often at home.

It goes without saying that if a minority group increases
proportion due to immigration, the relative weight of other
groups, usually majority groups, decreases, since the numbers
must add up to 100 per cent.

This graph illustrates the evolution of the proportion of the
population whose mother tongue is English or who most often
speak English at home.

In Canada as a whole, as well as in Canada less Quebec,
English as a mother tongue and as the language spoken most
often at home has been losing ground for the past 20 years.
English benefits from language transfer from allophones and
francophones, which is why the line representing language spoken
most often at home is still higher.

Throughout the country, the relative weight of French as home
language differs little from that of French as mother tongue.
Nevertheless, it is important to note that this proportion is
decreasing.

Since 1951, the proportion of individuals whose mother tongue
is French has steadily diminished. This is due in part to language
transfer, in part to lower birth rates since the mid-1960s, and in
part to high levels of international immigration.

I would note that in terms of number of speakers, the use of
French as a mother tongue is increasing even though the
proportion is decreasing.

In Quebec, when immigration is high and the proportion of
allophones is increasing, particularly because of immigration, one
would expect that the relative weight of the majority group would
decrease. That is what we observed in Quebec between 2001 and
2006. French as a mother tongue dropped from 81.4 per cent to
79.6 per cent. Similar changes were already observed in 1931, but
the proportion then increased dramatically during the depression
and the war. Immigration was low and birth rates among
francophones were high.

The use of French as the language spoken most often at home
has also decreased from 83 per cent to about 82 per cent.

It is important to note that since 1971, the percentage of people
speaking French at home has been just as high as the percentage
of those whose mother tongue is French and has remained
constant, proportionally. A gap developed over time as French
benefited from an increasing proportion of language transfers.

La courbe du bas représente la proportion de la population
canadienne qui parle une tierce langue ou qui ne parle ni I’anglais
ni le frangais a la maison. La courbe est plus basse, mais on
constate qu’il y a une montée de ces tierces langues, que ce soit
comme langue maternelle ou comme langue parlée le plus souvent
a la maison.

I va de soi que, si un groupe minoritaire augmente en
proportion du fait de I'immigration dans la population, comme le
total de la répartition est égal a 100, il faut qu’il y ait d’autres
groupes qui diminuent en importance. En général, il s’agit des
groupes majoritaires.

Dans ce graphique, je présente I’évolution de la proportion de
la population qui parle anglais comme langue maternelle ou
comme langue le plus souvent parlée a la maison.

On voit, tant dans I’ensemble du Canada qu’a 'extérieur du
Québec, I'importance de I’anglais, soit comme langue maternelle,
soit comme langue parlée le plus souvent a la maison, qui diminue
depuis une vingtaine d’années. L’anglais profite des transferts
linguistiques des allophones et des francophones, et c’est
pourquoi la courbe sur la langue parlée le plus souvent a la
maison est toujours plus élevée.

Pour ce qui est du frangais dans I’ensemble du pays, on
constate que I'importance du frangais comme langue parlée a la
maison est peu différente de celle de langue maternelle frangaise.
Mais il est important de noter I’évolution a la baisse.

Depuis 1951, la proportion que représentent les personnes de
langue maternelle francaise a constamment diminué. C’est d’une
part attribuable aux transferts linguistiques, et d’autre part, a la
baisse de la fécondité depuis le milieu des 1960, ainsi qu’a I'effet
de la forte immigration internationale.

Il faut toutefois noter que, en nombre, le frangais langue
maternelle est néanmoins en progression, méme si en proportion
on observe une diminution.

Au Québec, lorsque I'immigration est forte et qu’on observe
une augmentation de la proportion des allophones, en particulier
en relation avec I'immigration, on s’attend a ce qu’il y ait une
baisse du groupe majoritaire. C’est ce qu’on observe au Québec,
en particulier de 2001 a 2006. Pour la langue maternelle, elle passe
de 81,4 p. 100 a 79,6 p. 100. C’est une proportion qui avait déja
été observée, en 1931, mais la proportion avait ensuite augmenté
assez rapidement durant la crise et la guerre : 'immigration étant
faible et la fécondité des francophones élevée.

On observe également une baisse de la langue d’usage
frangaise; la langue parlée plus souvent a la maison passe
83 p. 100 a 82 p. 100 environ.

Ce qui est important de noter c’est que en1971, le pourcentage
des personnes parlant le frangais a la maison était du méme ordre
de grandeur et représentait la méme proportion que celles qui
avaient le frangais comme langue maternelle. Un écart s’est créé
au fil du temps et le frangais a donc bénéficié des transferts
linguistiques en proportion croissante.
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I would like to take a little time to examine the situation of
francophones, outside Quebec. In this case, the relative weight of
French as mother tongue has fallen steadily from 7.3 per cent in
1951 to 4.1 per cent in 2006. For the language spoken at home,
we began collecting data in 1971, when the proportion was
4.3 per cent. It is now 2.5 per cent.

In the case of language spoken at home, the numbers
themselves have dropped from 676,000 in 1971 to 605,000 now.
Currently, 975,000 individuals claim French as their mother
tongue, but in the previous census, that number was 980,000, an
increase of 10,000 over the census before that. The main reason
for this change in the number of people outside Quebec whose
mother tongue is French is migration between Quebec and the
other provinces and territories.

In the francophone population, Quebec recorded a total loss of
about 9,000 people. Between 1996 and 2001, 9,000 more people
left Quebec for other parts of the country than came to Quebec.
Between 2001 and 2006, 5,000 more people came to Quebec, and
this is related in part to exchanges with Ontario, which gained
over 5,000 people between 1996 and 2001. Migratory losses were
observed during the last five-year period.

Both Alberta and British Columbia typically record gains,
which tend to be slight for British Columbia, whereas the Atlantic
provinces, in general, record migratory losses from within the
francophone population.

This phenomenon has been closely tracked from one census to
the next. This is called the linguistic transfer rate or linguistic
mobility, that is, the proportion of the population whose mother
tongue is French but for whom English is the language spoken
most often at home. This number increased between 2001 and
2006. This phenomenon has been observed in nearly all of the
provinces, with the exception of a slight decrease in Prince
Edward Island and British Columbia. The rate in some provinces,
such as Saskatchewan and British Columbia, exceeds 70 per cent.

Age is a factor in this phenomenon. Throughout the country,
the francophone population is aging because of low birth rates.

The red lines represent age groups in 2006, and the yellow lines
represent those same groups in 1971. This graph represents a
35-year period and shows that baby boomers were between 5 and
24 years old in 1971.

In 2006, that same group appears in the 40 to 59 range. The
number of young francophones in 2006 is dropping rapidly. This
is due in part to lower birth rates and lower linguistic transfer
rates because mothers do not always transmit French to their
children as the mother tongue.

Je prendrai quelque temps pour examiner la situation des
francophones a I’extérieur du Québec. On présente ici une
évolution en proportion; une baisse réguliére depuis 1951 de la
proportion de la langue maternelle frangaise de 7,3 p. 100 en 1951
a 4,1 p. 100 en 2006. Pour la langue d’usage a la maison, on ne
dispose de données que depuis 1971. En 1971, la proportion était
de 4,3 p. 100 et elle est maintenant de 2,5 p. 100.

Dans le cas de la langue d’usage a la maison, on observe une
réduction dans les effectifs puisqu’elle est aujourd’hui de 1'ordre
de 605 000, alors qu’elle était de 676 000 en 1971. Pour la langue
maternelle, Ueffectif est de 975 000, en légére baisse par rapport
au recensement précédent ou I’on avait un effectif de 980 000. La
principale raison de cette baisse de I’effectif de la langue
maternelle francaise a l'extérieur du Québec, qui avait été
précédé dune hausse d’environ 10 000, tient aux échanges
migratoires entre le Québec et I'ensemble des autres provinces et
territoires.

Le solde net du Québec dans la population francophone était
fortement négatif; de I’ordre de moins 9 000 personnes, le nombre
de départs du Québec vers le reste du pays était donc supérieur au
nombre d’arrivées au Québec de 9 000 entre 1996 et 2001. Tandis
que de 2001 a 2006, il y a un gain de 5 000 du Québec, et on voit
que c’est relié en partie aux échanges avec I’'Ontario qui avait des
gains de plus de 5 000 entre 1996 et 2001. Ensuite, on a observé
des pertes migratoires au cours de la derni¢re période
quinquennale.

Pour ce qui est de ’Alberta et de la Colombie-Britannique,
il y a d’ordinaire des gains. Ils sont trés légers en
Colombie-Britannique, tandis que dans les provinces de
I’Atlantique en général, il y a des pertes migratoires dans la
population francophone.

Un phénomene est beaucoup suivi, d’un recensement a ’autre;
c’est ce qu'on appelle les taux de transfert linguistique ou de
mobilité linguistique soit la proportion de la population de langue
maternelle francgaise qui utilise I’anglais comme langue le plus
souvent parlée a la maison. Elle a augmenté de 2001 a 2006. On le
voit dans presque toutes les provinces, exception faite
d’une légére baisse a I'Ile-du-Prince-Edouard et aussi en
Colombie-Britannique. Mais le niveau dans certaines provinces,
comme en Saskatchewan et en Colombie-Britannique, excede
70 p. 100.

La conséquence de ces phénoménes se traduit dans la
répartition par age. Comme c’est le cas dans I’ensemble du
pays, on voit que la population francophone vieillit en raison
d’une faible fécondité.

Ce qui est en rouge, c’est la population observée par groupes
d’age en 2006; en jaune c’est pour 1971. C’est une période qui
s’échelonne sur 35 ans. On peut noter que les baby-boomers était
agé de 5 a 24 ans en 1971.

On retrouve ce groupe fort important dans la catégorie d’age
40-59 ans en 2006. Chez les francophones plus jeunes, ceux qu’on
observe en 20006, leur effectif diminue rapidement. Cela tient d’une
part a la baisse de la fécondité et aux transferts linguistiques qui
font que les meres ne transmettent pas toujours le frangais comme
langue maternelle a leurs enfants.
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What this graph shows is that outside of Quebec, the number
of children under 5 is about the same as the number of people
aged 75 to 79, and there are about one third fewer of them than of
individuals aged 45 to 49, who represent the peak of the baby
boom.

Now let us look at the evolution of the linguistic situation in
Quebec. I will get right to the evolution of the proportion of
allophones, people whose mother tongue is neither French nor
English and whose home language is neither English nor French.
That is the line at the bottom.

The same phenomenon is occurring throughout the country.
There are fewer allophones who speak a non-official language at
home than whose mother tongue is neither English nor French,
but over the past 20 years, that number has been growing because
of increasing immigration.

Nevertheless, I would note that, in Quebec, of those allophones
who speak either French or English at home, a growing
proportion of them are adopting French. In 2006, 51 per cent
chose French and 49 per cent chose English, while in 2001,
46 per cent chose French, and in 1996, 39 per cent chose French.
The phenomenon is even more marked in the immigrant
population than in the non-immigrant population, but all of the
indicators are up for linguistic transfer rates toward French.

According to the 2006 census, the results of which were
released last week, three quarters of immigrants in the years
leading up to the 2006 census who chose to make either official
language their home language chose French instead of English.
Obviously, that does not represent all immigrants, just the
20 per cent or 25 per cent of immigrants who, shortly before or
after arriving here, adopted either English or French.

The Chair: May I please ask you to finish, Mr. Lachapelle?

Mr. Lachapelle: Yes. In that case, before finishing, I would like
to point out that we noticed a stabilization, for the first time, of
the proportion of the anglophone population in Quebec, between
2001 and 2006. For a very long time, in fact for over one hundred
years, the proportion had been declining. As for the numbers,
they increased for the first time since 1976. That was a first.

I would also like to share with you information regarding the
evolution of bilingualism in the population with English as the
mother tongue outside Quebec. In Quebec, bilingualism has risen
very sharply in the population with English as the mother tongue.
Here, outside Quebec, what we see is that bilingualism is declining
at the age where it normally peaks, at 15 to 19 years of age. You
can see that it was 16 per cent in 1996 and is now about
13 per cent in 2006.

A Pextérieur du Québec, ce qu’on voit dans ce graphique, c’est
que les enfants de moins de 5 ans sont équivalents en nombre aux
personnes de 75 a 79 ans et qu’ils ont un effectif trois fois plus
faible que celui des personnes de 45 a 49 ans qui correspondent au
sommet du baby-boom.

Passons maintenant a I’évolution de la situation linguistique au
Québec. En fait, je passerai directement a I’évolution de la
proportion que représentent les allophones ou la population dont
la langue maternelle est autre que le frangais ou I’anglais ou
encore que la langue parlée le plus souvent a la maison est ni
I’anglais ni le frangais. C’est la courbe du bas.

On observe le méme phénomeéne que dans I’ensemble du pays,
les allophones sont moins nombreux comme langue parlée le plus
souvent a la maison que comme langue maternelle, mais il y a une
poussée a la hausse depuis les 20 derniéres années en raison 1a
aussi & une montée de 'immigration.

Il faut néanmoins noter que pour les allophones qui parlent le
frangais ou I’anglais a la maison, au Québec, une proportion
croissante d’entre eux adoptent le frangais. En 2006, une
proportion de 51 p. 100 a choisi le frangais et 49 p. 100
l’anglais, alors qu’en 2001, 46 p. 100 choisissaient le francais et,
en 1996, 39 p. 100. Le phénomeéne se retrouve également et de
fagon encore plus accentuée dans la population immigrante,
moins dans la population non immigrante, mais tous les
indicateurs sont a la hausse quant a 'orientation vers le francais
des transferts linguistiques.

Si on s’attache au recensement de 2006, dont on a dévoilé les
résultats la semaine derniére, chez les immigrants allophones qui
ont fait le choix soit du frangais soit de I’anglais comme langue
parlée a la maison, on observe que chez ceux qui sont arrivés —
évidemment, cela ne représente pas la totalité des immigrants,
mais souvent seulement 20 ou 25 p. 100 des immigrants qui, peu
de temps avant ou aprés leur arrivée, ont adopté soit le francais
soit I'anglais — dans les années qui ont précédé le recensement
2006, les trois quarts s’orientent vers le francais.

La présidente : Puis-je vous demander de clore, Monsieur
Lachapelle?

M. Lachapelle : D’accord. Dans ce cas, avant de terminer,
J’aimerais vous indiquer que, pour la premiére fois, entre 2001 et
2006, on a observé une stabilisation de la proportion de la
population anglophone au Québec, dont la proportion était a la
baisse depuis fort longtemps, en fait depuis plus d’un siécle. Quant
aux effectifs, pour la premiére fois depuis 1976, ils ont augmenté.
C’est une premiére.

Jaimerais aussi vous faire part d’informations portant sur
I’évolution du bilinguisme dans la population de langue
maternelle anglaise a DPextérieur du Québec. Au Québec, le
bilinguisme est en trés forte croissance dans la population de
langue maternelle anglaise. Ici, a I’extérieur du Québec, ce qu’on
observe, c’est que le bilinguisme est en baisse a I’dge ou
normalement il atteint un sommet, soit de 15 a 19 ans. Vous
voyez qu’il était a 16 p. 100 en 1996, il est maintenant a peu pres a
13 p. 100 en 2006.
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Before closing, would like to say that the Statistics Canada site
has a very rich analytical text and a slide presentation that is even
more complete than this one and includes dozens of thematic
slides on languages throughout our country as well as hundreds of
tables. This is all available to every Canadian and, given that it is
on the Internet, I would add that it is available to anyone in the
world.

The Chair: Thank you very much. Thank you for
understanding as I am certain you could have continued. I will
ask the first question.

I am a francophone from Manitoba and this is my concern: the
census questionnaire asks respondents to identify the language
“most often” spoken at home and, further on, the language
spoken “on a regular basis” at home. When the census results are
announced, I have the impression that the focus is only on the
language “most often” spoken at home and that the results of the
second part of the question are not taken into consideration.

For example, Radio Canada reported that, in Manitoba, only
20,000 persons used French “most often” at home, which leads us
to believe that there are 20,000 rather than 45,000 francophones.

The Statistics Canada Daily only refers to the results for the
language spoken “most often” at home and not to the results for
the language spoken “on a regular basis” at home.

In Manitoba, as elsewhere, francophones in a minority
situation in these official language communities, often live in an
exogamous environment where one of the spouses is a unilingual
anglophone. Therefore, it is normal that the francophone spouse,
and even the francophone children, most often speak English
because one of the members of the household is unilingual. T am
not saying that I agree with that; however that is what happens in
Manitoba. I believe that we cannot, because of that, come to the
conclusion that francophones who speak English most often or on
a regular basis are no longer francophones. Unfortunately, that is
the message of the media based on the initial releases by Statistics
Canada.

My question is as follows: why not simplify things and just ask
the respondents to indicate the languages spoken at home —
French, English, or other — rather than attempting to distinguish
between “the most often” and “on a regular basis”? It is very
difficult to make these distinctions.

Mr. Lachapelle: I can tell you that it is probably true that the
media refer to the language spoken most often at home — I have
done it. I must say that, in our analytical document, I can refer
you to Table 9 that shows the language spoken most often at
home, and therefore the persons who speak English the most
often at home; however, the following table, Table 10, indicates,
for those who use English the most often at home, the proportion
of those who use French on a regular basis. In the case of

Avant de terminer, j’aimerais vous indiquer que le site de
Statistique Canada contient un texte analytique treés étoffé et un
diaporama encore plus complet que celui-ci, incluant des dizaines
de cartes thématiques sur les langues a travers tout le pays ainsi
que des centaines de tableaux. Tout cela est a la disposition de
tous les Canadiens et Canadiennes, mais comme c’est sur internet,
Jajouterai que c’est a la disposition de tout le monde sur la
planéte, bien entendu.

La présidente : Merci beaucoup. Merci de votre
compréhension, je suis certaine que vous auriez pu continuer. Je
vais vous lancer la premiere question.

Je suis une francophone du Manitoba et voici ma
préoccupation : Le questionnaire du recensement demande aux
répondants d’identifier la langue « la plus souvent » parlée a la
maison et, plus loin, la langue parlée « réguliérement » a la
maison. Lorsque les résultats du recensement sont annoncés, j’ai
I'impression qu’on ne parle que de la langue « la plus souvent »
parlée a la maison et ne pas tenir compte des résultats de la
deuxiéme partie de la question.

Je vous donne un exemple : A Radio Canada, on a affirmé
qu’au Manitoba, seulement 20 000 personnes utilisaient « le plus
souvent » le frangais a la maison, ce qui laisse entendre que le
nombre de francophones se chiffre a 20 000 au lieu de 45 000.

Le quotidien de Statistique Canada ne fait allusion qu’aux
résultats de la langue « la plus souvent » parlée a la maison et non
pas aux résultats de la langue parlée « réguliérement » a la
maison.

Vous savez, au Manitoba comme ailleurs, les francophones en
milieu minoritaire, dans ces communautés de langue officielle,
vivent souvent en milieu exogame ou I'un des conjoints est
unilingue anglophone; il est donc normal que le conjoint
francophone, et méme les enfants francophones, parle le plus
souvent en anglais a cause de I'unilinguisme d’un des membres du
foyer. Je ne dis pas que je suis d’accord avec cela, mais c’est ce qui
se passe chez nous. Selon moi, on ne peut pas pour autant
conclure que les francophones qui parlent plus souvent ou
régulierement I’anglais au foyer ne sont plus des francophones.
C’est malheureusement le message véhiculé par les médias a la
lumiére des premiéres publications de Statistique Canada.

Alors, ma question est la suivante : Pourquoi ne pas simplifier
et simplement demander aux répondants d’indiquer les langues
parlées a la maison — le frangais, ’anglais ou autre —, au lieu de
tenter de faire des distinctions telles que « le plus souvent » et
« régulierement ». Parce que c’est trés difficile de faire ces
distinctions.

M. Lachapelle : Je peux vous dire que c’est probablement exact
que les médias ont fait mention de la langue parlée le plus souvent
a la maison — et moi-méme je ’ai fait —, mais je dois dire que,
dans notre document analytique, je peux vous référer au tableau 9
qui indique les données sur la langue parlée le plus souvent a la
maison, donc les personnes qui parlent anglais le plus souvent a la
maison, mais le tableau suivant, le tableau 10, indique, pour ceux
qui utilisent I'anglais le plus souvent a la maison, la proportion de
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Manitoba, it shows an increase from 37 per cent in 2001 to
39 per cent in 2006. Thus, I believe that an attempt has been
made to give a complete picture.

You wish to know why we ask these two questions. That is
because with almost every census, from 1971 to 1991 and even in
1996, we asked the question about the language “most often”
spoken at home. Afterwards, there was pressure from
francophone communities and also from the Office of the
Commissioner of Official Languages. We examined the
situation and the reason we added a question regarding other
languages spoken at home after the question on the language
most spoken is because previous users wanted to be able to
compare data from previous censuses. Had we completely
changed the question we would have lost all comparability.
Therefore, we attempted to complete the portrait, not modify it
completely.

We knew very well, and it was said each time, that just because
a person speaks a language most often at home does not mean
that they have abandoned their mother tongue and we took that
into consideration by adding a question. However, the media tend
to simplify things.

The Chair: That is the perception that arises when the media
use only one part of the responses. In other words there is the
perception that the Canadian francophone population is
disappearing in certain areas and I cannot agree with that.

Senator Tardif: I must say that I was surprised and also
disappointed by some of the statistics presented. I will give you a
few examples. I come from Alberta and when I looked at the
statistics what I realized was that the statistics do not represent
the reality as we know it.

For example, according to the last census, there were about
1,200 students in the province’s French-language schools in 2001.
At present, there are about 5,000 students in the province’s
French-language schools. The number of students who, under the
Charter, can attend the province’s French-language schools has
almost tripled.

In addition, since the last census in 2001, almost 30,000 people
from Quebec and New Brunswick have exchanged their provincial
health insurance cards for Albertan cards. It is very likely that, for
the majority of these people, the language spoken at home is
English. However, we could expect about one third of these
people to have French as the language spoken at home. This is
not indicated by the statistics.

Also, in recent years, French employment centres in Calgary
and Edmonton every year have received applications from
thousands of francophones who arrive in the province. I know
that Alberta has had a slight increase in the total number of
francophones. However, that does not seem to correspond to the

ceux qui utilisent réguliérement le francais. Et dans le cas du
Manitoba, on indique que c’est passé de 37 p. 100 en 2001 a
39 p. 100 en 2006. Donc, je crois qu’on a essayé de faire connaitre
I’ensemble du portrait.

Maintenant, votre question précise a savoir pourquoi nous
posons ces deux questions, cela tient au fait que de 1971 a 1991, a
tous les recensements ou presque, nous posions la question sur la
langue « le plus souvent » parlée a la maison, et méme en 1996.,
Par la suite il y a eu des pressions de la part des communautés
francophones et également par le Commissariat aux langues
officielles. Nous avons étudié la situation et la raison pour
laquelle nous avons ajouté une question sur les autre langues
parlées réguliérement a la msaison aprés la question sur la langue
parlée le plus souvent, c’est parce que les utilisateurs antérieurs
voulaient pouvoir comparer avec les recensements précédents. Si
nous avions changé complétement la question, nous aurions
perdu toute comparabilité. Donc, on a essayé de faire en sorte de
compléter le portrait non de le modifier complétement.

Nous savions trés bien, et on le disait a chaque fois, que ce n’est
pas parce qu'une personne parle une langue le plus souvent a la
maison qu’elle a abandonné sa langue maternelle et nous en avons
tenu compte en ajoutant une question, mais il y a une tentation,
chez les médias, de simplifier la situation.

La présidente : C’est la perception qui ressort lorsque les
médias n’utilisent qu'une partie des réponses, c’est-a-dire la
perception que la francophonie canadienne est en voie de
disparition a certains endroits, et je ne peux pas étre d’accord
avec cela.

Le sénateur Tardif : Je dois dire que jai été surprise et,
¢également, dégue par certaines des statistiques présentées. Je vais
vous donner quelques exemples. Je viens de 1’Alberta et lorsque
j’ai regardé les statistiques, le constat que j’en ai fait était que les
statistiques ne représentent pas la réalité que I’on connait.

Par exemple, au dernier recensement, le nombre d’étudiants
dans les écoles francophones de la province était d’environ
1 200 éléves en 2001. Présentement, nous avons prés de
5 000 éleves dans les écoles francophones de la province. Le
nombre d’éléves qui, selon la Charte, sont admissibles aux écoles
francophones de la province a presque triplé.

De plus, depuis le dernier recensement en 2001, il y a eu
a peu prés 30 000 personnes provenant du Québec et du
Nouveau-Brunswick qui ont échangé leur carte d’assurance-
maladie de leur province pour celle de 1’Alberta. Il se peut donc
fort bien que, pour la majorité de ces personnes, la langue d’usage
soit I’anglais. Cependant, on peut s’attendre a ce qu’il y ait
environ un tiers de ces personnes qui aient le francais comme
langue d’usage. Cela ne semble pas apparaitre dans les
statistiques.

Aussi, dans les derniéres années, les centres d’emploi
francophones a Calgary et a Edmonton ont regu chaque année,
des demandes de milliers de francophones qui arrivent dans la
province. Je sais que ’Alberta a connu une légére augmentation
du nombre total de francophones, cependant cela ne semble pas
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reality in our province. I do not know how you can explain that
but there is something wrong.

Mr. Lachapelle: It is difficult for me to examine the situation
on a case-by-case basis. With regard to the schools, we could take
a closer look. I have already examined the situation in schools
compared to the number of francophones in 2001. I have to say
that we did not do it here because we cannot examine everything.
But in 2001 at least, the data were plausible.

Tomorrow we will be releasing data on students and
francophone minorities as well as anglophone minorities, by
province, and that will be based on much more data than that
provided by the census.

I was formerly the Director of the Demography Division. We
estimate interprovincial migration, but without the language
component, because it is not found in the administrative data that
we use — tax data —, which is generally checked against the
health insurance data of the different provinces. Many studies of
this have been carried out. In general, there is agreement. There
are the arrivals, but there are also those who leave subsequently.
The census captures migration between 2001 and 2006 overall,
based on the question, “Where did this person live five years
ago?”.

I presented what the census reveals; we would have to do a very
detailed study of the situation based on the data you mentioned.
It has already been done for the population in general. Most of
the data available are in the census. However, there is no
information in the census about the language of education for
reasons that are complex. I cannot explain it to you.

A census is taken, we verify that the census provides plausible
data. In Alberta, there may be some situations that are somewhat
unique because, in the census, a person who goes to work in
Alberta, and whose family lives in another province, is
enumerated with his family in another province. In this regard,
there may be temporary workers in Alberta who, in fact, were
enumerated in other provinces. In taking the census, the rule is
that we try not to separate families.

Senator Tardif: Thank you. I would just like to say that I hope
we will have more information than just one survey in
order to continue in this direction. I believe that statistics are a
double-edged sword. As Madam Chair said so well, the general
public’s perception is often not the reality. We must be very
careful.

Senator Champagne: If you will allow me, I will go back to the
question posed by Madam Chair regarding languages spoken at
home. If I go back several decades, it would have been difficult for
me to answer this question. I spoke French to my children and
English to their father, who was a unilingual anglophone. The
children heard both languages almost all the time and above all
we wanted them to keep the languages separate, to not mix
them up.

correspondre a la réalité telle qu’on la connait dans notre
province. Je ne sais pas quelle explication vous pouvez nous
donner, mais il y a 1a quelque chose qui ne va pas.

M. Lachapelle : Cela m’est difficile d’examiner la situation cas
par cas. Pour les écoles, on pourrait examiner cela de prés; j’ai
déja observé la situation dans les écoles par rapport au nombre de
francophones, mais cela date de 2001. Je dois dire qu’on ne I’a pas
fait ici parce qu’on ne peut pas tout étudier. Mais en 2001 tout au
moins, les données paraissaient tout a fait plausibles.

Demain, nous allons d’ailleurs divulguer des données sur les
éleves et sur la situation des minorités francophones et aussi celle
de la minorité anglophone, par province, et ce sera basé sur
beaucoup plus d’informations que dans le recensement.

Jai été directeur de la division de la démographie auparavant.
On estime les mouvements migratoires entre les provinces, mais
sans connaitre la langue parce qu’on ne trouve pas cela dans les
données administratives auxquelles on fait appel — les données de
I'impét — et qu’on vérifie généralement avec les données
d’assurance-maladie des différentes provinces. On a fait
beaucoup d’études a ce sujet. En général, on s’accorde
relativement bien. Il y a les entrées, mais il y a aussi les gens qui
quittent ensuite. Ce qu’on observe dans le recensement, ce sont
des mouvements entre 2001 et 2006 globalement, a partir de la
question : « Ou étiez-vous voila cing ans? ».

J’ai présenté ce qu'on observe dans le recensement; il faudrait
une étude trés fine de la situation a partir des données que vous
mentionnez. On I’a déja fait pour ce qui est de I’ensemble de la
population. La plupart des données disponibles sont dans le
recensement. On n’a cependant pas d’information dans le
recensement sur la langue d’enseignement, et ce, pour des
raisons complexes que je pourrais expliquer.

On fait un recensement, on vérifie que le recensement donne
des données plausibles. En Alberta, il peut y avoir des situations
un peu particuliéres dans certains cas parce que, dans le
recensement, une personne qui ira travailler en Alberta, et dont
la famille réside dans une autre province, sera recensée avec sa
famille dans une autre province. En ce sens, il peut y avoir des
travailleurs temporaires en Alberta qui, en fait, ont été recensés
dans d’autres provinces. C’est une régle du recensement de ne pas
séparer les familles.

Le sénateur Tardif : Merci. Je dirai simplement que jespére
qu’on aura davantage d’informations qu’une seule étude afin de
poursuivre en ce sens. Je pense que les statistiques sont un outil a
double tranchant. Comme Mme la présidente 1’a trés bien
indiqué, la perception qu’on peut laisser voir au grand public
est souvent autre chose que la réalité. Il faut faire bien attention.

Le sénateur Champagne : Si vous le permettez, je vais revenir a
la question de Mme la présidente concernant les langues qui sont
parlées a la maison. Si je retourne plusieurs décennies derriére,
Jaurais eu bien du mal a répondre a cette question. Je parlais
frangais a mes enfants et anglais a leur pére qui était unilingue
anglophone. Les enfants ont donc entendu les deux langues a peu
prés constamment, et on voulait surtout qu’ils les séparent, qu’ils
ne les mélent pas.
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I do not know how I would have answered your question at
that time and not given a wrong answer or an answer that could
have skewed the statistics that you are providing today.

I am certain that I am not the only person in the world who is
in a relationship where one person is francophone and the other is
anglophone. Amongst ourselves we speak the common language,
but we speak to the children. My children always had
francophone caregivers and I never spoke to them in English.
That has resulted in two perfectly bilingual adults today. What
would I have answered?

Mr. Lachapelle: We know perfectly well that the situation of
certain couples or individuals is very complex. With a census
designed for the overall population, we cannot attempt to define a
situation by using a large number of questions.

In Canada’s census, there are already seven language
questions; in most countries there are none and, if there are
language questions, there may be one, two or three questions. It is
very unusual for there to be as many as in Canada’s questionnaire
to define the situation as precisely as possible.

What gave rise to this language question? The mother tongue,
as it is currently defined, is an old question that goes back to the
1901 census. It evolved somewhat, but did not change much after
the 1941 census. The question on the language spoken the most
often at home resulted from a recommendation of the Royal
Commission on Bilingualism and Biculturalism, and was
introduced in the 1971 census. We try to subsequently ask the
same question; we have always been cognizant of that. For that
reason, we take into consideration suggestions as to how to
improve things while maintaining them as much as possible, or
how to improve questions while changing them as little as
possible? Otherwise, you lose comparability. And that is what
most of our users want us to retain.

Senator Champagne: We spoke at length just now about
bilingualism with the hope that it is present throughout Canada. I
was surprised when you showed us the chart indicating that fewer
young anglophones are learning French now than a few years
ago. Yet, when you speak to them, their French is much better
than what we heard before.

I think that the best example is definitely that of our young
athletes, who we will see at the Olympic Games. No matter what
province they are from, they can generally speak in both
languages and often anglophones speak better French or
English than Quebeckers. That is something that really annoys
me.

Mr. Lachapelle: In that regard, for a very long time we have
asked exactly the same question about the ability to conduct a
conversation in French or English, let us say since the 1971
census. That was when self-enumeration was introduced.
Previously there were people who asked this question. However,
because they went door-to-door, there could have been some
slight changes. Since 1971, the questionnaire is delivered to homes

Je ne sais pas comment j’aurais pu répondre a votre question a
ce moment-la et ne pas vous donner une mauvaise réponse ou une
réponse qui aurait pu biaiser les statistiques que vous nous donnez
aujourd’hui.

Je suis certaine que je ne suis pas la seule personne au monde
ou il y a un couple composé d’une personne francophone et d’une
personne anglophone. On parle dans la langue commune entre
nous, mais on parle aux enfants. Mes enfants ont toujours eu des
gardiennes francophones et je ne leur ai jamais parlé en anglais.
Remarquez que cela fait deux adultes parfaitement bilingues
aujourd’hui. J’aurais répondu quoi?

M. Lachapelle : Nous savons parfaitement que la réalité que
vivent certains couples ou certaines personnes est fort complexe.
On ne peut pas, a l'aide d’un recensement qui s’adresse a
I’ensemble de la population, essayer de cerner par un grand
nombre de questions la situation.

Dans le recensement canadien, il y a déja sept questions
linguistiques; dans la plupart des pays il n’y en a aucune, et quand
il y en a, il s’agit d’une, deux ou trois questions. C’est trés rare
qu’on en ait autant qu’au Canada pour cerner la situation de la
maniére la plus précise possible.

D’ou vient cette question sur la langue? La langue maternelle,
telle qu’elle est définie actuellement, est une vieille question qui
remonte au recensement de 1901. Elle a évolué un peu, mais a peu
changé depuis le recensement de 1941. La question sur la langue
parlée le plus souvent a la maison découle d’une recommandation
de la Commission sur le bilinguisme et le biculturalisme, et a été
introduite au recensement de 1971. On essaie de poser la méme
question ensuite; on en a toujours été conscient. C’est la raison
pour laquelle on tient compte des avis, pour savoir comment on
peut améliorer les choses tout en les préservant le plus possible, ou
comment on peut améliorer les questions, mais tout en les
changeant le moins possible? Parce que sinon, on perd la
comparabilité, et c’est ce que la plupart de nos utilisateurs
souhaitent que I’on maintienne.

Le sénateur Champagne : On parlait beaucoup tout a I’heure de
bilinguisme en espérant que cela se retrouve un peu partout. Je
m’étonne en ce moment, quand vous nous montrez sur un tableau
qu’en fait les jeunes anglophones apprennent moins le francais
qu’ils ne le faisaient il y a quelques années. Pourtant, dés qu’on
leur parle, ils parlent un frangais de bien meilleure qualité que ce
qu’on entendait autrefois.

Je pense que le meilleur exemple est sans doute nos jeunes
athlétes, qu’on verra aux Jeux Olympiques. Qu’ils viennent de
n’importe quelle province, ils peuvent s’exprimer, en général, dans
les deux langues; et souvent, la qualit¢ de la langue des
anglophones est supérieure au frangais et a I’anglais des
Québécois. C’est quelque chose qui m’ennuie beaucoup.

M. Lachapelle : La encore, nous posons exactement la méme
question, concernant la capacité de soutenir une conversation en
frangais ou en anglais, depuis trés longtemps, disons depuis le
recensement de 1971, parce qu’a partir de ce moment c’est devenu
un autodénombrement. Auparavant, il y avait des personnes qui
posaient cette question, mais comme cela se faisait en allant de
porte-a-porte, il a pu y avoir de légers changements. Depuis 1971,
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and everyone answers the question that has the same wording. We
did not change it in order to have a certain comparability, and
that is what we have observed.

Senator Champagne: Perhaps we should find another way of
asking the questions in order to obtain a bit more information, as
that interests me a great deal: who is bilingual, to what extent, and
what is the quality of language. Thank you.

Senator Goldstein: If I have understood correctly, we could
come to the same conclusion as Le Devoir did last week that
French is more or less thriving in Quebec, but is not doing very
well elsewhere in Canada. For example, the table you showed on
the predominant use of French at home, which is slightly higher
than the proportion of French as mother tongue in Quebec, shows
an increase.

If T extrapolate, roughly 7 per cent of those who speak French
at home are not francophones as defined by mother tongue.
Hence, they must necessarily be allophones or anglophones. Is
this a valid conclusion?

Mr. Lachapelle: Yes, there are more people who speak French
most often at home in Quebec than there are people whose
mother tongue is French. I attempted to show that, at present, of
allophones who choose between French and English, 51 per cent
choosing French, 49 per cent English. That mostly explain the
phenomenon that you refer to.

Senator Goldstein: And the opposite is true for the rest of
Canada. The figures are not the same; however, the trend for the
rest of Canada is the same in that the use of French as the
language spoken at home is declining.

Mr. Lachapelle: In general, yes. That is what we observed,
what was presented. It was mentioned at the same time that, in
general, there had been a certain increase in the proportion of
francophones who speak English most often at home, but who
nevertheless regularly speak French at home. That is pointed out
in our analytical document.

Senator Poulin: Mr. Lachapelle, thank you for agreeing to
explain the recent surveys. I was somewhat surprised by the
presentation you gave this evening; it is a statistical approach
which surprises me somewhat. My question is along the same lines
as that of Senator Tardif. You have situated Quebec and you have
allowed us to look at the evolution of English and French in
Quebec. But I was somewhat surprised to see that you lump
together the statistical results for nine other provinces and the
three territories.

As a Franco-Ontarian from northern Ontario, I am very aware
of the fact, for example, that the experience of Senator Ringuette,
seated beside me and who comes from New Brunswick, is very
different from that of francophones in Ontario, or of someone
from Alberta such as Senator Tardif, or from Manitoba such as

les gens recoivent le questionnaire a la maison et doivent répondre
au méme libellé. Nous ne I’avons pas changé, pour essayer d’avoir
une certaine comparabilité, et c¢’est ce qu’'on observe.

Le sénateur Champagne : 11 faudra peut-étre trouver une autre
facon de poser les questions pour en savoir un peu plus, car cela
m’intéresse beaucoup : qui est bilingue, a quel niveau, avec quelle
qualité de langue. Merci.

Le sénateur Goldstein : Finalement, si je comprends bien, on
pourrait tirer comme conclusion celle que Le Devoir a tiré la
semaine passée, a savoir que le frangais se porte plus ou moins
bien au Québec, mais ne se porte pas bien du tout ailleurs au
Canada. Je constate a titre d’exemple que, lorsque vous produisez
le tableau de I'utilisation prédominante du francais a la maison,
qui est légérement plus importante que la proportion du frangais
comme langue maternelle au Québec, il y a une augmentation.

Finalement, grosso modo, si je fais I’extrapolation, 7 p. 100 de
ceux qui parlent frangais a la maison ne sont pas francophones
d’origine, sur le plan de la langue maternelle. Donc, 1’excédent de
ceux qui parlent frangais a la maison doit nécessairement venir
soit des allophones, soit des anglophones. La conclusion est-elle
valable?

M. Lachapelle : Bien sir, il y a plus de personnes qui parlent le
frangais le plus souvent a la maison au Québec qu’il n’y en a qui
sont de langue maternelle frangaise. J’ai essayé de montrer que,
maintenant, des allophones qui font un choix entre le francais et
l’anglais, 51 p. 100 choisissent le francais, 49 p. 100 1’anglais.
Cela explique trés largement le phénomene que vous relevez.

Le sénateur Goldstein : Et le contraire est vrai pour le reste du
Canada. Les chiffres ne sont pas les mémes, mais la tendance dans
le reste du Canada est la méme dans le sens ou I'utilisation du
francais comme langue parlée a la maison va en diminuant.

M. Lachapelle : En général, oui. C’est ce qu’on a observé, c’est
ce qu’on a présenté. On a mentionné en méme temps qu’il y avait
eu en général aussi une certaine progression de la fraction des
francophones parlant anglais le plus souvent a la maison, qui
néanmoins parlent réguliérement le frangais a la maison. C’est
signalé dans notre document analytique.

Le sénateur Poulin : Monsieur Lachapelle, merci d’avoir
accepté notre invitation a venir nous faire un rapport sur ces
derniers sondages. J’ai été un peu surprise par la présentation que
vous nous avez faite ce soir; c¢’est une approche statistique qui me
surprend en peu. Ma question rejoint un peu celle du sénateur
Tardif. Vous avez situé le Québec et vous nous permettez
justement de regarder I’évolution de I'anglais et du frangais au
Québec. Mais j’ai été un peu surprise de voir que vous mettez les
résultats statistiques des neuf autres provinces et des trois
territoires dans le méme sac.

Comme franco-ontarienne du nord de I’Ontario, je suis trées
consciente du fait, par exemple, que le sénateur Ringuette a coté
de moi, qui vient du Nouveau-Brunswick, ne vive pas du tout la
méme situation que les francophones en Ontario, ceux d’Alberta
comme le sénateur Tardif ou ceux du Manitoba comme notre
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our Chair. I am somewhat confused because I believe that the
presentation on the evolution would be much more useful if given
by province and territory.

Mr. Lachapelle: You are quite right. In our analysis, it is done
province by province and territory by territory. But given the
limited time, I had to do a very simplified presentation; had
I given a complete presentation, I would have needed much more
time. You are right, in certain provinces, such as Ontario, it
would be preferable to distinguish the north, the south-east or the
different regions. The situation is very different in New Brunswick
depending on the region and that also applies to certain areas in
Nova Scotia. We are aware of such things. But we had to give one
presentation and we chose to do it at the provincial level based on
our analytical document.

Senator Poulin: In terms of the statistics, do you think that the
conclusions drawn for Quebec and the other provinces are
nevertheless just as valid as the conclusions by province and by
territory?

Mr. Lachapelle: I can tell you that, in the document, there are
very explicit tables by province for mother tongue, language
spoken most often at home, and also for all census metropolitan
areas, including Ottawa where we find ourselves, the Ontario and
Quebec portions of Ottawa-Gatineau, Sudbury, Toronto, and
Moncton. We tried to present an overview; I could not give a
province-by-province presentation here.

I indicated that, because of migration, the francophone
population is growing in Alberta and Ontario; that is correct.
In the Atlantic provinces, it is declining. I did not want to provide
details on the portrait; if that is what you would like to have, it is
available in our analytical documents and there are hundreds of
tables available to everyone.

Senator Poulin: My concern was with regard to the general
conclusions.

Mr. Lachapelle: The general conclusion is what I stated: there
is an overall general decline in most provinces. In terms of
proportion, it is occurring almost everywhere; in terms of actual
numbers, it is not occurring everywhere.

Senator Poulin: A few days ago, an extremely interesting article
in MacLean’s showed by province the French language as the
mother tongue, the French language learned as a second language
and the impact of immigration. I was looking at each province;
the figures for Ontario, for example, showed that almost 600,000
have French as their mother tongue. When we add the two other
groups, almost 1.3 per cent of the Ontario population speaks
French, which is a very significant number in the country.
However, nowhere in your research on the last census do I see a
similar analysis.

présidente. Je suis en peu confuse, parce que je pense que la
présentation de I’évolution nous rendrait beaucoup plus service si
¢’était fait province par province et territoire par territoire.

M. Lachapelle : Vous avez tout a fait raison, dans notre
document analytique, c’est fait province par province et territoire
par territoire. Mais compte tenu que j’avais peu de temps, j’ai dd
faire une présentation trés simplifiée; si j’avais fait une
présentation compléte, j’aurais eu besoin de beaucoup plus de
temps pour la faire. Vous avez raison, dans certaines provinces,
il serait préférable, comme en Ontario, de distinguer le nord, le
sud-est, les différentes régions. Au Nouveau-Brunswick
également, la situation est trés différente selon les régions et
c’est la méme chose pour certains milieux en Nouvelle-Ecosse.
Donc, nous sommes conscients de ce genre de choses. Mais nous
devons faire une présentation, on I'a fait a I’échelle des provinces
dans notre document analytique.

Le sénateur Poulin : Méme sur le plan statistique, est-ce que
vous pensez que les conclusions faites sur le Québec et les autres
provinces sont quand méme tout aussi valables que les
conclusions rendues par provinces et par territoires?

M. Lachapelle : Je peux vous dire que, dans le document, il y a
des tableaux trés explicites par provinces, pour la langue
maternelle, pour la langue parlée le plus souvent a la maison, et
aussi pour toutes les régions métropolitaines de recensement,
dont Ottawa ou nous nous trouvons, la partie ontarienne
d’Ottawa-Gatineau, la partie québécoise, Sudbury, Toronto,
Moncton. Nous avons essayé de présenter la situation
d’ensemble, mais je ne pouvais pas, ici, faire en sorte
d’examiner les choses province par province.

J’ai montré que, en raison des mouvements migratoires, la
population francophone s’accroit en Alberta, en Ontario; c’est
exact. Dans les provinces de I’Atlantique, elle diminue. Mon
intention n’était pas de nuancer le portrait, mais si vous le
souhaitez, c’est fait dans nos documents analytiques, et il y a des
centaines de tableaux mis a la disposition de tout le monde.

Le sénateur Poulin : Mon inquiétude était face aux conclusions
générales.

M. Lachapelle : La conclusion générale est celle que je vous
mentionne : pour la plupart des provinces, dans ’ensemble il y a
une baisse, globalement. En proportion c’est a peu prés partout;
en nombre ce n’est pas partout.

Le sénateur Poulin : Dans la revue MacLeans, il y a quelques
jours, un article extrémement intéressant montrait, justement, par
provinces I'impact de la langue francaise au niveau de la langue
maternelle, la langue frangaise apprise comme langue seconde et
I'impact de I'immigration. Je regardais province par province et
les chiffres de I’Ontario, par exemple, montraient que la langue
maternelle frangaise représentait a peu prés 600 000 personnes.
Avec les deux autres groupes, on était rendu a pres de 1,3 p. 100
parlant frangais en Ontario, ce qui est quand méme un chiffre
extrémement important au pays. Mais je n’ai trouvé nulle part
une analyse semblable dans votre recherche du dernier sondage.
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Mr. Lachapelle: What you are talking is detailed examination
of the situation. In this document we could not go over a total
of 40 pages for certain reasons and there was another
40-page document on immigration. We have constraints.
Naturally we cannot, in so little time, write about and study
things from every angle. After the 2001 census we published an
overview of the situation of French, English and other languages
totalling several hundred pages. We plan on publishing a similar
report based on the 2006 census. That allows us to describe the
situation in more detail and we plan on improving this overview
for the census in 2006.

When the data are released, they have only been available
internally for a very short period of time. We cannot attempt to
analyse the data instantly and provide the media with an analysis
that is several hundred pages long, understandably.

Senator Ringuette: Your documents refer mainly to
percentages, which can be misleading, whereas our observations
in the field are given in numbers instead. That is basically
different. When I look at the tables on the percentage of
francophones in New Brunswick, for example, you show a
decline. That is certainly not what I have observed. You give a
decline in percentages; however, if we could compare that to real
numbers, the portrait would be different. This leads me to ask you
about the other information that you said would be made public.

Mr. Lachapelle: Information that is not in the census. It is a
survey of official language minorities, of children and adults,
conducted with a sample of approximately 40,000 persons who
responded to the census questionnaires. We asked many more
language questions, precisely about languages spoken in the
family, outside the home, in associations, with government
agencies, and so forth.

Senator Ringuette: You are therefore confirming that we do not
have the overall portrait at present. We have only parts of the
picture revealing the reality. Your report and presentation
provided us with information in terms of percentages, which is
misleading if we compare percentages to real numbers in terms of
population. There is a considerable number of allophones because
of immigration. In the past five years, we have welcomed
1.2 million new Canadians. The percentages paint a completely
different picture. It is because of this point that we find it difficult
to concur with your conclusions.

Mr. Lachapelle: In the analytical document I also simplified
things. It is more difficult to present trends over 50 years; I could
have done it with actual numbers, but it becomes complicated. It
is easier to use proportions. In terms of numbers, I can tell you
that we have the figures and that there was an increase between
the censuses from 1996 to 2001 and from 2001 to 2006. With
regard to New Brunswick, the francophone population dropped
from 239,000 to 235,000 between 2001 and 2006. The proportion
declined, and so did the numbers. That was the case for several

M. Lachapelle : Ce dont vous parlez c’est de ’examen de la
situation en détail. Dans le document on ne devait pas utiliser plus
de 40 pages au total pour certaines raisons, et il y avait un autre
document sur I'immigration de 40 pages au total. On a des
contraintes. On ne peut pas, en aussi peu de temps, écrire et
examiner les choses sous tous les angles, bien entendu. On a publié
apres le Recensement de 2001, on compte aussi le faire aprés celui
de 2006, un portrait de la situation du frangais, de I’anglais et des
autres langues, qui représente plusieurs centaines de pages. Cela
nous permet de décrire de maniére plus fine la situation et on
compte améliorer encore ce portrait pour le Recensement de 2006.

Au moment ou I’on divulgue les données, on les a nous-mémes
a l'interne depuis fort peu de temps. On ne peut pas imaginer
qu’on puisse faire ce genre de choses en un tour de main et mettre
a la disposition des médias une analyse de plusieurs centaines de
pages, cous le comprenez facilement.

Le sénateur Ringuette : Vos documents parlent surtout de
pourcentage et cela peut étre trompeur, alors que notre constat
sur le chantier est plutét en nombre. Ce qui est essentiellement
différent. Si je regarde les tableaux que vous avez brossés sur le
pourcentage de francophones par exemple dans la province du
Nouveau-Brunswick, vous indiquez une baisse. Ce n’est
certainement pas mon constat, parce que vous indiquez une
baisse en pourcentage, mais si on pouvait comparer avec les
nombres réels, le portrait serait différent. Ce qui m’ameéne a vous
poser la question suivante : Vous avez indiqué que vous rendrez
d’autres informations publiques.

M. Lachapelle : Des informations qui ne sont pas dans le
recensement. C’est une enquéte sur les minorités de langues
officielles, sur les enfants et les adultes, menée auprés dun
échantillon d’environ 40 000 personnes titré a méme les
questionnaires du recensement. Nous avons posé beaucoup plus
de questions linguistiques, justement sur les langues parlées dans
la famille, a ’extérieur de la maison, dans les associations, avec les
organismes gouvernementaux, et cetera.

Le sénateur Ringuette : Vous me confirmez donc que nous
n’avons pas le portrait global jusqu’a présent. On a que des
parties de portrait pour pouvoir constater la réalité. Votre rapport
et votre présentation nous informent en termes de pourcentages,
ce qui est trompeur, si on compare des pourcentages a des
nombres réels sur le plan de la population. Il y a un nombre
considérable d’allophones compte tenu de I'immigration. Dans les
cing derniéres années, nous avons 1,2 million de nouveaux
Canadiens. Sur le plan du pourcentage, cela fait un portrait
complétement différent. C’est sur ce point qu’il nous est difficile
d’étre d’accord avec vos conclusions.

M. Lachapelle : Dans le document analytique, 1a aussi j’ai
simplifié les choses et pour présenter des tendances sur 50 ans,
c’est plus difficile de le faire, mais j'aurais pu le faire avec des
effectifs et cela devient plutét compliqué; c’est plus facile en
proportion, mais pour les effectifs, je peux vous dire que les
chiffres s’y trouvent et ’accroissement entre les recensements de
1996 a 2001 et de 2001 a 2006. A propos du Nouveau-Brunswick,
la population francophone a diminué en effectif de 239 000 et
235 000 entre 2001 et 2006. La proportion a diminué également,
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provinces. That is all found in our document. We tried to present
general conclusions and the media have not necessarily reported
the conclusions found in the document. We try to present the
situation and people draw their own conclusions.

Senator Comeau: Statistics are very important to decision
makers. You have shown us statistics compiled from the
responses to your questions. You do not draw conclusions. You
do not make recommendations; you leave that to others. Have the
provinces asked for a presentation such as the one you gave here?
I presume that the federal government does.

Mr. Lachapelle: Not for the time being. We would be very
willing to do so. However, what I presented is found in much
more detail on the Statistics Canada Internet site. Basically, yes,
we generally give a presentation to the committee concerned with
the implementation of section 41 of the Official Languages Act.
We give presentations to interested public servants and
departments. We have not received any requests for the time
being. However, the most recent statistical data were only released
last week.

Senator Comeau: I presume that the provincial governments
still have time to make decisions based on your statistical data.
I thought that the provinces would have been interested in asking
questions in order to shed light on particular aspects of the issue,
as we are doing here today. To the best of your knowledge, have
the provinces expressed an interest in having a presentation?

Mr. Lachapelle: In general, community groups invite us to give
presentations. However, we have given presentations about our
work to a federal-provincial committee on official languages
minorities.

Senator Comeau: I am particularly interested in the
identification of Acadians in your censuses. In the past, people
were asked if they were Chilean, Japanese or Aboriginal, but
never if they were Acadian. Will you look at this in the future or is
it not in your space-scale diagram?

Mr. Lachapelle: People who identify themselves as Acadians
are mentioned and the data disseminated. I do not know offhand
the number of Acadians.

Senator Comeau: The problem for me is that the other ethnic
groups simply have to put a check mark in a little box indicating
that they are Japanese, Chilean, and so forth, but there is no little
box with Acadian written beside it. They have to write it in
themselves. It would have been interesting had the Acadians been
included with the other groups.

Mr. Lachapelle: In fact, in the question on ethnic origin, there
are examples and a certain number of spaces, and people have to
write out their response.

mais l'effectif aussi. Cela a été le cas dans plusieurs provinces.
Tout cela se retrouve dans notre document. On a essayé de
présenter des conclusions générales, et ce qu’on retrouve dans les
médias, ce n’est pas nécessairement les conclusions qui se
retrouvent dans le document. On essaie de présenter les choses,
et les gens tirent leurs propres conclusions.

Le sénateur Comeau : Les statistiques sont trés importantes
pour les décideurs. Vous nous démontrez les statistiques formées
grace aux réponses a vos questions. Vous ne tirez pas de
conclusion. Vous ne faites pas de recommandations; vous
laissez cela a d’autres. Les provinces vous demandent-elles de
leur faire une présentation comme celle que vous avez faite ici? Je
présume que le gouvernement fédéral le fait.

M. Lachapelle : Pas pour l'instant. En général, on le ferait tres
volontiers, mais ce que j’ai présenté, en beaucoup plus étoffé, se
retrouve sur le site Internet de Statistique Canada.
Essentiellement, oui, on le fait généralement lors de rencontres
de comités qui s’occupent de la mise en oeuvre de I'article 41 de la
Loi sur les langues officielles. On fait des présentations aux
fonctionnaires et aux ministéres intéressés. Nous n’avons pas recu
de demande pour linstant, toutefois, les derniéres données
statistiques ont été dévoilées la semaine derniére seulement.

Le sénateur Comeau : Je présume que les gouvernements
provinciaux ont encore un peu de temps devant eux avant de
prendre des décisions basées sur vos données statistiques. Je
pensais que les provinces auraient été intéressées a vous
questionner afin d’éclaircir quelques nuances, un peu comme
nous le faisons aujourd’hui. A votre connaissance, les provinces
ont-elles manifesté le désir d’avoir une présentation?

M. Lachapelle : En général, ce sont les groupes
communautaires qui nous invitent a faire des présentations.
Cependant, nous avons fait des présentations de nos travaux a un
comité fédéral-provincial sur les minorités de langues officielles.

Le sénateur Comeau : L’identification des Acadiens dans vos
recensements m’intéresse particulierement. Dans le passé, on
demandait aux gens s’ils étaient d’origine chilienne, japonaise ou
encore autochtone, mais jamais s’ils étaient d’origine acadienne.
Examinerez-vous cela dans le futur ou ce n’est pas dans votre
diagramme espace-échelle?

M. Lachapelle : Les gens qui se déclarent Acadiens sont
mentionnés et on diffuse les données. Je n’ai pas en téte le
nombre de personnes.

Le sénateur Comeau : La ou j’ai un probléme, c’est que les
autres groupes ethniques ont tout simplement besoin de mettre un
crochet dans une petite boite indiquant qu’ils sont soit Japonais,
Chilien, et cetera, mais il n’y a pas de petite boite avec Acadien
inscrit a coté. Les gens doivent I'inscrire eux-mémes. Il aurait été
intéressant que les Acadiens fassent partie des autres groupes.

M. Lachapelle : En fait, dans la question sur 1’origine ethnique,
il y a des exemples et un certain nombre d’espaces, les gens
doivent tous écrire leur réponse de fagon cursive.



10-12-2007

Langues officielles

1:49

Senator Comeau: The Acadians are one of the oldest groups in
Canada. It would be good if you gave them the option of just
having to check a box rather than writing it out. We are lazy on
occasion when we have to do things, myself included. Please
forward my remarks.

Mr. Lachapelle: I will note your suggestion.

Senator Tardif: On the census questionnaire do you ask which
language is most often used at home — English, French, or
other — and what is the mother tongue — English, French, or
other?

Allophones who use neither English nor French as the spoken
language at home would usually choose “other.” However,
French could very well be the first language spoken by
allophones in Canada. This information is not found in the
results because they would choose “other” in this category.

Is there a way to discern a tendency with regard to allophones
who have chosen French as their second language?

Mr. Lachapelle: In principle, different questions are asked in
the questionnaire and generally the French questionnaire starts
with “French” and the English questionnaire starts with
“English.”

For third languages, we ask them to specify. That is why we
publish estimates for almost 180 different languages. Respondents
provide detailed responses regarding mother tongue or languages
spoken at home. That is what comes out of the census.

Senator Tardif: Nevertheless, you will understand that a
population pool has been lost because all those who may speak
only French in addition to their mother tongue are not included in
the sample of people who have French as the first language
spoken here in Canada. The statistics overlook an entire
population pool which could increase the total number of
people who speak French.

Mr. Lachapelle: That is known as “first official language
spoken”. In regulations on service in English and French, the
federal government asks for an estimate of the first official
language spoken and that is based on census data. An individual
who indicates that they speak French is classified under “French,”
and the same applies to English.

In the case of bilingual individuals, we look at the mother
tongue. For those individuals who cannot be placed in a group by
using the two questions on knowledge of official languages and
mother tongue, we consider the language spoken most often at
home.

That arises from a regulation adopted pursuant to the Official
Languages Act. This variable is found on our Internet site as well
as in a vast number of tables, but is not published in this small
document simply because it was more complex to answer. It is not
just one question, but a variable resulting from three questions.

Le sénateur Comeau : Les Acadiens forment un des groupes les
plus anciens au Canada. Il serait intéressant que vous leur donniez
I’option d’avoir tout simplement besoin de cocher la boite plutot
que de I’écrire. On est parfois paresseux quand on fait les choses,
moi inclus. Si vous vouliez faire le message pour moi.

M. Lachapelle : Je prends bonne note de votre suggestion.

Le sénateur Tardif : Sur le questionnaire de recensement,
demandez-vous qu’elle est la langue la plus fréquemment utilisée a
la maison, anglais, frangais et autre, et de méme pour la langue
maternelle, anglais, francais, autres?

Les allophones qui n’ont ni I’anglais ni le frangais comme
langue parlée a la maison choisiraient normalement « autres ».
Cependant, le frangais pourrait bien étre la premiére langue parlée
par les allophones au Canada. Cette donnée ne se retrouve pas
dans les résultats parce que les gens sélectionnent « autres » dans
cette catégorie.

Y a-t-il un moyen de dégager une tendance en ce qui concerne
les allophones qui ont choisi le frangais comme deuxiéme langue?

M. Lachapelle : En principe, on pose différentes questions dans
le questionnaire et en général, le questionnaire frangais commence
par « frangais » et le questionnaire anglais commence par
« anglais ».

Pour les tierces langues, on demande de préciser. C’est
pourquoi on publie des estimations pour environ 180 langues
différentes. Les gens fournissent une réponse détaillée concernant
la langue maternelle ou les langues parlées a la maison. C’est ce
qui se dégage du recensement.

Le sénateur Tardif : Vous comprendrez toutefois qu’on perd un
bassin de population parce que tous ceux qui pourraient parler
uniquement le frangais a part leur langue maternelle ne sont pas
inclus dans I’échantillon de personnes qui ont le frangais comme
premiére langue parlée, ici au Canada. On oublie tout un bassin
de la population dans les statistiques, ce qui risque de faire
augmenter le nombre total de gens parlant francais.

M. Lachapelle : C’est ce qu'on appelle « la premiére langue
officielle parlée ». Dans le réglement sur les services en anglais et
en frangais, le gouvernement fédéral demande d’estimer la
premiere langue officielle parlée et cela se fait a partir des
données du recensement, c’est-a-dire qu'une personne qui indique
parler le frangais est classée dans « frangais ». La méme chose
s’applique pour I’anglais.

Pour ceux qui sont bilingues, on examine la langue maternelle.
Et ceux qu’on ne parvient pas a classer a 1’aide des deux questions
sur la connaissance des langues officielles et de la langue
maternelle, on considére alors la langue parlée le plus souvent a
la maison.

Cela découle d’un reglement adopté en vertu de la Loi sur les
langues officielles. Cette variable se retrouve sur notre site internet
ainsi que dans d’innombrables tableaux, mais elle n’est pas
publiée dans ce petit document tout simplement parce que c’était
plus complexe a expliquer. Il ne s’agit pas d’une seule question,
mais d’une variable qui découle de trois questions.
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Senator Tardif: Yet, it is an important variable?

Mr. Lachapelle: Yes, you are quite right.

[English)

Senator Murray: I have a comment on a subject that the
witness may wish to state some clarification, but what I have to
say is for the benefit of colleagues on the committee.

I am looking forward to tomorrow and the release of your
document on the vitalité des minorités francophones. On the
weekend I was reading some of that analytical material to which
you referred, the background material based on the 2006 census
and the 2001 census. Unfortunately, I left it at home and my
memory is slipping.

One of the things I got out of it was that francophones —
I suppose like others — are increasingly moving into the great
urban areas of the country. Among the tables in your analysis,
you listed not just breakdowns of francophones, anglophones and
allophones by province but also by census district. One of the
things that jumped up and hit me in the eye with regard to Nova
Scotia, for example — and Manitoba also — is that at least one
third, perhaps more, of the francophones in Nova Scotia are now
located in the Halifax area.

When we think of francophones in Nova Scotia, we think
exactly of the Acadians who come from Yarmouth and the
District of Clare, where our friend Senator Comeau originates,
and other places the committee has visited, like Petit-de-Grat,
Chéticamp and Cape Breton, but increasingly they are living in
places like Halifax. I hope that I will be able to see in your
analysis, or elsewhere, a breakdown of those people and the
extent to which they are able to live successfully in their language
and maintain it in a large metropolitan area like Halifax or
Winnipeg, for example. I think half of Franco-Manitobans are to
be found in Winnipeg.

To what extent do these children frequent the French schools
placed there at their disposal? Are there child care facilities in
those large areas? What are their viewing habits? Radio-Canada
at least gets to all those parts of the country.

At first blush, there were two reactions when your statistics
were reported in the media. A man by the name of Castonguay,
who I think is an academic at the University of Ottawa, said that
goes to show you that we are wasting money spending anything
on francophone minorities in places like Nova Scotia or
Saskatchewan, and so on, so let us stop. On the other hand,
one of the spokespersons for the francophone organization said
that, on the contrary, we must spend not the millions we are now
spending but the billions.

I think they are probably both wrong, but we may have to
imagine, as a government and as a Parliament, new approaches to
this subject that will go where the francophones are located. With
the greatest of respect to our friends from the District of Clare
and Yarmouth and places like that, perhaps the emphasis should
be changed to the urban francophones and what we must do
there.

Le sénateur Tardif : C’est tout de méme une variable

importante?

M. Lachapelle : Oui, vous avez tout a fait raison.

[Traduction]

Le sénateur Murray : Le témoin voudra peut-étre éclaircir ce
point, mais j’aimerais ajouter quelque chose au bénéfice de
collégues du comité.

J’ai hate a la publication, demain, de votre document sur la
vitalité des minorités francophones. Pendant le week-end, j’ai Iu
une partie de ces documents analytiques dont vous avez parlé,
fondés sur les recensements de 2006 et de 2001. Je les ai
malheureusement laissés chez moi et j’ai certains trous de
mémoire.

Un des points que j’ai retenus, c’est que les francophones —
comme d’autres je suppose — se déplacent de plus en plus vers les
grands centres urbains du pays. Parmi les tableaux de votre
analyse, les francophones, les anglophones et les allophones ne
sont pas seulement répartis par province, mais aussi par district de
recensement. Ce qui m’a frappé au sujet de la Nouvelle-Ecosse,
par exemple, — et aussi du Manitoba — est qu’au moins le tiers,
sinon plus, des francophones de la Nouvelle-Ecosse vivent
maintenant dans la région de Halifax.

Quand il est question des francophones de Nouvelle-Ecosse, on
pense aux Acadiens qui viennent de Yarmouth et du district de
Clare, d’ou est issu notre ami le sénateur Comeau, et d’autres
endroits comme Petit-de-Grat, Chéticamp et Iile du Cap-Breton,
mais ils vivent de plus en plus a des endroits comme Halifax.
Jespére que votre analyse ou un autre document présentera la
répartition de ces gens et dans quelle mesure ils sont capables de
mener une vie fructueuse dans leur langue et de la conserver dans
une grande région métropolitaine comme Halifax ou Winnipeg,
par exemple. Je crois que la moitié des Franco-Manitobains se
trouvent a Winnipeg.

Dans quelle proportion ces enfants fréquentent-ils les écoles
francophones qui y sont a leur disposition? Existe-t-il des
garderies dans ces régions? Que regardent-ils? Radio-Canada,
au moins, diffuse dans tous les coins du pays.

Il'y a eu deux réactions immédiates lorsque vos statistiques ont
été rendues publiques. Un dénommé Castonguay, professeur a
I’Université d’Ottawa je crois, a dit que cela prouve que peu
importe les sommes dépensées a I'intention des minorités
francophones & des endroits comme la Nouvelle-Ecosse ou la
Saskatchewan, il s’agit d’argent gaspillé et que cela doit cesser.
Inversement, le porte-parole d’un organisme francophone a dit
que nous devons dépenser non pas des millions, comme c’est le cas
actuellement, mais des milliards.

Je crois qu’ils ont probablement tort tous les deux, mais nous
devons songer, en tant que gouvernement et Parlement, a de
nouvelles approches qui permettront de rejoindre les
francophones 1a ou ils se trouvent. Avec tout le respect que je
dois a nos amis de Yarmouth, du district de Clare et d’autres
endroits du genre, il faudrait peut-étre mettre davantage ’accent
sur les francophones en région urbaine.
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I do not know whether the document you will publish
tomorrow will be helpful to us in that regard. I suspect it
probably will be. If you do not want to give us an avant-goit of
that, you could at least describe to us in a word or two what
subject matters are covered.

Mr. Lachapelle: I would like to confirm that effectively one
third of francophones from Nova Scotia are living in Halifax and
half of Franco-Manitobans are living in Winnipeg. That
information is from our publication.

[Translation]

We will be releasing the first data from the Survey on the
Vitality of Official-Language Minorities. This survey deals with
many subjects and four themes are discussed, including languages
used in daily life. This is based on many questions put to
francophones in various provinces and territories and
anglophones in Quebec.

This survey does not include anglophones outside Quebec or
francophones in Quebec. It deals only with official language
minorities.

Another part of the results will provide information about the
sense of belonging to various communities and what researchers
call subjective vitality, or the perception of people about the
situation and their situation in particular.

The survey also examines the issue of access to health services
and the school situation in the different areas. Obviously a great
deal of subjects could be examined through this survey. Many
researchers throughout Canada have already expressed an interest
in analysing the survey data.

Senator Murray: We await the survey results.

Senator Goldstein: Thank you for your very interesting
presentation. In the documents provided there is information
not contained in your presentation. Among others, the percentage
of francophones in every province and territory, except the
Yukon, decreased between 2001 and 2006. In some cases, the
decrease is so significant that we have to question it. You
obviously do not have a solution for preventing this trend from
continuing.

In some provinces, the population is minuscule. I wonder how
we can protect these small populations. For example, in
Saskatchewan only 1.8 per cent of the population is
francophone; in Newfoundland and Labrador only 0.4 per cent
of the population is of francophone origin. Naturally we are
speaking of mother tongue and not language spoken at home. In
Quebec, for example, we know that the number of people who
speak French at home is greater than the number of people of
francophone origin.

How can we protect francophones in areas where they
represent a minuscule proportion?

Je ne sais pas si le document que vous publierez demain sera
utile a cet égard. Je crois qu’il le sera. Si vous ne voulez pas nous
en donner un avant-gott, vous pourriez au moins nous résumer
en quelques mots les sujets abordés.

M. Lachapelle : J’aimerais confirmer qu’effectivement le tiers
des francophones de la Nouvelle-Ecosse vivent a Halifax et que la
moitié des Franco-Manitobains vivent a Winnipeg. Ces données
proviennent de notre publication.

[Frangais]

Nous allons diffuser les premiers résultats de I’enquéte sur la
vitalité des minorités de langue officielle. Comme il y a beaucoup
de sujets en cause, quatre éléments seront abordés, dont celui des
langues utilisées dans la vie quotidienne. Cela se fera a partir de
trés nombreuses questions destinées a la fois aux francophones
dans les différentes provinces et territoires et aux anglophones du
Québec.

Cet échantillon ne concerne ni les anglophones a I'extérieur du
Québec ni les francophones du Québec. Seules les minorités de
langue officielle sont concernées.

Une autre partie des résultats portera sur le sentiment
d’appartenance aux différentes communautés et sur ce que les
chercheurs appellent la « vitalité subjective » ou la perception que
les gens ont de la situation et de leur situation en particulier.

On examinera également la question de 1’accés aux services de
santé et une section portera sur la situation scolaire au sein des
différents milieux. Bien sir, d’innombrables sujets pourront étre
abordés avec cette enquéte. Et déja, beaucoup de chercheurs d’un
peu partout au pays se disent intéressés a analyser les résultats de
cette enquéte.

Le sénateur Murray : On verra les résultats de ’enquéte.

Le sénateur Goldstein: Je vous remercie pour votre
présentation fort intéressante. Dans les documents qui nous ont
été fournis, il y a des détails qui ne sont pas contenus dans votre
présentation. Nous constatons entre autres que le pourcentage de
francophones dans chaque province et dans chaque territoire,
sauf le Yukon, a diminué de 2001 a 2006. Parfois, la diminution
est si significative que nous devons nous questionner.
Evidemment, vous n’avez pas de solution pour empécher cette
tendance de se poursuivre.

D’autre part, dans certaines provinces, il y a des populations
qui sont minuscules. Je me demande comment nous pourrions
protéger ces petites populations, par exemple en Saskatchewan ou
il n’y a que 1,8 p. 100 de la population qui est francophone, ou
encore a Terre-Neuve-et-Labrador ou seulement 0,4 p. 100 de la
population est francophone d’origine. Evidemment, on parle de la
langue maternelle et non pas de la langue parlée a la maison. Au
Québec, par exemple, nous savons que le nombre de personnes
qui parle la langue frangaise a la maison est supérieur au nombre
de francophones d’origine.

Comment pouvons-nous protéger les francophones dans ces
juridictions ou leur proportion est plutét minuscule?
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Mr. Lachapelle: That does not fall within Statistics Canada’s
mandate. Our mandate is to try to ask the questions that satisfy
researchers and decision makers, to do the analysis of the answers
and to attempt to explain the various factors that impact the
evolution of the demolinguistic situation, domestic migration,
international migration, linguistic transfers and fertility. It is
obviously not our responsibility to suggest measures to change the
situation.

Senator Goldstein: I understand.

The Chair: Mr. Lachapelle, I wish to thank you very much for
testifying this evening. Our committee’s order of reference touches
on the needs of and services for minority official language
communities in Canada. We are interested in the census data
because government services are tied to that data. There are
repercussions for services that could be provided. That is why the
committee members asked you so many questions. We would
have liked to have continued, but time has run out. It is very
important that the census data provide as accurate a
representation as possible of the reality in 2007. It is just an
observation, not a criticism. You have graciously answered our
questions and I thank you very much.

Mr. Lachapelle: I thank you.

The committee adjourned.

M. Lachapelle : Ce n’est pas dans le mandat de Statistique
Canada. Notre mandat est d’essayer de poser les questions qui
satisfont les chercheurs et les décideurs, de faire I’analyse des
réponses et d’essayer d’expliquer les différents facteurs de
I’évolution de la situation démolinguistique, de la migration
interne, de la migration internationale, des transferts linguistiques
et de la fécondité. Ce n’est évidemment pas notre responsabilité de
suggérer des mesures propres a modifier la situation.

Le sénateur Goldstein : Je comprends.

La présidente : Monsieur Lachapelle, j’aimerais vous remercier
trés sincérement d’étre venu témoigner ce soir. L’ordre de renvoi
de notre comité touche les besoins et les services des communautés
de langue officielle en milieu minoritaire au Canada. Dans cette
optique, les données du recensement nous préoccupent puisqu’il y
a un lien avec les services gouvernementaux. Il y a des
répercussions sur les services qui pourraient étre offerts. Cest la
raison pour laquelle les membres du comité vous ont posé tant de
questions. Nous aurions voulu continuer, mais le temps ne nous le
permet pas. Il est trés important que les données du recensement
reflétent aussi fidélement que possible la réalité de 2007. Ce n’est
pas une critique, mais simplement une observation. Vous avez
gracieusement répondu a nos questions et je vous en remercie
beaucoup.

M. Lachapelle : C’est moi qui vous remercie.

La séance est levée.
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